


INDIA (NORTH-WEST
FRONTIER.

Mo ISUD-WAZIRT  OPERATIONS.

— e — P

Presented to both Fjouses of Pacliament by Comnand of Lis Majestp.

LONDON:
PRINTED FOR HIS MAJESTYS STATIONERY OFFICL,
By DARLING & SON, Lip,, 34-40, Bacon SteeeT, E.

_.And to be purchased, either directly or through any Bookseller, from
FYRYE & SPO%TIS\\'UUJ)I'I, Last Harpive Steeer, FLeer Streer, E.C.,
and 32, Apinopox Strrpi. vVESTMINSTER, S.W.:

or OLIVER & BOY1:, EprNpUuRcH;
or L. PONSONDY, 116, Guarros SteeeT, Dusrix.

)

1902,
[CA 1177} Priee 22 54,



)
§
P

b
'
)
v
"
1

No. Docament, Date. From.
Pt {
‘ —y ' : PP ——
| Co 1R,
1| Letter  (Fareign | Oct. 26 | Government
Department) [ of India.
“with four Lne
closures, P
St 1900,
2 | Letter  (Forcign | Oct. 18 Do.
Deparviment) .
with 13 En-
closyres. :
S 1902,
3 | Letter (Foreign’| Jan. 30 Do.
Department) :
with 118 Kn-
closuees.
4 | Telegram : l » 18| Viceroy of
‘ } India.
5 Do, w 23 Do.
6 Do. ¥eb, 6 Do.
1 Do. w 0 1Y¥oreign Sec-
retary to
Government
v of India.
8 | Letter sy b {Chief Com-
' migsioner,
North - West
Frontier
Province,
9 | Telegram s 9| Commissioner
on Special
Duty,
10 Do, 1oy, 23 Do.
|
11 Do. 2 Dy,
12 Do. e Ty 20 Do.
13 Da. » 28 | Foreign See-
' retary to
: CGovernment
of India, '
14 Da. Mar. 2 | Chief Com-

misgioner,
North - West
Frontier
Province.

i To.

Secretary of
State  for
India.

Do.

Do.

Do.

Do.

Do.

Chief Com-
missioner,
North - West,
Frontier
Province.

Toreign  Sec-
retary to
Government
of India.

Chief Com-
migsioner,
North - West
Prontier
Province,

Do.
Do.

Do.
Do.
Y.,
Foreign Sec-
retary to
Government

of India,

'TABLE OF CONTENTS.

Raids by Mahsud

Settlement with

Relations

L

Conditions pre-

Relations with

Negotiations with

Negotiations with

Negotiations with

Negotiations with

Subject,

and Waziri
tribesmen.

the Mahsuds.

with
the Mahsuds -
EBlockade and
military opera-
tiong., -

éters of sub-
mission sent
in and terms
agked for by
Mahsuds,

liminary  to
discussion of
terms with
Mahsuls.

Do.:
Do.

the Mahsuds :
Note by Mr.
Pipon.

the Mahsuds:
Payment  of
fine.

Do,

the Mahsuds :
Rifles surren-
dered.

the Mahsuds :
Raising of the
bLlockade.

the Mahsuds :
Surrender  of
outlaws,

Do.

Page.

272

2%
23

213

276

274
276

207

218

278

1125675031902 Wt 34470 D& S [



!
/

No. _ Document, Date. From, To, Subject, \ipuge,
1902, . <pe
15 | Telegram Mar. 3 Viceroy Secretary of | Conditions pre-| 278
State  for liminary  to
India. raising of
blockade ac-
cepted.
16 Do, o] » 4 |Foreign Sec-|Chief Com-| Raising of the| 278
retary to| missioner, blockade:
Government | North - West Terms.
of India. Frontier
Province,
17 Do. » 9 | Commissioner Do. Termsannounced | 279
on Special to jirga.
Duty.
18 Deo. .| » 6]Chief Com-.|Commissioner | Negotiationswith | 279
missioner,[ on Special the Mahsuds :
North - West | Duty. Security  for
N . Frontier the fulfilment
\ Province. of the terms,
&e.
19 Deo. » 6 | Commissioner | Chief Com- Do. 280
: on Special| misgsioner,
Duty. North - West
Frontier
o Province,
20 Do. » 8 |Chief Com-|Foreign Sec- Do. 281
missioner,| retary to
North - West | Government
Frontier| of India,
Province.
21 Do, » 8 |Foreign Sec-|Chief Com-, Do. 9
retary to| migsioner, !
Government | North - West |
of India, Frontier]
Province, !
22 Do. « | 3 10| Commissioner Do. Do, 282
on Special !
Duty.
23 Do. » 10 Do. Foreign Sec-; Blockade raised | 283
retary to
Government
: of India. v
24 Do. n 12 Viceroy Secretary of Do. 283
: State  for |
: India. !
251 Do . » 13 | Foreign Sec-|Chief Com- | Do. 283
retary to| missioner,|
Government | North - West |
of India, Frontier!
FProvince.
26 Do, » 14 |Chief Com- [Foreign Sec- |Futureallowances | 284
misgioner,| retary to
North- West | Government
Frontier| of India,

o Province, '

21 Do. » 18 Do, Do. Appreciation  of | 284
Mr. Merk’s:
services, '

28 | Lefter, with an| ,, 27 Do. Do. Blockade  and | 284

annexure, Settlement: ‘
Review,
29 | Telegram April 6 | Cor._nissioner | Chief Com-| Settlement  of | 204
of Special| missioner,| allowances.
Duty. North- West
[ Frontier
|| ' Provinee, |
i | !
| INDEX o L0
| .




EAST INDIA.
(NORTH-WEST FRONTIER.)

NAHSUD-WAZIRT OPERATIONS.

Nq. 1.

Letter from Government of India in the  Foreign Department, to the Right
[lonourable Lord (Feorge F. Hamilton, Her Majesty’s Secretary of State for
India, dated Simla, the 26th October, 1899.  Received 13th November, 1899.

We have the honour to forward, for the information of Her Majesty’s

g . . 4
From the Chisf Seoretary to the OVELHMENt, copies of the letters marked m the
Government of the Punjab, dated the Margin, regarding raids committed by Mahsud

17th October. 1898, with enclosure. i e
From the Chief Secretary to the and Waziri tribesmen.
Governiment of the Punjab, dated the

5th May, 1899, with enclosnres, ,
From the Chief Secretary to the We have: &C.,

Government of the Punjah, dated the 0 ]
S0th September, 1899, with enclogures, (Slgned) CURZON OF KEDLESTON

Tothe Chief S)ecr‘_:mrytothe(}ovex.'n- ' W.S. A. LOCKHART.
rtober, 1439, with enclosurss, , E. H. H. COLLEN.
. A. C. TREVOR.
" C. M. RIVAZ.
» C. E. DAWKINS.
» T. RALEIGH.

Enclosure 1 in No. 1.
Letter from L. W. Dane, Lisy., Officiating Chief Secretary to the Government of
the Punjab, to the Secretary to the Government of India, Forelyn Depart-
ment, dated Simla, the 17th Octoler, 1898,

In continuation of my letter, dated the 25th September, 1898, regarding
Commissionsr,  Derajut’s the raid commlttgd by JMahSUdS_ on Jani Khel
letter, dated 22nd September,  flocks on the 3rd September, 1895, I am directed
18?8, and e{lf:losums.D oo O submit, for the information of the Government
b gsioner, rajat’s s . :
dmf"lmgfé‘:l“;S’j;”’;mhen‘l“ﬁ‘g’é. % of India, a copy of the marginally noted corre-
Commissioner,  Derjavs SPondence, from which it will be seen that the
te](;gram, dated  1st October, QOI’I’]IHISSIOHCI‘, .Dera]at Division, recommends
189’5. o that the following terms Le demanded from the
Ik Un_.lab ‘.mw‘;rmn':nt, dated Guri Khels, who, it has been established planned
5th Octoleer, 1808, th . . !
¢ raid and furnished the largest number of
offenders, the others accompanying as assistants:—

(1) Payment of customary blood-money and compensation for men
- killed and wounded, the raiders being allowed to set off any
sura on account of blood-money owing to them;

11256 A2
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(2) Restitution of all animals carried off and of any ransom paid for
them, and of the value of animals killed, dead or permunently
injured; and ‘ -

(3) Payment of a fine of Rs. 800, half to be regnitth if terms (1) and
(2) are completed within one month of the date of their an-
nouncement. ;

2, Commissioner further recommends that the present garrison of the
Jani Khel post be relieved by the 12 sabres recently withdrawn from the
Tochi post, as they are infantry sepoys and practically useless for purposes of

pursuit, since the post is 10 miles from the border and raiders have ample time
to get away.

3. Tt will be seen from the enclosures of this letter that the kidnapped
shepherds and children were released almost immediately by the raiders. The
Lieutenant-Governor has, therefore, approved of the terms recommended by
Mr. Merk, and trusts that his action will be confirmed by the Government of
India.

4. As to the alteration of the Jani Khel garrison, the Commissioner has
been authorised to ascertain the views of the General Officer Commanding,
Punjab Frontier Force, and to report them with his own.

-

5. With reference to the remark contained in paragraph 8 of your
letter, dated 7th October, 1898, I am to add that the whole question of the
best way of bringing the Mahsuds to account for the repeated outrages com-
mitted by them in British Tndia, Tochi and Zhob has been referred by the
Commissioner of the Derajat Division, and is now under the separate consider-
ation of the Lieutenant-Governor.

Annexure 1.

Letter from W.‘ R H. Merk, Esq., C.S.1., Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derajat Division, to the Officiating Chief Secretury to the Government of the
Punjab, dated the 22nd September, 1898, ’

In continuation of the correspondence ending with my telegram, dated

Letter from Deputy Com thgadlsth instant, on the subject of the Jani Khel
missioner, Bannu, dated the T34 on the 3rd instant, I have the honour to
30th instant, submit a copy of the letter and telerrams noted

Telegram from Political in the marein. °
Officer, Wana, dated the 20th N

{nstant. ) 2. The persons kidnapped by the raiders
OﬂiTe]egr'i‘amh' flciOlr]ld tl;;()h;]’?ﬁ were, 1t seems, released soon after capture at the
cer, Tochi, dute e i i 1 1 1
Officer, othIntercession of the guardian of a shrine, to which

. the raiders had presented sheep as a thank-offer-
ing for the success of their attack. b P .

3. There appears to be no special motive for the raid, the robbing pro-
pensities of the Mahsuds and their hereditary enmity with the Jani Khel

{who are Darwesh Khel) are the probable causes.

4. The personnel of the raiders is established b iti
’ C ‘ X S by the Political Officer t
have been (mrln IChel, Garerai, Jalal Khels and others; the Guri Khel witﬁ
Asal Khan ard Dabbas Khan as their ringleaders, having apparently pl;,mned

the raid and furnished the largest numl 3
. s arges ber of offenders, the
Danying as asxislants, ’ othets accom-

5. The Jani Khel post, as at present constituted

| 1el post, sent constituted, seems to me

useless. Tt fie 10 miles from the actual line of the border itz; w‘lrrigoxtloalie'

infantry whon it would take two-and-a-half hours to reach ’the ftf(ontihép m—‘i
. o il
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for purpuses of repelling raids and following up raiders the sepoys might as
well not bo theve.” With the permission of His Honour, I propose to-suggest
to the General Officer Commanding, Punjab Frontier Force, that cavalry be
substitufed for infantry here.

6. The introduction of the breech-loader has, in the matter of the
Frontier Grazing Regulation of 1874, as in many other matters on the border,
hrought about a complete revolution. So long as our troops had breech-
Joaders and the hillmen had none, our protective agency was so infinitely
superior to the olfensive power of raiders that the effective 11.{1(;‘ of safety was
pushed right up to the foot of the hills, far beyond the * frontier roac
mentioned in the Regulation. Here the distance is nine miles. Now that
the hillmen are obtaining breech-loaders, the conditions of the case will be
reversed unless we either arm our villagers with similar weapons or place
our troops practicglly on the actual border itself. The former alternative
is for several reasons impossible, and my proposal to put cavalry in Jani Khel
practically adopts the second alternative. It would be obviously unfair to
enforce the Regulation when half-a-dozen raiders armed with breech-loaders
are superior to three times that number of villagers who have only jezails or
even Enfields; and, as the Deputy Commissioner says, the Regulation is
becoming obsolete. T would not recommend its repeal, for it may be useful
nn oceasion, but in view of the greatly altered circumstances of the present
day, as compared with 1874, in the vital point of armament, we cannot, I
think, look to that Regulation as affording much in the way of the protection

of horder graziers and their animals.

7. Tt is satisfactory that the Jani Khel acted fully up to their responsi-
bility for the Shakta Pass. '

8. There can be no further doubt that the raid occurred in British
territory, that the men killed and wounded are British subjects, and that the
owners of at least half of the animals that have been lifted are British sub-

_jects. The owners of the other half are not British subjects, but as their
property was carried off from British territory, we are bound to take up their
case a3 well as that of gur subjects. Even if the raid had not actually crossed
our border, we should, I think, for the considerations stated in paragraph 5
of Punjab Government letter, dated the 1st February, 1892, to this office,
have been under the obligation to exact redress from the Mahsuds. In con-
nection with this letter the Deputy Commissioner has properly warned the
Jani Khel not to retaliate.

9. Now as to this redress: the raid having been made in British terri-
tory, two British subjects having been killed and three wounded, and all the
animals having been carried off from within our limits, the cace seems to me
far more serious than if the affair had happened in the grazing lands adjacent
to our border, and if no British subjects had been killed, wounded and injured.
In the latter event we should probably have been content to merely enforce
reparation.  But the present case appears to me to be one calling for more
than mere reparation.  There has heen a good deal of raiding lately by the
Mahsuds, witness the recent correspondence about Zhob and the various
diaries and reports of the Political Officers, Tochi and Wana; and the time
has come, I think, for making a stand and for showing to the Mahsuds that
British interests must be scrupulously respected. In this case there has
heen a gross offence committed, for which, if any raiders had been caught in
our territory, they could have heen hanged under the law. I understand
from the Political Officer, Wana, that in a simslar case the Garerais were
fined Rs. 500, which fine was subsequently remitted. I do not know the
circumstances of this remission, but I venture to hold that, if a punishment
is inflicted at all, it ought always to be one that will be felt and remembered
and, recondly, that, althouch in individual instances it may have sometimes

a good effect to forego a penalty which has been unconditionally announced,

yet unconqunal_ remissions are dangerously apt to create the impression
that we are making idle threats.
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10. I have discussed the following terms with the Political Officer,
Wana:— A
(1) Payment of customary blood-money and compensation for the men
killed and wounded. '

(2) Restitution of all the animals carried off and of any ransom paid
for them, and payment of market value of any animals killed,
dead or permanently injured.

(3) Payment of a fine of Rs. 1,500, one-half to be remitted if terms (1)
and (2) are completed within one month after date of notice

given of the terms.

Details as to (1) and (2) will be settled direct by the Deputy Commissioner
and Political Officer.

.

Mr. Kettlewell states that the first and second terms are already fully
understood by the Guri Khel, but that as regards (1) they plead a set-off on
account of blood-money owing to them. To this, I think, there is no strong
objection, although it is not usual to admit such set-offs for the death of
British subjects; but here the circumstances are peculiar in that there is an
old feud between the parties. o

11. With regard to the fine, Mr. Kettlewell thinks it too high, and in
deference to his opinion I have reduced my proposal to Rs. 800, to which he
does not demur on the score of its being excessive, but he would postpone
altogether the question of a fine until we see what the Guri Khels are doing
and have done already in the matter of reparation. As to this, I differ. The
condition under which half the fine will be remitted is intended to meet the
case of fairly prompt restoration. Whatever the attitude of sections may be,
we must, I think, mark what has happened, and considering the nature of
the raid, a fine of Rs. 400 or Rs. 800, as the case may be, spread over three
sections, can scarcely be called harsh. If the Maliks have to pay up, then”
all T can say is that they must be weak and powerless. The usual course
where an independent clan is fined, is either for the whole clan to subscribe
according to hereditary shares (this, if they sympathise with the individual
offenders and take up their case as a clan question), or the jirga pays and
recovers from the individual offenders by prompt and drastic methods of its
own. If it comes to this that we are prevented from punishing an offending-
clan, because the punishment will fall not upon the offenders or upon the
whole clan {in the latter case, because the clan voluntarily takes upon its
shoulders the offence of the individuals), but upon the Maliks who help us
then we are in a grave dilemma: the clans can go on raiding as much as they’
like, secure in the knowledge that nothing more disagreeable is likely to
happen than a more or less complete restoration, as chance will have it, and
we are in the position of being unable to strike for fear of hitting our friends!
There is a limit to the policy of consideration; to my mind it is incumbent
upon all tribes to whom we extend the privilege of friendly relations with
us, whose members we protect when in our own limits, and whose interests
we respect, that they shall reciprocate, and that, if any members of tribes
injure us, those tribes shall do us reparation without, delay. That is of the

essence of friendly relation; it is an obligation upo
; n the clans whether the
zlelcelve allg\t\']anceslfron(} us or not, but this obliggtion is greatly enhgngetd iI};
e case of those that draw our money. Under any o it i
raw 3 - unc ¥y circumstances, it is the
duty of the clans to make immediate restitution; it is no particular me;it to

them if they do their plain duty; and for i
eI ! ! uty; the reasons given above, I am of
Ec)lpmmn that, if any consideration is required owing to thg specia;J con,ditignls of
e case, 1t is sufficiently expressed in the lenient, amount of the fine and in

Cheriore adhoe fo o propos s Condct of the sectons a1 fult. T
: a¢ v proposals ¢ ault.
ment terms (1) and (2) ruIl)d zlx fine ('1n r mend for the orders of Govern-

f Rs. 800, of whicl o i
as stated ahove. If the Malik ’ ich one-half is conditional,
tion between them and theh} Sa}zlgr?e after all, to pay, it is an internal ques-

' . n, with which w : .
and e — ich we have nothing to do:
these very Maliks are to blame for not having restrained and controlled
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their clansmen. If they plead inability to do so, then there seems no par-
ticular good in their being Maliks, nor do they appear to deserve much con-
sideration. T would ask for the favour of early orders, in view of the facts
stated in the telegram of the Political Officer, Tochi.

Anunexure 2.

Letter from A. H. Gunter, Esq., C.S., Deputy Commissioner, Bannu, to the Com-
missioner and »Superintendent, Derajat Divisiony dated the 20th September,
1898. '

In reply to your letter of the 11th instant, on the subject of the Mahsud
raid on the Bannu border at Jani Khel, I have the honour to report that 1
have ascertained that the kidnapped shepherds and children were released
almost immediately by the raiders. The robbers paused at a Ziarat in the
Shaktu valley belonging to one Dina, a Bibizai Mahsud, and presented five
sheep to the shrine as a thank-offering for the success of their expedition,
and Dina then begged and obtained the release of their captives.

2. T have been unable to discover any special motive for this raid,
though I have questioned the Jani Khel Maliks and other persons who would
be likely to know about the matter. I do not myself believe there is any to
be looked for save such as lay in the opportunity. The Mahsuds on the one
hand, and the Jani Khel and Bakka Khel Waziris of this district on the
other, have a long.standing enmity and have raided one another time and

again, though the scene of their operations has been generally across the
border and the scale a smaller one.

3. As to the personnel of the raiders, my latest information is that the
band consisted of—

(1) Asal Khan, Guri Khel, with a hundred men. There seems to be
no doubt that this man was at the bottom of the whole business,
the organizer and leader of the raid, and I am told that the
berds were all driven straight to his village and there divided.

(2) Muhabbat Khan, Guri Khel.
(3) Shergand of Kamir Khan, Shabi Khel Mahsud, with 12 men.

(4) Shahpir Khan, son of Majhak Khan, Shaman Khel Mahsud, with
1 man.

(6) Fatteh Khan, Lamanzai, with 12 men.
(6) A Gudi Khel, with 2 men.
(7) Shadi Nir Khan, Garerai Mahsud, with 12 men.
(8) Fatteh Khan, Marsai Mahsud, with 12 men.
(9) Khan, Biland Khel Mahsud, with 12 men.
(10) Jamaroz Khan, son of Muhammad Khan, Abid Ali, with 6 men.
(11) Makin, son of Gulaband, Bizai, with 6 men.
(12) A Jalal Khel, with 7 men.
I will not vouch for the completeness or accuracy of this list, which has
been brought by spics sent up after the raiders, and which I see differs

materially from the list sent by the Dolitical Officer, Wana, Lut that officer
will doubtless be able to check it. '
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4. [ wus given a very natural explanation as to why the news of the raid
" GO - 3 . 4 o | = »
was not at once sent to the Jani Khel post by the Jani Khels thenselves.
“There were only sepoys there,” th(;‘y_ ?‘;ud, “and what we then wanted \\x:,
sewars”” “Tlie sepoys from the Jani Khel Fort would probubly have n(\[ er
even caught up the chigha. Our posts are so far from the border at this
portion of it that we cannot hope to strike effectively in cases of this sort unless
indeed we returned to the old system of having cavalry wstead of infantry
at Jani Khel and keeping our roads out to Khaisora and Shaktu from the post
in condition for galloping. If we had had the Khaisora post built which was
proposed a few years ago, the raiders might not have found matters quite so
casy, but what is rcally required is one post at the Khaizora mouth and
another at the Shaktu mouth. Then Jani:Khel and Burji might be done
away with.

5. Ifind that section 3 of the Punjab Frontier Grazing’ Regulation has
been practically a dead-letter for years, and after seeing the ground I think
you would agree that it is unsuitable. The frontier road is here about nine
miles from the border. All the good grazing lies across the road, and for the
greater part of this strip owing to the proximity to villages and posts there is
no serious danger from exterior foes. The most that we should do is, I think,
to mark off, say, a three-mile strip and insist on armed escorts within that.
The people’s own opinion about the matter is that it is better that they
should Iose an occasional flock rather than that their men should have the
trouble of a close watch and ward of this sort. They also say—“ If you insist
on our turning out as an armed escort, we must have a weapon with which
we can meet our attackers on equal terms. The raiders came with twelve
breech-loaders. - We have only two amongst the whole tribe. In any case
what could we have done?” We at present supply them with no weapons
for border defence either of their homes or of their flocks. The Jani Khels
say the men who were shot were shot with breech-loaders.

6. The Jani Khels who were responsible for the passturned out in great
force after the raiders, and with great promptitude, but the distance was
agawst them, and some of the hamlets were 10 miles off the scene of the
raid, and a mistake was made in going to that scene instead of heading straight
for the mouth of the Shaktu. The men of Khar and Khui avoided that

mistake and came up with the raiders, but met with repulse as has been
already described. .

7. T have visited the scene of the occurrence of the raid and ridden
along the border. The place whence the animals were carried off is un-
doubtedly British territory. Revenue-paying land and the survey boundary
Exllars are beyond in towards independent territory. The owners of about

alf the sheep and donkeys are Waruka Jani Khels who permanently reside
beyond the border line and are not British subjects. The owners of the other
half and of all the cows are permanently resident in British territory who
pay revenue and are British subjects in every sense of the word. T append
a detailed list of owners and property claimed to be lost given me by Mr.
Wilkin, District Superintendent of Police. He says he is Snclined to think

that the numbers have been ex i
band, tell me they are prepar:(;lggemted' i 3 Khels, on dhe other

to take oath on the “K » that their
numbers are correct. The differenc e PR
by the Political Officer, Wana, is e between these numbers and those given

nOt T Y 1o
be settled according to the custom ofatl‘lyglzro%getzli’)t, one, and this detail might

8. I am now told that the
. m
the' rmder:%, was not a man from K}zaz?i
a village situated within the bordep ne..
men, Ghazal (a Britis

I{Oka'r’ ‘vho was morta”y “v(,“]?dcd by
or b;l_thls a British subject from L'Jt:lngag
. near Khui.  Also that one of the wounde
h subject too), has died of his wounds.

9. T have told the Jap; . e
and that vetaliation og th?i?l Khels that Government are taking ap this case,

Own part ig absolutely prohibited.



List of stolen Calllz awith Owners and numbers ralded by the Mahsuds.,

I Numbher of Head of

\‘\":"l ‘ Name of Owner. Tuther's Name. E Trile, | Sub-section, Cuitle,
No. | !
|
1| Sheikh Majid ... .. | Sheikh Farid ... Warika .. | Jani Khel ...
[
2 | Bassita. o o | Mazamlla Ll . Lohar Warika Do. s
t
3 | Khowjuk Do. .. . ! Do, De. «oe | ¢ Lost 207 sheep,
( i
[
t | Zaiyid Rabim... .. | MerMon .. .. Do. . Do. }
i
5 | Jamal Din .., v [ Shamal Khan ... Warika Do, e {)
6 | Sharoal Khan ... ... | Bangd Khan ... ’; Do. Do. ]
! . Lost 180 sheep.
7 | ZaiGai.. .. .| Kaim Khan ... Do Do, e |}
8 | Ahmal Khan ... s... : Shal Khan we i Du, Do. e | 220 gheep and goats
; i and 3 donkeys.
9 Tor Khan ... | Karai Khan .. | Khujada EKhel Do. ... | 200 sheep.
i
10 ‘ Pir Suiyid .. ... { Karar Kban : Do. Do. ... { 200 goats ana sneep.
11 NijazKhan .. ... | Karai Khan ... Do. Do. ... | 110 sheep, 13 goats,
: | 2 donkeyz,
12 | Tar Gul we e ! TCtmanShan .. Malli Khel .. Do. «. | 2 donkeys, 2 cows.
i
12 . Pir Azam we | Almari ... Do. Do. wor | 4 eowz, 1 donkey, 14
, : sheep,
14 i Zargon Shah ... wo | Ahmad Shah .1 Do, Da. we | 25 sheep,
! b
15 Tapuzai we o | Tzat Khan v i Do Do, e | £ cOWS,
’ i :
16 ¢ Dablai ... oo | Pushai ... .. i Do Do. w4 do,
i 1
17 Zamuk ... .. .. | Mohammad i Do, Do. e {2 do.
18 | Shatsi . .. .o | Mebr Gal ‘ Do.  ..| Do ..|1cow
19 . Nasar Khan .. woo | Daduki ... Da. Do. e | 4 cOws,
f I
20 Kulai ... .. ..|HakimKhan ... Do, Do. e |4 do, -
21 ., Shana Gul ... o | Azam Khan ... * Sardi Khel ... | Bakka Khel ... | 5 do.
22 AngaMal ... . }Jungsi .. .. MalliKhel .| JaniKhel ...|6 Qo
. . 1 .
23 Kadi ... .. .. | Teral v e - AliKhel - ... Do. wo | 2 da,
2t | MalikDin .. ..|SalemDin .. BachaKai ..| Do.  ..|2 do.
25 ' Zarmast Khan.., ... | Dangaraliasderat’ Do, e Do. v | 6 do,
: Khan. ‘
26 . Jaak Khan ... o | Trippal ... Doy, Do, e | 2 do.
27 . Kemal Khan ... ... i Dodai ... .. Da, Do. .» | 8 cows and { sheep.
23 Mussammat Gulami ... | Widow of Badon... Do. Do. co | 4 cows.

Annexure 3.

Telegram from the Political Officer, Tochi, to the Commissioner, Derajat, dated the
13th September, 1898.

Difficult to get reliable information about Mahsuds in Tochi, but raid in
Bannu appears to have been committed chicfly by Guri Khels. Ringleaders
said to be Asal Khan and Karar Khan.  One account implicates Jalal Khels
and Shabi Khels.  Also a pang of Guri Khels headed by Kamal, son of Karar,
15 sald to be now in Sheratala, which means they have crossed lower Tochi.
Another gang of Jalal Khel and another of Kikarai Mahsuds are reported to
be hanging about near lower Tochi.  Unless strong action taken in Bannu raid
caze zoun, cficets will be felt in Tochi where Mahsud raids were already more
frequent and zerious than usual.
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Annexure 4.

Telegram from the Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner, Derajat, dated
the 20th September, 1898.

Your No. 288. T would defer question of fine and terms for a short
time, until we see what the Guri Khels have done already and are doing in
matter of reparation. The men I have in the hills watching matters should
return in about four days and we shall then know definitely what attitude of
section is. If prompt restitution is made, we can deal with section accord-
ingly. With regard to blood-money the Guri Khels stated that a Galeshahi
whose father had been killed by Wali Khels had committed the murder, and
that they themselves have blood claims against the Wali Khels. Truth or
falsity of this can only be ascertained in jirga. A year ago, however, Dabbas,
Guri Khel, stated before Grant that he had claims against Wali Khels and
was referred to Tochi for restitution. It must be remembered that in cases
of this kind fine imposed generally falls on Maliks, who, if they work well,
are entitled to consideration. In this case I would announce no fine at
present. If Maliks do nothing, Rs. 800 is not too high.

Annexure 5.

Letter from W. R, H. Merk, lisq., Commussioner and Superintendent, Derajut
Division, to the Officiating Chicf Secretary to the Government of the Punjad,
dated Sheilh Budin, the 23rd September, 1898,

With reference to the remark in my letter, dated Dera Ismail Khan,
the 22nd instant, on the subject of the Jani Khel raid, that “ there has been
a good deal of raiding lately by the Mahsuds,” I ought to say in explanation
that out of a total of 97 offences charged against the hill tribes of Southern
Waziristan, as having been committed since the 1st of January to the 1st
September this year, in British territory or in the protected area including
the Gomal route, 53 are put down to Mahsuds. '

Annexure 6.
Telegram from the Commissioner, Derajat, Dannu, to the Chief Secretary, Punjab
(rovernment, Simla, dated the 1st October, 1898,

If convenient, kindly send me telegraphic orders on my letter of 22nd
ultimo, Guri Khel raid.

Annexure 7.

Telegram from the Chief Secretary, Punjab Government, Simla, to the Commis-
sioner, Derajat, Bannu, dated the bth October, 1898.

Yours of 1st instant. Lieutenant-Governor approves of terms proposed
hy you in your letter, dated 22nd September, in connection with raid near
Jani Khel. As to alteration of constitution of garrison of Jani Khel post,
you may ascertain the views of the General Officer Commanding, Punjab
Frontier Force, and report them with your own, '
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Enclosure 2 in No. 1.

Letter from J. Wilson, Esq., Oficiating Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab,
to the Secretary to the Government of India. Foreign Department, dated
Lahore, 5th May, 1899.

I am directed to invite attention to paragraph 5 of Mr. Dane’s letter,
dated the 17th of October, 1898, and to submit,

Letters, dated the 27th and  for the information of the Government of India,
fg,tﬂ‘ January, tﬁgg’cgﬁfﬁi a'copy of the letters marginally noted relating
sioner, Derajat, and enclo- t0 the settlement of cases ag_a_mst.jthe Mahsuds
sures. ’ which were decided at the joint jirgas held at
PunjabGovernment’sletters, 1ank by the Political Officers of Tochi and Wana.

ted the 19th April, 1899, :
giile (;ngll:quig;h il 19 2. As regards the cases relating to offences

. committed by Mahsuds in or on the border of
the Dera Ismail Khan District reported on in Commissioner’s letter, it will
be seen that 49 cases were instituted against the Mahsuds; that in 14 of these
cases there was no evidence to show that the Mahsuds were the offenders;
and that the disposal of 6 cases was postponed in consequence of the absence
of complainants or parties. Out of the remaining 29 cases, 22 were of simple
theft, house-breaking, &c., in which the property stolen was valued at
Rs. 1,512 in all; the remaining two cases were one of dacoity and one of
murder, and, as a matter of fact, formed one case only. These have been
fully described by the Political Officer in paragraph 3 of his letter of the
28th November, 1898, which forms an enclosure to Mr. Anderson’s letter of
the 27th January, 1899. The Commissioner has approved of the orders
passed, and has authorized the Political Officer to take action to enforce the
orders, and his action has been confirmed by the Lieutenant-Governor in my
letter of the 19th April, 1899.

5. _As regards the settlement of cases against Mahsuds relating to the
Tochi Valley in which Government or travellers were the complainants, the
details of these are contained in the enclosures of Commissioner’s letter of the
30th January, 1899. Mr. Anderson has approved of the joint recommenda-
tions of the Political Officers, Tochi and Wana, submitted in their letter dated
the 10th January, 1899, and has authorized the latter to take steps to recover
the arms recommended to be recovered in the cases in which travellers are the

~complainants. These orders have been approved by His Honour in my letter,
and Sir Mackworth Young has also sanctioned the recommendations of the
Political Officers in cases in which Government servants or property were

injured, and has directed that steps be taken to realize the fines and compensa-
tion awarded in all these cases.

Annexure 1.

Letter from U. A. dnderson, lsq., C.S.1., Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derwjat Division, to the Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab, dated Dera
Lsmail Khan, 27th January, 1899,

In continuation of this office endorsement, dated the 19th October, 1898,
I have the honour to forward a copy of letter, dated the 28th Nqvember last,
and its enclosure, from the Political Officer, Wana, reporting the result of the
cases relating to offences committed by the Mahsuds in or on the border of
the Dera Ismail Khan District, and decided at the joint jirga held at Tank.

2. There are altogether 49 such cases instituted against the Mahsuds.

With the exception of 4, all of these occurred after the attack at Maizar in
June, 1897. It is the fact that much pressurc was not prought to bear on
the Mahsuds to obtain redress in these cases until the Tochi Expedition was
over, and the disturbance on the Peshawar border subsided. There were

11254 B 2
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strong political reasons for adopting temporarily this cautious line of pol}cy
as regards the settlement of these cases. Tn fact, my greatest anxiety during
the crisis was to keep things going smoothly on the Derajat border and to
avoid any action likely to raise disturbances. I make this remark as Mr.
Merk’s remark in his letter, dated the 6th October, 1898, scems to indicate
that cases on the Derajat border are not dealt with promptly as they arse,
which is not the case.

8. In 14 out of the 49 cases instituted there was no evidence that the
Mahsuds were the offenders, and the disposal of G cases was postponed m
consequence of the absence of complainants or parties.

Out of the remaining 29 cascs, 22 are cases of simple theft, house-break-
ing and lurking house-trespass, in which the property stolen was valued at—

Rs. 50 and below in 11 cases.

2 100 ” ul 7 3 *
2 L2

» 200 n m o

, 300 " in 1 case,

In 5 cases the offence committed was robbery, and the loss sustained
was less than—

Rs. 50 in 3 cases.
,, 800 in 1 case.
s, H12In 1

The remaining 2 cases are one of dacoity and one of murder. They, as
a matter of fact, form one case, and have been fully described by the Political
Officer in paragraph 3 of his letter which forms an enclosure to this letter.

4. T approve of the orders passed on the awards of the jirga by the
Political Officer and the Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan, unani- -
mously, and have, therefore, authorized the Political Officer to take action to
enforce the orders.

5. Mr. Merk, in his letter, dated the Gtk October, 1898, a copy of
which was forwarded to you, under the cover of his letter of the same date,
writes that “ the Deputy Commissioner of Dera Ismail Khan has represented
to me that the depredations of Mahsud Wazir robbers and thieves on the
border of his district have of late been passing endurance, and that it is time
that the consequent insecurity to life and property were put an end to.”
Before going on leave in August I was aware that the Mahsuds had, partly
no doubt in consequence of the excitement which prevailed alone the north-
west border, committed petty offences in which strong action waos not taken
at the time for political reasons, but I had not been informed that the state
of things was as bad as is described in the above extract. I accordingly wrote
a letter of enquiry to Mr. Homan, copies of which and of his reply are attached
for the information of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor.

Mr. Homan, it will be scen, denies that he made the strong representa-

tion which is attributed to him, and states that the w
were not justified by the situation, ords sed by Mr. Merk

Annexure 9,

ng;oj: :‘;:n ;}I‘JB S{j;;’f?”;dl:]ESIQ-,Ig'.‘S'., Political Officer, Wana, to the Commis-
] L upertitenden eral Y ) Tl
5 Novemer. 1805, , it Division, dated Derq Lsmail Khan,

I have the honour to forward herew
) 'wa ewith . ;
“ecided by the Deputy Commissioner, Ders, Igmz%tfgﬁem showing the Cascs
recent joint jirga just held at Tank. an, and myself, at the
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9 The cases consisted entirely of outstanding claims against _the
Mahsud tribe for thefts and raids committed in British territory. The jirga
awards in cach case, together with our joint opinion and orders, will be found
in columns 6 and 7.

3. Cases Nos. 32 and 33, both of which form part of one offence, call
for special notice, and a brief capitulation (_)f the fgwts will be useful. On
April 14th last a Hindu marriage procession, while proceeding along the
rond between Kulachi and Draband, was attacked by a gang of Mahsuds,
who tobbed them of a quantity of jewels and other property and then de-
camped. On the way back (case No. 33) the gang came suddenly on a party
of Zarkannis, who were laying water on to their fields, Mistaking them for
a pursuit party sent to intercept them, the raiders opened fire, and the
Zarkannis, who were also armed, rejoined, with the result that one raider
and two Zarkannis were shot dead. ~ The remainder of the gang succeeded
in making good their escape to the hills. Enquiries elicited the fact that
the Mahsud killed was Mehr Dad, a Shaman Khel, and eventually the names
of seven other members of the gang were ascertained. The jirga appointed
" to try the casc found the accused guilty of both offences, but recommended
that the amount to be awarded for the property stolen should be reduced from
Rs. 1,600, the amount at which it was valued 1 the first report, to Rs. 1,312.
As a matter of fact, however, subsequent enquiries by the police proved that
the Rs. 1,600 originally reported was an under-estimate of the value of the
property actually carried away, and the Deputy Commissioner and I decided
to award Rs. 2,000 to complainants as a fair estimate of their loss.

Rupees 560 each has been fixed at the usual rate awarded in cases of this
kind as blood-money for the two Zarkannis killed, and, in addition, we
recommend, owing to the serious nature of the case, that a Government fine
of Rs. 280 be imposed, making a total of Rs. 8,000 in 21l.  The accused are
Haidrai Shaman Khels, ‘

4. As soon as the joint jirgas, which I am about to hold with the
Political Officer, Tochi, and the Deputy Commissioner, Bannu, are-over, I
propose to submit a statement showing the total amount of compensation and
fines due from the Mahsud tribe, together with the sections to which the
various sums are chargeable, and I therefore defer, for the present, drawing
up a separate account for Dera Ismail Khan cases alone. The matter of
realization of fines for offences committed against Government and compen-
sation for thefts committed in British territory (including Zhob) will, I
understand, be dealt with first before those cases which have either occurred
in protected area or involve an intertribal settlement. When the account
iz complete, therefore, T chall be in a position to show exactly the amounts
outstanding against the tribe, the sections mainly responsible, and also the
class of cases for which the compensation and fines are due.




Annexure 3.

List of Cases eommilied Ly the Mahsuds in British Teerilory decided at Tank in November, 18398,

|
Na. i the List sent to %
)

|

i
. Comumissioner with ! " , $ons
= this OfBce No. 473, dated ; Name of Complainant. ; Name of Aceused. Nature of the Offence. ; Finding of Jirga. ; Orders Zfl.‘gll‘gg})i?;;f(}cf%aﬁm toner
'S | 17th October, 1898, and | ] i | -
& date of Occurrence, f i | 1
| { H R H ]
1 | 49 Ist April, 1897 ... | Begi Khan, sonof Saido, Suleman  Aspin. Abdul Rahman Khel . < Theft of two denkeys | Rs 12 chould be decreerl ... . Deeree for Rs, 12 passed awainst accused in
i é Khel, of Kirri Wazir Lundezai. f valued at Rs, 18, : accordance with jirga finding.
2 ¢ A3 Sth May, 1897 ... | Kasim Khan, sen of Karim + L. Jumma Khan, Shingi ... Theft of a bundle of ' Decrce as below should be given ! Award of jirga approved, and decree passed
! Khan, Kharoti, of Kirri i 2, Xadawmir, Garerai. piece goods valued at against— accordingly.
i Ghulam Rasul, Kharoti, 3. Muhammad Amin, son of | Rs. 480, Recovered Bs. A.P.
I ! Gulpir Shingl. [ R 330, 1. Jumma Khan, Shingi 27 0 0 |
! 4. Yargai, Shingi. l . 2, Sadamir, Garerai ... 27 0 6
! | 5. Sher Xhan, Shingi. 1 : 3, Muhammad  Amin,
! 6, Ahmad Khan, Mal Khel. Shingi . 930
] 4. Yargai, Shingi ... 933
5. Sher Xban, Shingi... 9 3 3
’ ! G. Ahmad Kham, Mal
! z AMhel e 18 6 6
i _—
i | Total ... 160 6 0 |
i e =
3 | 3 5th May, 1897 ., i 1. Ahmnd Khan, son of Karam | 1. Mir Afzil, Wazirgai ... ... " Robbery of a chadar ! Pecree for Rs, 3.12.0 shoull . Decree approved and passed.  We recom-
Khan, Gandapur. P20 Pir Muhammad, Goldsmith, valued at Rs, 3-12-0, be given. Fine also recom-' mend a fine of R< 30 in this caxe in
i 2. Ramzan Khap, son of Bahadur | mended. ' addition to the amount decreed by the
] Khan, of Garra Pathar. i  jirga, because the thieves assanlted iwo
; i chaukidars in the course of the offence,
4+ { 60; 2nd April, 1897 .., ; Mr., Cliff, Comumissariat Officer, | 1. Nazar Din, l Azpukel Thefsof a camel valued | Should be dismissed, there being | Case dismissed in accordance with jirga
1 Tank, 2. Bakhtamir, qé?‘l : at Ra. 60, ' no proof against Mahsuds® i finding.
! o Shingis. ;
; 3. Nazar Gul, ! i
5 623 Sth July, 1807 ., l Saleh, son of Almad, caste Kas- | 1. Asad Khan, Shiagi ... oo o Theft of 11 cows ... | There being po sufficient proof ! Case filed for want of evidenee,  Pas
{ rani, of Zarkanni. 2, Mohabbat Kban, Shaman . . azainst the accused, the decree | responsihility cannot he enforced iu this
| ¢ Khel. ! . should be passed against per- . crse.
: ! song re<pousible for Kuram |
! f . Pass, i
f ! i i .
6 ! 6f: 27th October, 1397 ° Ghulwm Rasul, sen of Paind, | Snmak, Abdul Rahman Khel ... | Murder of Shah Muhum- Parties being sbsent. deferred ! This conrse approved,

caste Nasir Powindah, of Kirri
Juma Khan,

mail, Nasir. i1} next Malesud jirga meetx.

i
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Soodrd August, 1307,

¢ 3th Junuary, 1808

1 Uach January, 1598

-
[}

v 16th January, 1808

~1
=4

o 2ith January, 18498

-3
Rz

T

51 : 1sth February, 1898

82 ; 27th February, 18638

! N3 27th February, 1388

41 27th Febroary, 1888

i
3 Ist February, 1808 ¢

" 2, Shaishta Khan, chankidar of

- : ayx |
17th February, 1848

i ¢

Nandu Rang, son of Tikaya Ry,
caste Mutrejs, of Uttar,

Kadir, son of Bakhtawar, custe
Bhittauni, of Dabra.

Mussammat Kai Khela, wife of
Tazil, caste Waruki Bhittanni,
of Kirri Waruki.

Mr. Mercer, Assistant Districs
Superintendent of Police.

Jussg Rawm, son of Tarma Rum,
caste Junji Khel, of Tank,

1. Ahmad Yar, son of Lashkar,
cnate Kanlzd,

Sheikh Saltan.

Sher Dil, son of Muhammad,
oaste Miani, of Kot Nawaz,

Blioja Ram, son of Balik Ram,
caste Khatri, of Tank.

Guldad, son of Aznd, cnste Dhedi
Jag, of Turan Nan.

Jassu Ram, son of Kanhiya Ram,

easte Tanejn, of Uttar,

Lekbu Raw, son of Jhangi Ram.
caste Sachdeo, of Katawaz,

i

1y —

Ve -

. Gula Khan,

. Guluzam, Hamsaya of Shingis.

. Kamar Din,
. Gul Sher,

iAl:lliull, . { Cnsto Wazirgad

Aluhamuoia Alizai,
Alam,

N T H . . -

Nazar Din, | Shingis ...

Gangi, Shingi ...

Sultan, Koth Khel

Ll Whan, Malikdinad.

Turitt, son of Lalin, caste
Malikdinai,

Al Kha, l Chund Khel

Alizai,

Mirzu,
Gulzada,

1 Abdul Rahman
Khels,

. Charkha.

Mirun, Caste Shaman
Nophew of Khels.
Khoidad,

Azak, son of Sarwari Khan,

[

(2

et W

9

el

.

Bhittanni, of Kirri Khicha

Jandola,

Abdulla Khan, Powinda Nasir
rangi,

. Danlat Khan, Shaman Khel

Zari Khel.
Ashik Khan, Shaman Khel.

Guldad,

s Abdul
Avsperlud, R al?ﬁ&n
Nek Muhammad, Khels

Mirza Khan,

House - breaking  with
theft of jowels valued
at R, gib-6.0,

Theftof a bullock valued
at R=, 20,

Thett of n she vumel,
with & young eawmel,
valued nt Rs. Tu,

Theft of a revulver

Houso - breaking  with
theft,
House - breaking and

causing a wound to
complainant No, 2,

Thett of two bullocks...

Tlouse - breaking with
thelt of articles of
food valued ab Rs, 54,

Theftofa bullook valued
at Rs, 45,

House - breaking and
inflicting & wound on
Lorinda Ram. '

Theft of piece goods
valued at Rs. 108-9-0.

tluim against Loanurd, and Mu-
hammad Alam should be dis-
missed, being unproved against
Mahsuds.

Deacres for Rs. 14 should be
given.

Decree for Rs, 65 should be
wgiven,

Should be dismissed, there being
no proof against Mahsuds,

Rs. 30 should be deereed

Ras. 34 should be decreed

Rs. 25 against nooused should be
decreed.

Cluim should be dismissed, it
not heing proved against
Mahsuds.

Should be dismissed, there being
no proof,

Case not proved. and elaim dismissed,

Decree passed In accordunce with
finding.

jirga

Jirga award approved, and decree pussed
accordingly.

Struck off ; no proof against hill tribes,

Cnse struck oftf ; no proof agninst hill tribes.

Caso diwmissed for want of evidence.

¢l

Decree in accordance with jirgan finding

approved.
Deoree pussed  in accordance with jirga
findine,

Decree pussed in avcordance with jirga

finding.

Claim dismissed. Case fled.

Case dismissed,




List of Cases committed by the Mahsuds 'n. British Territory decided at Tank in Novenber, 1398—continued.

No.in the List sent to 1
[ Orders of the Depnty Commissioner

2 :
A Commisstone= with ] . C . . o ‘
= this Oftice No. 1 ..%.‘dnted ) Name of Complainant. Name of Accused. } Nature of the Offence. Finding of Jirga. and Political O fficer.
= 17th October, 18343, and | !
o date of (ecurrence, :
—_ ; ; i :

18 | 83; 3rd March, ISt ... - Zafar, son of Ladji, caste Atman | 1. Gulzida, brother of Gandapur, | Robbery of two bullocks e Accased ahsent. A clear caxe. Ducree for

{ " Khel Bhittanni. i Abdul Rahman Khel. I and clothes valucd at Rs. 30 passed against accused.

' | 2. Shaistam, Shingi. . Rs. 53-8-0.

. 8. Shahwarang, Abdul Rahman
{ Khel. ;
19 S6; 2uth March, 1889y, « Ustrana, son of Mitha, ecaste | I. Nazar Gul, Uzbukai ... ... | Thefi of 15 sheep valued | Decree for Rs. 45 wshould be | Decree approved and passed,
© Bhittanni, of Kirri Ahmari, 2. Umar Khan, son of Bahadar at Rx, 60, given,

i i Khan caste Haji EKhel

; f Shingi.

. | 3. Unknown.

]

20 87; 20th May, 1888 ... | Gulzar, Chaukidar, for— Asad and Gaugi, Shingis v« | Theft of 11 cows .. | Decree for Rs, 100 should be | Decree for Rs, 100 approved.

) i Sultan. passed against accused,

Mibr Khan,

Shah Kalim.
Rahwati of Dabra.

21 885 2sth March, ISus ... ' Mohana, son of Mirbaz, caste | I. Asal Khan, } Abdul Rahman | Robbery of a she camel | Decree for Rs. 30 should be given Degree for Rs. 30 against aceused approved.

Sheikh, resident of Kulachi, 2. lsparlai, { Khels, with saddle and
1 : kajawa valued at .
: Bs. b5.  Recovered

Rs. 5,
Theft of clothing, &, 1 . v Accused ahsent, Decree for Rs, 2341140
passed against Khalu, Abdul Ruliman
Khel, without being placed hefore a jirpa.

Lieutenant Browne, 6th Punjab | 1. Khaln,
Infantry. 2. Shab Gul, 1o 00 apgul from Murtaza dak |

3. Shaltara, J Rahman Khels, bungalow.

21st Decomber, 1807

4. Isparlae,
£, Mujid,

Akbtinr, son of Ali Khan, caste | Axad Khan and Pino, Shingis ... ; Lurking house-trespass | Decree for Rs. 75 againstaccused | Jirgan award approved, and decree passed

23 1 99; 15th February, 1898
: Tatta Bhittanni, of Cheshan I with theft of five cows should be given, accordingly.
: Kuch, vniued at Rs, 85,
24 02 ; 18th March, 1898.., | Resuldad, Tatar ... e o e e e Theft of six cows . o o Case filed for want of evidence.

2 03 2ist March, 1898 ... ! Case struck out; no proof against hill tribes,

i
1. Wadhz, =on of Muhsmmad y 1. Juma Gul, }Ja]nl Khels ... | Theftof ashe camel with . . ..

, Yar, Jat, 2, Isparlai, a young camel valned
2, Mihrdad, son of Azad. caete | 8, Zufar, nephew of Diuak, :qgas §og el ve \

Jat, of Turan Nan. { Bibizai,
i i

91
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th
x

30

31

32

5; 2nd April, 1893

97 ; 1s6th April, 1893 ...

21st April, 1898

. 99; 7th April, 1898

100; 14th April, 1898 ...

; 25th Mareh, 1393 ..,

; 16th April, 15938 ..

Mussammat Tualsibai, wife of

Jangt Ram, of Tator.

Mr. Eettlewell and servants ...

1. Nur Mubmnmad,
son uf Khbudai Caste In-
Ralu, dar, of
:_’.Muhu.mmudi N
Hayat, son of
Khudai Rabm,

Sarwar, son of Yaran, caste
Gishkori Bilogh, of Kirani Mail
Cart Chauki,

Zuomna, son  of Bira, caste
Towmsari, of Keth (Bhakhar).

1. Lawarg, son of Guldad
*Sons of
2, Khudai Rahm, ‘ Khasor,
3. Sher, t caste Zar-
kanni,
4. Hakim, son of Muhammad,
Gundapur,
5, Kamar Din, son of Nasir Din,
Baghbai.
6. Dur Muhammad.
7. Ibrahim.
Jas Ram, son of Gila Ram, caste
Khanduja, resident of Kulachi.,

Khorasan,

. Bahadur, }Ahdul Rahe

. Ahmad Khan, men Khel,

. Daulat Khan and anpother,
Shaman Khel,

(4N ]

. Hajim,
. Murghae,
. Budrudin,

[-R A ]

% Shabi Khel

Rahman

-

. Salim,

| Abdur
2, Almar, |§

Khels.

1. Nadir Kban, f o
2, Ekam Khan, }Shm°ls
1. Asal Khan, 3
2. Kapit,

3. Aya Khan,

4, Sadamir,

5. Abdulla Khan,
6. Niamat,

7. Bakhta Mir, J

Caste Malik-
dinai.

1., Muhainmad Yar,

2. Charkha,

3 Asal Khan,

4. Mihrdad,

5. Nezam,

6, Saleh Mir,

7. Mirza Khan,

§. Zardam
others,

1
[ Shaman
Khels,

and

Theft of sugar, oil and a
cock valued at 10 annas,

Theft of certain goods,
Rs. 120,

Robbery  of piece
goods, &e., valued at
Rs. 52-8 G.

Theft of & camel valued
at Rs. 60,

Theft of a camel valued
at Rs, 70,

Robbery of 24 cows, a
rifle, a chapli and
Rs. 40 in cash. :

Dacoity of jewels and
wearing apparel valued
at Rs. 3,734-8-0.

Decree recommended for Ras, 127,

Should be deferred till the next
Mabsud jirga meets, com-
plainant being absent.

Decree should be passed against
brother of Kapip, Abdul Rah-
man Khel, for Rs, 60, Kapip
being dead.

Decree for Tis. 50 should be given
Decree for Bs. 510 against Darre

Khan, Nekzan Khel, should be
given.

Decree for Ra. 1,312 should be
given.

Cuse struck out; no proof of any kind.

Decree for Re. 127 passed againat accused.

This courze agreed to.

Jirga's award approved,

Jirga award approved, and decree passed
accordingly.

Do, do.

AN

/

Cases Nos. 32 and 33 below were part of the
snme raid. The jirga nnanimously found
that both offences were committed by the
accused, but recommend that a decree for
Rs. 1,312 should be given instead of the
sum claimed. We consider this sam an
extremely low estimate of the value of the
property stolen, and think that property
of the value of at least Rs. 2,000 was taken.

Our orders are that a deeree for Rs. 2,000
should be given in this ease and blood-
money to the amount of Rs. 720 awarded
in case No. 33. In addition to this, owing
to the serious nature of the offence, we
recommend that & finc of Rs, 280, muaking
the total "Rs, 3,000 in all, should be
imposed.




List of Cases committed by the Mahsuds in British Territnry decided at Tank in November, 1898—continued.

Serial No.

31

Ril

38

No.in the List sent to
Commissioner with
this Otfice Na. 473, duted
17th October, 1848, and
date of Ocourrence.

Name of Complainant.

Name of Accused.

Nature «f the Offence.

Finding of Jirga.

Orders of the Deputy Commissioner
and Political Officer.

10 Tith April, 1890
Nhiranis,

1013 Plat July, 1898 ..

T2 s 24tk May, 18UR .
i
;
D MMy ITth May, 1293 ...
;
|

103 ; 2lst June, 1808 |

106 ; 15tk July, 1898 ...

~—: 8th March, 1808 .,

1Almn Sher, caste Zarkani, of
i Zarkani,

|

H

Parma Ram of Khadak Kot
i
|

Kasor, Miani. of Kot Khadak,
£ per Ahmad Din,

{ Hukim, gon of Ali Khan, caste
I Suleman Khel.

Gudde Khan

1
;
{
} Bher Dil, son of Namder Sheikh
; of Garwiki.
|

Bashar, son of Umar, caste Ama
Khel, resident and lambardor
of Nadar.

. Mubawmad Yar, 7
. Charkha,

Asal Xhan,

Mibrdad,

Nezam,

Saleh Mir,

Mirza Khan,

. Zardam and others. |

Guldad, Abdul Rahman Khel.
2, Mirza, Shirani.
} Abdnl Rah.

Shaman
Khels.

LRl el

i

b5

[l B

-

3. Dangar Khan,

4. Nike Khan, man Khel.
5 Diaaad, Abdul Rab-
3. Buka]: man Khels.

4. Mirza, Shirani, Hamsaya of
Abdul Rahman Khels.

1. Dargai, 1 Abdul Ralbman

2. Isparlai, f Khels.

3. Tor, Shirani, Hamsaya of
Abdul Rabman Kbels.

1. Tor Khan, 8hirani ... .

2, Dangar, Alizai.

3. Guldad, Abdul Rahman Khel.

ooy

. Dagara, Wazirgai
2. Tor, Shirani.

3. Guldad, Abdul Rauhman Khel,

Said Ghulam,

Dot } Awa Kot

Murdur of Khan Mu-
hammead, Zarkanaoi,
and Ghulam Kadir,
Tsa Khel,

Theft of Rs. 30-8-0 pro-
perty.

Lurking housc-trespass
with theft of a rifle
aud house property
and jewels valued at
Rs, 256.8-0,

Theft of 2 sheep valued
at Rs, 10,

Theft of 18 cows o

Theft of 8 cows valued
at Ra. 178,

Recovered 5 cows valued
at Rs, 123,

Theft of a camel valued
at Rs. 36,

Decree fur Rs, 720 should begiven

Should be dismissed, there being
no proof againet Mahsuds,

Kz, 8 should be decreed ...

No proof at present against the
men charged. Recommende
that the case be deferred to
another jirga.

Should bhe deferred till next
Mahsud jirga meets,

Should be dismissed, complain.
ant being absent.

See above.

If complainant, who is absent, takes oath,
decree for Rs, 30-8-0 will be passed against
accused.

Case dismissed for want of proof.

"Decree for Rs. § pussed against accused in
accordance with finding of jirga.
Agreed to.

Agreed to, Case deferred accordingly.

We prree.  Case dismissed.

8l
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9

40

11

45

46

—; 20rd May, 1898

—; Isth July, 1893 ..

—; Oth August, 1848,

—; Tith September, 1808

—; 1lith Qctcber,

H

—; 15th Qctober,

—; 21st June, 1843

JERE

1868

Mirn, son of Ahmad, oaste
Balooh, of Garra Mamrez,

Shahra, son of Hosain, caste
Lishari, restdent of Tank,

Piara Ram, son of Pokhar Ram,
caste Barcja, of Gowal,

Kotu Rum, son of Murli, of
Muriaun,

Takht Ram,

Gele Ram,

Dina, camelman, servant ol
Abdul Rabman, Camel Con-
tractor.

Nazar Khan, Zangi Khel Nazir
AN & *
of Kirri Nazur Khan,

Yaran, son of Gulan, cnste
Kumbhar, of Gara Baloch,

Tanras, Bhiftanni Warspun, of
Kirri Khairn,

Abdulla, Faridae Alizai ...

1. Asal,
2, Muhabbat, Guri Khel
3. Mubhammad Alizai,

Akbar,

1, Gulab Din, | Abdul Rahman
2, Amar Din,§ Khels,

Gungi, Shingi ... .

1. Isparine, Abdur Rehman Khel
. Nazardad,

Shahtuzar,

Alladad, Abdul  Rah-

Rasul Khan, { man Khels.
Pozwal,

Reshmin,

PP NemEBL

. Daulat,

Abdulla,
11, Shahwal,
12, Xhar KXhan,

Faridae Ali-

. Guldad, } Shaman Khels.
% zois,

18. Nadir, Abdur Rahman Khel.

1. Mohabat

2, Mubammad R
Akram, Guri Khels

3. Samandar,

Gangi, Shingi, and Gul Azam,
Shingi.

Theftof a hullock valued
at Re. 50. Animal re-
covered on puyment of
Rs. 20 as bhunga,

Robbery of 5 camels
valued at Rs, 445 and

wounding the com-
plainant,
Dacoity of jewels, a

bullock, wenring ap-

parel, valued at

Ra. 267-0-6.
Recovered Rs, 10-7-6.

Theft of a camel valued
at Rs, 80,

Theft of 60 goats valued
at Rs. 202,

Recovered 58 goats
valued at Rs, 196-8-0.

Theft of 2 camels valued
at Rs. 160,

Theft of 3 camels

Decree for Rs. 20 should be given

Deoree for Rs, 300 should be
given,

Parties absent ; should be de-
forred till next Mahsud jirga
meets, -

Decree for Rs, 85 should be

given,

Decree for Rs, 8 should be given

Decree for Rs. 160 shounld be
given. '

Award confirmed and decree passed.

Jirga award confirmed, and decree passed
accordingly.

Case deferred,

Jirga award approved, and decrec passed

accordingly.

Deerce for Rs, 8 passed aceordingly.

Jirga award approved, and decreo passed
accordingly, i

Cnse incomplote as yet ; the stntement of a
man nawed Yesin huas to be tuken on
oath and settlement of claim rests on this
being done.

6l



List of Cases conunitted by the Mahsuds in British Tervitory decided al Tank in Novemdber, 1898—continued.

|

No.in the List nent to

1
= 1
v i Commirmioner with . i qe : Orders of the Depaty Comuissioner
G { this Offiee No, 474, ddatedd Nume of Complainant. Naomo of Acoused, Nuture of thy Offonece. Finding of Jirge. e and Pulit?cnlyomuur.
o 17th October, 1895, and
. i date of Deenrrence,
i
! Stkiranis,
|
47 == IGth Muy, 1398 .., Palek, Shirani Tumandar 1. 8huktora apd { Gurerad Mah- | Theft of 18 cows we | Decree for Ru. 270 should Le | Award approved, und decree passeid
‘ 2, Misa Khel, suds, pasncd against accused, accordingly.
H : N
S = 2k Angrust, 1898 U Paindi Khan and il Khan, | Achik Kban, Wazirgai ... Theft of 8 cows from | There being no suffcient proof | Cave dismisred fur want of proof,

|
|
—; Mith Sept,, 1su8 i‘
i
i

Shibeznin of Sheikh Mela,

Arpin, Harean Khel Bhirnni

oe

1. Asal Khan, Gueri Khel o
2 Mubmmmaed Akbar,

3 Alibat,

Drazinda.

Thelt of 11 gown

s

agninst the accused, the cose
should be struck off the file.

Decree for Ns, 165 should be
pasked puainst acoused,

Accused shrent, jirgn award approved, nd
decroe paseed in accordanee therewith,

Tank,

The 22nd November, 1898,

A, B KerrLeweLL,

Political Officer, Wana,

T. H. Homax,

Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan,
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Annexure 4.

Letter jrom . A. Anderson, Esq., C.S.1, Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derajat Division, to 1. H. Homan, Esq., Deputy Commissioncr, Dera Ismail
Khan, dated Camp Kulachi, 11th December, 1898.

I find the following opening sentence in an official letter, dated 6th
October, 1893, addressed by Mr. Merk to the Political- Officer, Wana:—
“ The Deputy Commissioner of Dera Ismail Khan has represented to me that
the depredations of Mahsud Waziri robbers and thieves on the border of his
district have of late been passing endurance, and that it 1s thne that the
consequent insecurity to lite and property were put an end to.” Ycu were
lately associated with Kettlewell at Tank in going through all cases com-
nmitted since August, 1895, by Mahsuds on the border of the Dera Ismail
Khan District. 3¢ you are in a good position to judge of the misdeeds of
the Mahsuds and the state of security on the border. I should very much
like to know, for the information of Government, whether you think now
that the words used by Merk, which I have quoted, are strictly applicable
to the situation. . I have analyzed the cases which came up for settlement
before Kettlewell and yourself, and find that while there were five robberies,
one dacoity and one murder, the majority of cases were cases of theft, house-
breaking and lurking house-trespass. In all there were 49 cases, in 14 of
which there was no evidence that Mahsuds were concerned. I hardly think
that these figures justify the description given by Merk of the state of things
on the Dera Ismail Khan border, and T certainly never had the least reason
for believing that you considered things were as bad as he describes, quoting
you as an authority.

Secondly, do you think that the Border Military Police of the Dera
Ismail Khan border are as efficient as they should be, and that they patrol
sufficiently? If they are sufficiently disciplined and patrol properly, how is
it that Mahsud thieving parties are more numerous and successful than
formerly? The Border Military Police are now armed with Sniders; why
can they not cope with the Mahsud thieves and robbers? ,

Annexure 3.

Letter jrom T. H. Homan, Esq., Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismad Khan, to
11._ A Anderson, Esq., C.S.L, Commissioner and Superintendent, Derqjat
Decision, dated Dera lsmail Khan, 15th December, 1898. :

Your letter of 11th instant regarding offences committed by Mahsuds in
this district since August, 1895. Mr. Merk was labouring under a mistake in
considering that I made the very strong representation you have quoted from
his letter. To the best of my recollection all that I said to him when he asked
me about Mahsud raids was that they had considerably increased during the
last few months. T certainly did not say the state of things was past en-
durance and attended with great insecurity to life and property’

Having been lately associated with Mr. Kettlewell at Tank in putting
all Mahsud offences committed since August, 1895, except those already
settled, before jirgas, and seeing that with a few exceptions most of these
offences consisted of raids in which cattle were carried off or were petty
burglaries, I am of opinion that the words which Mr. Merk through some
nusunderstanding represented me as saying were not justified by the situation,
and that the state of affairs was not nearly so serious as they made out.  As
regards the Border Military Police, T do not think that it is as efficient as it
might be made, if properly officered and supervised.  Since Mr. Mercer left
it, except for a short time, during which Ghulam Muhammad Khan, Assistant
District Superintendent, Police, was in charge of it, it has been under the
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control of the Sub-Divisional Officer, Tapk, who has no tI.mf tlo lﬂo%k aftsr ‘11;
as it should be looked after, and 1 fear, in consequence, little lxas ele)?n ot}le‘
towards teaching the men to use the Sniders with which they 1ave 1L;en or
some time armed, or towards seeing that they really do the patrolling they are
ordered to do, and I think the sooner a special oﬁ"lqer, a Furopean if possﬂ.)le,
who would devote his whole time to them, is appom’ced, the better.

Annexure 6.

Letter from 1. 4. Anderson, Esq., C.S.L, Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derajat Division, to the Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab, dated Dera
Ismail Khan, 30th January, 1899. .

With reference to this office letter, dated the 4th October, and the
correspondence ending with your letter, dated the 8th instant, I Lave the-

Sth . o
honour to forward a copy of letter, dated 18% instant, from the Politicall

Officers, Tochi and Wana, together with the enclosures, in original, regarding
the settlement of cases in which Government or travellers in the Tochi Valley
were the complainants against the Mahsuds.

2, The recommendations of the Political Officers as to the fines and
compensation to be recovered from the Mahsuds are tabulated in two Appen-
dices, A and B. 1 approve of the joint recommendations of the Political
Officers, and am authorising the Political Officer, Wana, to take steps to
recover the arms recommended to be recovered in the cases in which travellers
are the complainants. In regard to the cases in which Government servants

or property were injured, I solicit early sanction to the recommendations of
the Political Officers.

3. T heg to request that copies of the enclosures, which are submitted in
original, may, when printed, be supplied for the use of this office.

Annexure 7,

Letter from J. G. Lorimer, Esq., C.S., Political Oficer, Tochi Valley, and A. B.
Kettlewell, Esq., C.S., Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner and
Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Tochi, 8th January, 1899, and
Wana, Y0th January, 1899, ’

We have the honour to submit herewith two lists of cases (L. and IL)
showing the Government and travellers’ claims dealt with by us in the
recent jirga of Dauris, Waziris and Mahsuds, held at Bannu. Our recom-
mendations as to the fines and compensation to be realized are tabulated in
two Appendices (A and B) of this letter.

2. It will be observed from the lists that a few cases have been held over-

for further enquiry. When this has been made our joint r i
‘ - ] a recommendation
10 regard to these will be submitted. J ons

3. Where a sum to be recovered is partly a Government fine and partl
compensation. the portion payable as compensation has been made whcr{*
possible, realizable from Waziris and Dauris in order to reduce the delay i
redress to private individuals to a minimum. ¥

4 As some doubte was expressed ags to the advisability
jirgas in Government cases, we beg to quote case No. 1 (3) a= an extreme
instance of this procedure. In this case there was no evidence or information
such as a Government officer could have taken action upor, and the only

of employing
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alternative to taking the cpinion of Maliks was that we should dismiss the
case in limine. We believe that a perusal of the list of Government cases
will show that jirgaz have nowhere been employed by us with prejudice to
the interests of Government. We have not preposed to disroiss any Govern-
ment case in which there iz reliable evidence or informaticn against the
accused.

5. Our recommendations on the lists submitted are scmewhat more
detailed than those conveyed in the Appendices. We would reqjuest that the
orders of Government may be passed upon the recommendations as expressed
in the Appendices, so that we may be left a iree hand as to the distribution
cf the fines or compensation within the 'tm’oe, as Qx_pechency and further
enquiry may indicate, upon particular sections or mdividuals.

6. The final instructions given us for the disposal of cases between
Mahsuds and Dauris were that nothing beyond a friendly tribal settlement
should be attempted. The attempt was made, but was unsuccessiul, and we
believe that from the nature of the case a friendly settlement between
theze two tribes is impossivle. We would suggest that whenever
an opportunity oceurs the cases of the Dauris against the Alah-
suds, together with any cases which the DMahsud:  may have
against the Dauris, should be taken up in the same manmer as the
travellers’ cases against Mahsuds and Wazris have been on the present
cecasion.  The Political Officer, Tochi, conziders that the attitude of the
Dauris to the British Gevernment is at the present time all that could be
dezired, but he doubts whether this desirable state of matters will continue
if Government declines to intervene effectually to obtain reparation for the
Dauris against Mahsud aggressions, especially as Governmert now realises
land revenne from the Dauris.

7. The Political Officer, Tochi, recommends that the claimz of revenue-
paying Waziri villages in the bed of the Tochi, which are practically an
integral part of Daur, should be taken up in the same manner as Dauri cases
proper, but he does not desire to press this point so strongly as these villages
are nct entirely helpless, and are able, to some extent, with the help of their
kinsmen in the hillz, to obtain redress from the Mahsuds.
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control of the Sub-Divisional Officer, Tank, who has no tune to look after 1t
as it should he looked after, and I fear, in consequence, little has been done
towards teaching the men to use the Sniders with which they have been for
some time armed, or towards seeing that they really do the patrolling they are
ordered to do, and I think the sooncr a speeial officer, a Turopean if possible,
who would devote his whole time to them, is appointed, the better.

Annexure 6.

Letter from II. A, Anderson, Esq., C.8.1, Commissioner and Superintendent,.
Derajat Division, to the Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab, dated Dera
Ismail Khan, 30th January, 1899. ‘

With reference to this office letter, dated the 4th October, and the
correspondence ending with your letter, dated the 8th instant, I have the-

honour to forward a copy of letter, dated i%%}ﬁ mstant, from the Politicall

Officers, Tochi and Wana, together with the enclosures, in original, regarding
the settlement of cases in which Government or travellers in the Tochi Valley
were the complainants against the Mahsuds.

2. The recommendations of the Political Officers as to the fines and
compensation to be recovered from the Mahsuds are tabulated in two Appen-
dices, A and B. I approve of the joint recommendations of the Political
Officers, and am authorising the Political Officer, Wana, to take steps to
recover the arms recommended to be recovered in the cases in which travellers
are the complainants. In regard to the cases in which Government servants

or property were injured, I solicit early sanction to the recommendations of
the Political Officers.

_ 3. I'beg torequest that copies of the enclosures, which are submitted in
original, may, when printed, be supplied for the use of this office.

Annexure 7.

Letferyfrom J. G, Lorimer, Esq., C.8., Politicai Officer, Tochi Valley, and A. B.
Ketllewell, Esq., C.S., Political Oficer, Wana, to the Commissioner and

Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Tochi, Sth January, 1899, and
Wana, 10th January, 1899,

' We have the honour to submit herewith two lists of cases (I. and IL)
showmg_ the Government and travellers’ claims dealt with by us in the
recent urga of Dauris, Waziris and Mahsuds, held at Bannu. OQur recom-

tmendations as to the fines and compensation to be realized are tabulated in
two Appendices (A and B) of this letter.

2. It will be observed from the lists that a few cases have been held over:

for further enquiry. When this ha joi ‘
t . s has been made our joint recommendations
1n regard to these will be submitted. .

3. Where a sum to be recovere
compensation, the portion payable
possible, realizable from Wazi)
redress to private individua

d is partly a Government fine and partly
yable as compensation has been made, where
aziris and Daurs in order o reduce the delay in
Is to 2 minimum.

. % As some doubtrwas expressed as to the advisability of employing
Jirgas in Government cases, we beg to quote case No. 1 (3) as an extr)emz
instance of t‘hxs procedure. In this case there was no evidence or information
spch as a Government officer could have tuken action upon, and the‘only
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alternative to taking the opinion of Maliks was that we should dismiss the
case in limine. We believe that a perusal of the list of Government cases
will show that jirgas have nowhere been employed by us with prejudice to
the interests of Government. We have not proposed to dismiss any Govern-
ment case in which there is reliable evidence or informaticn against the
accused.

5. Our recommendations on the lists submitted are scmewhat more
detailed than those conveyed in the Appendices. 'We would request that the
orders of Government may be passed upon the récommendations as expressed
in the Appendices, so that we may be left a free hand as to the distribution
of the fines or compensation within the tribe, as expediency and further
enquiry may indicate, upon particular sections or individuals. |

6. The final instructions given us for the disposal of cases between
Mahsuds and Dauris were that nothing beyond a friendly tribal settlement
should be attempted. The attempt was made, but was unsuccessful, and we
believe that from the nature of the case a friendly settlement between
these two tribés is impossible. We would suggest that whenever
an opportunity occurs the cases of the Dauris against the Mah-
suds, together with any cases which the Mahsud: - may have
against the Dauris, should be taken up in the same manmer as the
travellers’ cases against Mahsuds and Waziris have been on.:the present
occasion. - The Political Officer, Tochi, considers that the attitude of the
Dauris to the British Government is at the present time all that could be
desired, but he doubts whether this desirable state of matters will continue
if Government declines to intervene effectually to obtain reparation for the
Dauris against Mahsud aggressions, especially as Government now realises
land revenue from the Dauris.

. 7. The Political Officer, Tochi, recommends that the claimi of revenue-
paying Waziri villages in the bed of the Tochi, which are practically an
mtegral part of Daur, should be taken up in the same manner as Dauri cases
proper, but he does not desire to press this point so strongly as these villages
are not entirely helpless, and are able, to some extent, with the help of their
kinsmen in the hills, to obtain redress from the Mahsuds.
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p Sub-Divisional Officer, Tank, who has no time to look after 1t
23111?2111 slflf{lewazgk]e)cl after, and I fear, in consequence, little h_as been dop’e‘
towards teaching the men to use the Sniders with which they have becrt .h\u
some time armed, or towards seeing that they really do the patrolling thtiy' are
ordered to do, and I think the sooner a speqlal officer, a Luropean if pOt»hlblB,
who would devote his whole time to them, is appointed, the better.

Annexure 6.

Letter from 1. A. Anderson, Bsq., C.8.L, Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derajat Division, to the Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab, dated Dera
Ismail Khan, 80th January, 1899, ‘

With reference to this office letter, dated the 4th October, and the
correspondence ending with your letter, dated the 8th instant, I have the-

Sth , "
honour to forward a copy of letter, dated jm- instant, from the Political

Officers, Tochi and Wana, together with the enclosures, in_ original, re_garding
the settlement of cases in which Government or travellers in the Tochi Valley
were the complainants against the Mahsuds.

2. The recommendations of the Political Officers as to the fines and
compensation to be recovered from the Mahsuds are tabulated in two Appen-
dices, A and B. T approve of the joint recommendations of the Political
Officers, and am authorising the Political Officer, Wana, to take steps to
recover the arms recommended to be recovered in the cases in which travellers
are the complainants. In regard to the cases in which Government servants

or property were injured, I solicit early sanction to the recommendations of
the Political Officers.

3. Theg to request that copies of the enclosures, which are submitted in
original, may, when printed, be supplied for the use of this office.

Annexure 7.

Letter from J. G. Lorimer, Esq., C.S., Political Officer, Tochi Valley, and A. B.
Ketllewell, Lsg., C.S., Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner and

Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Tochi, 8th January, 1899, and
Wana, 10th January, 1899,

We have the honour to submit herewith two lists of cases (I. and IIL)
showing the Government and travellers’ claims dealt with by us in the
vecent jirga of Dauris, Waziris and Mahsuds, held at Bannu. = Qur recom-

mendations as to the fines and compensation to be realized are tabulated in
two Appendices (A and B) of this letter.

2. It will be observed from the lists th
for further enquiry. When this has
In regard to these will be submitted.

at a few cases have been held over-
been made our joint recommendations

3. Where a sum to be recovered i

/ : s partly a Government fine and partl
compensation, the portion payable as compensation has been made %vherg
possible, realizable from Waziris an ’

d Dauris in order to rec elay i
‘ : > from ] E 1 to reduce the delay
redress to private individuals to a minimum. y

4. As some doubtr was ex
3 ‘48 exproes i
oo of employing
Jxx%as in (f}gl\zgernnleng cases, we beg to quote case No. 1 (3) as an el‘;tx?cmz
instance ol this procedure.  In this case there wa. vi or informati
. 3 "Ie wWas no evidence or information
‘ :
such as a (iovernment officer could have tuken action upon, and the only

sed as to the advisability
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alternative to taking the opinion of Maliks was that we should dismiss the
case in limine. We believe that a perusal of the list of Government cases
will show that jirgas have nowhere been employed by us with prejudice to
the interests of Government. We have not proposed to dismiss any Govern-
ment aase in which there is reliable evidence or information against the
accused.

5. Our recommendations on the lists submitted are sowewbat more
detailed than those conveyed in the Appendices. We would request that the .
orders of Government may be passed upon the recommendations as expressed
in the Appendices, so that we may be left a free hand as to the distribution
of the fines or compensation within the tribe, as expediency and further
enquiry may indicate, upon particular sections or individuals.

6. The final instructions given us for the disposal of cases between
Mahsuds and Dauris were that nothing beyond a friendly tribal settlement
should be attempted. - The attempt was made, but was unsuccessful, and we
believe that from the nature of the case a friendly settlement between
these two tribes is impossible. We would suggest that whenever
an_ opportunity occurs the cases of the Dauris against: the Mah-
suds, together with any cases which the Mahsuds - may have
against the Dauris, should be taken up in the same manner as the
travellers’ cases against Mahsuds and Waziris have been on,the present
occasion.  The Political Officer, Tochi, considers that the attitude of the
Dauris to the British Government is at the present time all that could be
desired, but he doubts whether this desirable state of matters will continue
if Government declines to intervene effectually to obtain reparation for the
Dauris against Mahsud aggressions, especially as Government 'now realises
land revenue from the Dauris.

7. The Political Officer, Tochi, recommends that the claimg of revenue-
paying Waziri villages in the bed of the Tochi, which are practically an
integral part of Daur, should be taken up in the same manner as Dauri cases
proper, but he does not desire to press this point so strongly as these villages
are not entirely helpless, and are able, to some extent, with the help of their
kinzmen in the hills, to obtain redress from the Mahsuds.
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Anuexure 8.

APreNnix A.

Fines to be vealised {n (foverionent cases.

E. = Kubuli.
B. = British.

e Tribe., No. of Case. Amount of Fine. REMARKS.
' Rs.
Mahsuds «os | Jalal Ehels . I 5 | 10008 or Government fine as compluinant
500 B., and one does not desire an amicable
Martini-Henry settlement with his brother’s
rifle of good murderer.
quality ingood
condition.
Do. s I8 3008, .. Payable as cowpensation to
owners,
Do. e 118 450B. .. Government fine.
Do. v 115 350 B. Rupees 210 Government fine.
Ks, 140 compensation to-
owners,
Do. 117 5068, .. Government fine.
Total ... | 2,600 B.
or
2,100 B. and a rifle,
Shabi Khels I12 400 B. Government-fine.
Do. " 116 |1,0008. Rupees 800 Government fine.
Ra. 200 compensation to levy
Sowar.
Total ... {1,400 B.
Marsanzais 17 120B. .. Payable to Dauris fined,
Waziris o | Bakka Khels .. 11 1B Payable to Government, which
; advanced ransom money.
Mohmit Khels ., Is 150 B. Payable to owners s compensi-
tion.
Do. Ii7 500B. .. Rupees 300 payable to heirs of
deceased and Ra. 200 to Com-
mipsariat. i
Total 650 B,
Tori Khels 113 300B. .. Payable as compensation for
levy disabled,
Dauria ... ' auri \ .
Dauris ... I3 150 B. Government fine.

J. G. Lonmmzg,

Political Officer, Tochi.

A. B Kerreewenn,

Political Officer, Wuna,
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’ Annexure 9.

ArpeExpix DB.

Compensalion to he vealized in Travellers' cases.

B. = British,
K. = Kabuli.
Compensation
— Tribe. No. of Case. payable to BEMARRS.
Complainants.
) Rs,
Mahsuds ... | Jalal Khels ( I 1 83 B.
Do. ol g 3 B,
Do. . I3 | & B
Do. o6 | 130 K
}
Do v Im 7 | 30 B
Do. I 9 | 100 B
}
Do. - W10 | 20 B
|
Do. . 1113 534 K.
: 162 K,
Do. . 11 14
|| 500 B.
Do. v 17 | 40 B.
Do. - 118 | 2054 K.
Do. e M2l | 193 K.
Do. = 22 | 400 B.
Total .. ; - 2,148 B. and 744 K,
i
Marsanzai ... ; I s 7 B,
Waziris... .. | Mohmit Khels ... o 2 50 B.
Do. e | 13 53} K.
Da. ! 18 | 2054 K.
¥
Do, e | a2 | 200 B.
Total — 250 B. and 259 K,
Tori Khels... v ) ) ] 30 B.
t
Dauris ... ... | Dauris ; IT 35 23 B,
x
}
J. G. LORIMER, ‘ A. B. KerrrewkLe,
Political Officer, Tochi. Political Officer, Wana.
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Annexure 10.

List No, L

Tnjury lo Qoavernmend Servants vr Governnment Property.

Korind

No,

1

Tonhd Regrintor
Na, of Cane,
with Year,

Plove snd Dt of
Ooenrrenen,

Complainnnts in
dotail,

Aconsed (Tritie only).

fond g (807 ..,

Fobyuary, 1847,

!
$th
Tth

I

Soor Kamr; 4th April,
IRG7,

D235 1867 L

1
{ [
: 1
' i
! {
: {
: t
. {
. t
| |
[ H
| i
| i
!
|
PEER L IRST L, Soor Kaur ; Toth July,

ENg7,

i .
Suddgl Militury  Poat s | Buda Singhy Sub.Ovore

reer,  Publio Works
Department,
Fanpross .. e s

Fanpress .,

’ Gurl Kbols

€rs "ae

Jalsl Khels aud Abdul-

ain,

dalel Khels and Abdul-

Tais,

Allack en

Proporby tulken ov
othor Dumage,

Opinion of Political Offieers, Toehi wind Wunn,

Theft of n pony, which

wak  recovered  for

Rx, 81,

dik  olcka,

nwrdor of  Mualuune
mudn conchinan,
waounding Hholn,

Bhishti, and killing
vkka !umyund robhery
of mixeelluneous pro.
perty worlhe Ru, 143,

Pheft of 12 cnweln and

firing shotn on Mijti-
by pursuil party, io
which & sepoy  was
wotnded,

Cave dimodssed ny againet Mahsuds, Money shonld bo recsvered framm Gulude,

Hakka Khel,
3, L Lowiaien,

A B Kerriewent,
Politisad Othlenr, Tochi,

Tolitionl Gilleer, Waba,

Dated Bannu, 8rd December, 1898,

Ta thix oase tho Toohi Waziris concorned mnke no elnim smyeninet,. Mabsode,  The
Duuris interested olujm gguinst Jalnd Khele, QGul Kban, Bardkezad, and D
Mubmwnnd, DBanei Mafiks, oonsider that 8bekh Mansur, Daori Malik, should
e adlowed to pab forwarxd two withesses who either vessmrived the wecased m
the time of owuteage or heard the necused it their goill afterwands Talib,
Ablur Ralnean Khel Mabsnd Malik, thioks auth of innocence xhould be tuken
froue the geonsad nind Knrend ned Karim Kluouy, Jadnd Kbol Mabsad Maliks,
Rhoklh Mansue bus wlowed hix witnesses to go home, nd aven if they were
present wo shiould not with regard to alsence of cantivnmtion by eirenmstantial
avidoneo or otharwiso be prepared to neeept theiv festimony.  We consider this
cuno nob provad gemingd the Mubisuds,  Fiones Jmve alrewdy Jween vendiced from
Deuriz and Lochi Wazivin,

aa

J. 6, Loniven,

A, B. KerrnrweLs,
Politien Otticer, Toeli,

Politien] Ofiver, Wana,

Dated Bamug, 25th Deocnber, 15395,

The jivga fn this ense nve given the aath o Zekke Wla, Ghailsolio aud Zavees
Khnn, wceneed, nnd their Malik Kocioe Khoa, and the oath of inpecener hins
boeen duly taken in the presence of the Jirgpa, We conxider the e not proved
against the nceusedd Mahsouls,

JoGL Lonane,

AL Kerreswens,
Palitivnl Otfeer, Vochi,

Politient Ofticer, Wann,

:

Bunnw, 8th Devemnbar, (808,

|



o

Lo

5053 1807 ..,

Soor Kamr; 19th Aung,
18497,

Parmat graveyard be-
tween Ajam chanki
and Saidgi Post.

Empress..
{

Ewnpress through—
(1) Khanbad  Shah,
Bakka Khel.
(2) Nandram, son of
Beli Ram, Narola.
(3) Bam Dyal, son of
Dasa Ram, Golati.
(1) Ram Lal, son of
Pritam Dps, Bhag-
gat, of Jdok.

Abdnliai, Khnshali (Tori
Khels) and Mobmit !
Khels, ]

Jalal Khel and Marsan-
zad,

Attack on dik ekka,
murder of 2 sepoys of;
25th Punjab Intantry,’
a conchman and Tele-
graph Signaller and
carrying off 2 Martini-
Henry rifies.

Murder of Murad Shah,
Jamadar, Levies,
Saidgi, and carrying
off his Martini-Henry
rifle, with R=. 68 cash
and other property
worth Ra, 44-1-0 from
Nos. 2 to 4.

In thig case the Tochi Waziris concerned claimed against Abdullai Mahsuds on

the ground that Amr Din and Abdullahnir and Limar, Allullai lohar, took
partin outrage, Avbitrators appointed as hetween Abdullais and Waziris found
that the Abdullais could clear themselves by oath of following compurgators :
(1) Fazal, (2) Mamak. (3) Zaffar Khan, (4) Azim, Maliks, (5) Darre, (8) Zarghun
Shah, (7) Gul Shah, (8) Usman, Abndallais, to effect that Lhe three Abdullais
named dild not take part in the offence nur stenl the rifles.  Darre, Amam, Fazl,
Mamak, Zatfar. Gul Shah and Zarghun Shah, Abdullais, who are present, are
willing to take oath that the vifles lost have never come In any way iute the
possession of Awmr Din, Abdullahmir or Limar.  We do not consider i6 necessary
thut this oath should be taken. The Dauris claimed against Jalal Khels,
especially Mohubbat, and opinions were taken from Aba Khan, Marwat, Talib,
Abdurrohman Khel Malik, and Mirai, Darpa Khel. The Muarwat Mulik con-
siders that Jalal Khel acoused with two Maliks and seven Motabars should take
onth of compurgation. The Mahsud Malik considers that onth of aceused and one
Julal Khel Malik will be sufficient, while the Dauri Malik would allow the
Dauris to produce two witnesses who either saw the accused committing the
oifence or heard them admit their guilt.  We have heard the witnesses produced
by the Dauris, Jusim Gul and Mad Amir. They are not men of any position,
nnd we do nob consider their testimony reliable,  Their story is that Mohabbat,
Jalal Khel, snid in their presence that of the two rifles lost one was with the
Jalal Khels and one with the Tuanis, and that both could he recovered on pny-
ment of Rs. 2,000, This story i3 in itself improbable for several veasons.
Kargai and Karim Kban, Jalal Khel Maliks, are willing to tuke oath that
neither of the rilles ever came mmong the Jalal Khels, We consider the charges
ayainst Abdullais and Jalal Kbels in thiy cuse not proved. A large fine has
already been recovered from the Dauris, Mohmit Khels and Tori Khels.

A. B, KETTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wann.

J. G, LORIMER,
Political Oficer, Tochi.

In this case the relatives of the deceased Levy Jumadar, Murad Shah, have from the

first consistently stated that the murder was committed by Aki Khan, Jalal Khel,
who was accompanied ot the time by a gang consisting mostly of Jaulal Khels
but including also one Marsanzai Mahsud, and at least one Tori Khel Waziri,
Aki Khan’s defence in that the ¢laim was suggested to the Bukka Khels by
Dawar Khan, Shabi Khel, o personal enemy of his and one of the principal
witnesses against him. The Jalal Khel Maliks present allege. the exisicnce of
bitter enmity bebween Bakka Khels and Jalal Khels owing to o successtul 1aid
by the former on the latter some years ago, in which they say three Jalal Khels
were killed. We do not consider the enmity of Dawar Khan against Aki
Khan nor the tribal enmity, if such exists between Bakka Khels and Jalal
Khels, sufficient to discredit entirely Khan Bad Shal’s claim and evidence. He
must know who the murderers of his brother really were, and we cannot
suppose thut in order to please Duwar Khan or gratify the ill-feeling of his
tribe against the Jalal Khels he would suppress his claim against the real
murderers and bring it against a mixed gang of Jalal Khels and others. We

15
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List No. I- ~continued}

Infury to Government Servants or Government Properfy-—continued.

arint | Tochi Register
'\‘;\':LM ! No. of Case,
- } with Year.

|

Place and Date of
Orenrrence.

Property taken or

Complainants in
i other Damage.

dotail Accused (Tribe only).

Opinion of Political Officers, Tochi and Wana.,

|
i
|

61 a0 s ...

71165 1898 ...

i

Post Saidgi

nary, 1848,

Kajuri Post ;

aury, 1808,

17th
ists T

10th o
20t 0

Theft of two officers’
ponies, recovered by
Levy pursnit party.

Abdullai, Umar XKhel,
Shabi Khel, Marsanzai
and Tori Khel.

Euwpress... ;
:
1
I
i
i
|

i
j

i .
! Mursanzat Attempt to break
‘ through the wall of
. ’ Kajuri Post.,

therefore consider that Aki Xhan or his section should be held responsible for
the murder, and in our opinion a suitable order would be that the Jalul Khels
should either pay a fine of Rs. 1,000 to Gtovernment, or a #ine of Rs. 500 and
surrender a Martini-Heary rifle of goud gaality and in good conditien.

J. G. LORINER,
Political Officer, Tochi.

A, B. KEYTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wana,

Banuu, 25th December, 1898,
Further particulars of wounded thict have heer Furnished hy Atlas Khan.

formerly Civil Officer, Saidgi, who saw him, and file made gver to Politival
Otfficer, Wana, who will endeavour to identify the man.

o
(4]

h

J. G, Loriaee,
Politieal Officer, Tochi,

A, B. KETPLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wana.

Bannu, 25tk December, 1898,

After reading the pupers and seeing Ghasze's wound we are sutisfied that Gliazze
is the man who attempted to break into the Kajuxri Post and was wounded it sa
doing. The wound is in the place assigned to it by the informatiou before
Ghazze had been seen by any Governmment Officer. In this case a fine of Rs. 150
was collected from the Waziris and Dauriy adjoining Kajuri. Rupees 60
recovered from the Tori Khels should remain on them as they were accomplices,
but tho Rs. 120 puid by the Dauris thould be recovered from Ghazze and repuid
to the Dauris.

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Tocki.

A. B. KETTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wamna.

Banuu, 8th December, 1838



.ie )

8 1 348; 1898 ... | Near Boya Post; 9th { Bhai Khan, son of | Jalul Khels
' February, 1598, ; Zaman, of Isa Klvel; |
! i
| 1
! ,
; i
!
i

i

Theft of seven camels | The ceven camels were traced by Folitical Officer, Toshi, and party next morning
with property worth to the Zuri Narai Pass leading out of Tochi into Khaisor (Mehmmit Khel conntry).
Rs. 73,  Ome camel Alizai, Mohunit Khel, then hamsaya of Khan Mubhammad Khan of Muhambud

I
i
Ramzan, son of Mu- L . A X : ' ;
hammad Zaman ; Bar- i died with the nccused iKhel, a well known agent of the Jalal Khels in the Tochi, was =ent to look for
t
i
L
i
|
!

]
£ kbhurdar of Kuarra and the rest (=ix) re- the camels, He returned the fifth day and reported that he had found six of
i Kaullo (Isa Khel Tah- covered on payment thein wich Mamak and Amldar, Bhittannis of Surataks in Band. 'The Political
1; sil) ; and Ali Khan, of ransom, Rs. 370 Ofticer, Wana, has been unable to obtain any confirmation of this story aud
! Orderly, Political British coin. considers it intrinsically highly improbable, Ou the other hand. Nuzr Shah,
| Officer. : a Bhittanui Malik, states that his sonsaw six of the camels with the Julal Khels.
! | _ i Momazzi, Machi Khel Mobmit Khel Malik, reported that not long after the luss
that he had seen camels, probably those in question,among the Jalal Khels, and
Nazir Khano and Ali Khel, his companions, have corruborated this. There scems
no doubt that the camels were stolen by Jalal Khels with connivance of
) Mohmit Khels, and probably of Alizai himself. Rs. 370 rausom and Rs 80
} value of one camel (total Hs. 450) remain to be recovered. We recommend
] .

that Rs. 300 be recovered from the Jalal Khels and Rs. 150 from the Mohmit
Khels of Khaisor,

A. B. KETTLEWELL. J. G. LORIMER,
- Political Officer, Wanu. Political Otficer, Tochi.

Bannn, 25th Deeember, 1898,

9 1327; 1308 ... | Near water spring on ; Empress...

... | Abdullai, Garrerai and | Murder of Tabibulla,

L Political Officer, Wana, will make enguiries into thiz case, and, if possible, the
the Spin Chilla route ; * Guliram, Tuaji Khel sepoy of 35rd Punjab Khidder Khels and 3Manzar Khels will be sent to Wana to prosecute their claim,
1st March, 1893, : outlaw. {  Infantry, and robbery File made over to Political Officer, Wana.

‘ of 41 Commissariat
goats worth Rs. 286, A. B. KETTLEWELL, J. G. LORIMER,

Political Officer, Wana. Political Oficer, Tochi.
Bannu, 25th December 1898,

10 | 135; 1898 ... | Spina PungainShindar;| Do. .. .. .. { Nazar Khel, Abdullai, | Firing shots on Cavalry

> Political Officer, Wana, will make enquiries in this case. Yile made over to
26th March, 18Y3, Haibat Khel. grass - cutting party, Political Officer, Wana. .
wounding a sowar, a ’
horse, and killing a A. B. KERITLEWELL, J. G. LORIMER,
mule. Political Officer, Wana. Political Oflicer, Tocki.
Bannu, 25th December, 1893.
L .. .. Suidgi;ll——;tiApxil, 1898 | . Do. ... | Marsanzai <. | Theftof a rifle from the

File made over to Political Officer, Wana, who will make further euquiries as to

whether Zarif Khan, Marsanzai, was wounded in the commission of an offence
in the Tochi.

1st Punjab Infantry.

A. B. KETTLEWELL, J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Wana. Political Officer, Tochi.

Bannu, 25th December, 1898,




- List No. L—continued.

Ljury to Government Servants or Government Property ~continued.

; !
i1
. . ! Tochi Register | . <
Scrial | g | Place sod Date of ( omplainants in : Property taken or s s : -
~No. : 1::32 gfl%;s;e, i Oceurrence. dotail. Acoused (Tribe only). other Drmage. Oplm‘on of Political Officers, Tochi and Wana.
! i
! { -
; 22nd . . : : . : . . X .

12 | 370; 1898 ... | Post Idak; T April, | Empress... - . | Shabi Khel ... ... | Prowling of thieves near | We agree that there is very little doubt that Guljang was wounded in the Tochi

f 1808 T post and wonnding of while prowling near Idak Military Post with criminal intentions, We recom-
A a thief by a Levy mend a fine of Rs. 400 to be rccovered, if possible, from Guljngz, who is
sentry. understood to be a personal adherent of the Mullah Powindah. The Mullah
Powindah has sent a letter admitting that he was wounded in the Tochi, hut
pretending it was done by thieves,
4. B. KETTLEWELL, J. G. LORIMER,
Political Offcer, Wana, Political Officer, Tochi.
Rannu, 25th December, 1838,

15 i 352 1898 ... | Boar Kamr; 27th May, Do. .. e en | Jalnl Khels, Marsanzai, | Attack on Panjabi | We are agreed in this case on a consideration of the evidence and circumstanecs

! 1898, and  Khushali Tori coolies and wounding generally and of the opinions submitted hy the Maliks nominated by ns thay

Khels. Guljanab Foot Levy, the Julal Khels were nndoubtedly concerned in thix raid. and that thay reccived

and carrying off his assistance from the Tori Khels living sonth of the Tochi. We consider that a
musket, fine of Rs, 900 shonld be hinposed, of which Is, 450 should be payable by Jalal

i Khels, Rs. 300 by Tori Khels, and Rs, 150 by Dauris, the latier having failed to

; makﬁe a proper endeavounr to trace the eriminals,

H

{ A. B. KETTLEWELL, J. G. Lorsier,

‘ . Politieal Officer, Wana. Politieal Officer, Tochi.

; Banan, 25th December, 1838,

IS BN IETCI Lt Ofiu},lfgbd rOi;?h")etWeen Do .. “ oo | Jalul Khela . ... | Attack on Public Works | The Maiike appointed by us to give an opinion are nnable to pive one, and the
| a mad . el and Department coolies tile ix made over to Political Officer, Wana, for further enyniry as to the alleged
| o ; 26th June, : and theft of shovels, { death of Pilod, Jalal Khel.

i Bo%. pickaxes, &e., and

i robbery of coolies A. B, KETTLEWELL, J. G. LorIMER,

| clothes. Political Offieer, Wana, Politicnt Officer, Tochi,
Bannn, 25th December, 1898,

a4
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© 5615 1898 ...

489 ; 1895 ..,

in the limits of Land
Daur; lith July, 1893,

On high road one mile

east of Idak Post; |

4th August, 1898,

Near Boya; 17th August,
18938,

‘Hinjarki Khwala with. | Empress

{
i

|
|

through
Landwals.
Empress...
Empress...

11 } Jalal Khels

K
k

.
i
!
i
|
|
:

Shabi Khel, Abdullai
and Jalal Xhels,

Jala Khels, Alizai (out-
law) and Pila, Moh-
mit Khels.

Theft of seven bullocks
and firing shots on
Cavalry pursuit parby.
One bullock wus re-
covered for Rs. 13
ransom.

Attack on Levy Com-
mandant’s baggage
camels and carrying
off the camels, which
were recovered by levy
pursuit party,and kill-
ing a mare of a levy
sowar,

Murder of Commissariat
shepherd and robbery
of 42 sheep and goats.

We are agreed that the Jalul Khels committed this raid. The chief Danri Malik
of Laud is prepared to take oath thatl the caltle of his village wers raided by
Jalal Khwls, who also fired at the cavalry pursuit party, Karim Khan, Jalal
Khel Malik, is not prepared to swear, even slong with the accased Balai, that
a bullock lost by the Dauriz on this occasion was not recovered or ransomed
from Balai. We rccommend, therefore, that a fine of Rs. 350 be imposed on
Jalal Khels, out of which Iis, 140 will be payable to Dauri owners of cattle as
compensation.

J. G. LOoRIMER.
Political Officer, Tochi.

A. B. KETTLEWELL.
Political Officer, Wana.

Bannu, 25th December, 1898,

We agres that the leader in this daring attack on the Levy Commandant’s camsels
was Aziz, Shabi Khel, who is present here to-day. The information regarding
the other members of the gang is not sufficiently definite to warrant action
being taken ngainst them. The fight between the raiders and the levies, who
nltimitely prevented the camels being taken away, lasted a considerable time,
and a large number of shots were fired, which conld be distinctly henrd in
Idak Post. Political Officer, Tochi, considers that the raid is one which calls
for severe notice. There was a levy gunrd with the baggage, and in spite of
the guard being well armed with muzzle-loaders the raiders most obstinately
endeavuured to carry the matter through, and succeeded in taking the camels
a distance of two miles before they were recovered. A levy sowar's horse
worth about Bx, 200 was killed. We recommend a fine of Rs. 1,000 be imposed
on Aziz, Shabi Khel. If it cannot be recovered from him, it should be recovered
from Shabi Khels, Of this Rs. 200 should be payable as compensation to the
sowar who lost his horse,

A, B, XETTLEWELL,

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Wana.

Political Officer, Tochi.
Bannu, 25th December, 1898,

In this case the opinion of the Mahsud Munsif is that the Jalal Khels should be
given oath of innocence.
who state that they saw the stolen goats in Yargul's possession, ghouid be
allowed to tuke oath on Koran to this. In view of these opinions and circum-
stances of case and result of enguivies, we consider that the Jalal Khels and
Mobmit Khels of Khaisor are both implicated, and that the fine should be paid
in equal shares, As the case is a serious one, the Commissariat shepherd having
been murdered in afternoon at a distance of 700 yurds from Boya Post, we
recommend a fine of Rs. 1,000 to be divided as ubove.

A. B. KETTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wana.

J. G, LORIMER,
Political Officer, Tochi.

Bannu, 26th December, 1898.

The other two Munsifs think that the two witnesses, -
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Annexure 11.

List No. IL.

Dyury to Travellers in the Daur Valley.

! To_chi Register

Serial T Place and Date of
Xo. }:‘g t§ flfg;; "" QOccurrence,
——
1] 2387 Laka Ghundi; 30th

2/ 108 5 1806

A62; 1807

Oatober, 1895,

i

,{ Near Laka Ghundi;
{  30th November, 1896,
P

|

1]

|

" Beri Khwala, Hamzoni,
in January or Fel-
ruary, 18v7.

Complainants in
detail,

Accused (Tribe only).

Property taken or
other Damage.

Opinion of Political Officers, Tochi and Wana.

Mohy-nd-din, and
Bandar Shah and
Sanam Khan, son of
Khan Baddarof Fatma
Khetl,

Gulmat Khan, son of
Allahdad, nnd Nazar
Khan, son of Aikam
Xhan, Paipalis of Bir-
mal.

Amir, son of Ihm, Saidgi,
of Dande plain,

Badr-ud-din, son of!

Jalal Khels

Do.

{

i

{ One camel,

Eleven donkeys with

yproperty.

Two camels worth Rs,
2060 Kabuli,

1 gun, 1
nistol with property.

]
!
i
i

In this ease the jirga are agreed that decree in favour of eomylainant shonld be
passed against Jalal Khels for as many donkeys as compluinant takes oath to
having lost at Rs. 8 per donkey. We approve of this finding, which Is unanimons.
Oath taken by complainant that 11 donkeys were stolen. We, therefore,
recommend a decree for Rs. 88 Sikka be passed against Jalal Kheis,

A, B, KETTLEWELL,

J. G. LoRIMER,
Political Officer, Wana,

Political Officer, Tochi.
Bannu,

Tn this case the jirga are divided. The travellers” munsifs consider that the Julal
Khels are responsible for the whole of the loss, as the camels admittedly came
into the possession of Soi, Jalal Xhel. The munsifs for the Mahsuds give it as
their opinion that the thieves were Mir Gul, his brother and unother mun, all of
Thal village in Tochi, and that Soi only assisted in disposing of the stolen
camels and is only responsible for Rs. 16, The Rarpanches recommend that Soi
and nine other Jalal Khels should prove his assertion on oath. and on esndition
of doing so should pay Rs. 10 only. The facts as discloset show that the
Mohmit Khels of Thal 2nd at least one Jala! Khel were in thia raid, and we
consider that Rs, 50 should be realized from each tribe and paid to complaivant.

A. B, KEETTLEWELL.

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Wana,

Political Officer, Tochi.

Banmu, 25th December, 1893.

Jirga unanimously recommend a decree for Bs. £0 KEabuli being pacsed in favour
of complainant against Jalal Khels.
We approve of finding, which ia nnanimous,

J. G. Lonmves,

A, B KETTLEWELL,
Politienl Offiear, Tochi

Politicul Officer, Wann,

Banon, 25th December, 1893,
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273 5 1897

3585 1897

3755 1
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604 ...

Tochi

Bed south of | Anab, son of ('Eum&l, |

... 12th R Arsalas Khan, Ghulam
Khiddi ; 13th April, Shah, Glm.teye, son of
1897, Saroghai, Umarzai

Camp Miram Shah;

28th q 1o
Fote April, 1897,

Wuzi Spring near Boya; | Aman Shah, son

6th
— Muay, 1897,
Tth

Palosin grazing-ground
near Boya ; 15th Octo-

ber, 1897.

L Waziris of Pirmals
villawe (Bannu Dis-
trict).

Allahyar, son of Umed
Ali;, of Mianwali,
Ahmad,sonof Manjhi,
Savwuns of Mianwali,

of
Boyak, of Xot Kastirai
(Khushali).

Yaghi Khan, Mir Al

son of Bokhan, Sirakki
Afridi  of Gandi
(Kohat).

Jalal Khels and
Khels.

Tori

Marsanzai sub-section of

Abdullais and Tori

Khels,

Jalal Khels e

Do.

Six camels worth
Rs. 670 and property
worth Rs. 22-8.0,

Three camels worth
Ra. 320 British coin.

Five camels (recovered
on Rs, 150 Kabuli
bhunga).

Theft of four camels ...

}

Complainant admits having received full satisfuction. Case may be filed.

A. B, KETTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wana,

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Tochi.
Bannu, 26th December, 1898,

Jirga bave unanimously found that if three persons who are snid to have scen two
of the stolen camels in the possession of Zorif, Marsanzai, will take outh to this
offeot, Zarif should be considered guilty. The required onth has been taken in
our presence, and we recommend that Ks, 75 be recovered from Zarif or those
responsible for him, and from the Tori Khels and Dauris territorially responsible
Rs. b0 and Rs. 25 respectively, the value of the emmnels having been fixed at
Rs. 50 each by the jirga.

A, B, KETTLEWELY,
Political Officer, Wuna.

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Cochi,
Bannu, 265h December, 1898,

Jirge in this case recommend that decres for Rs. 130 Kabuli be passed in favour
of complainant against Jalal Khels.
We approve of finding.

A. B. KETTLEWELL,
" Political Officer, Wana.

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Tochi.

Bannu, 25th December, 1848,

In this cnse we agree with finding of majority of jirga, which is that with regard
to four camels the complainant should take cath to that loss, and that he saw
them in possession of Jalal Khels. As regards remaining two camels, seven
Jalal Khels should be allowed to take onth of innocence.

The required oaths have been taken in our presence, and we find the claim for
four camels apainst the Jalal Khels proved and the clawm for the other two
not proved. Wa velue the camels at Rs. 756 each, and recommend a decree for
Ras. 300 against Julal Khels in complainants’ favour.

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Tochi,

A, B. KETTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wana.
Bannu, 26th December, 1598,

eg.



List No.

11.—continued.

Injury to Travellers in'the Dawr Valley—continued. » R

Sc{ial

No.

Tochi Reyristar

No, of Case,
with Year.

Place and Date of
Oceurrence.

Coraplainants in
detail.

Accused (Tribe only).

Property taken or
other Damage.

. Opinién of Political Officers, Tochi and Wanal ™ *~

2

| B31; 1898 ..,
;

I
i
|
)
2

563; 189% ..,

,/

|

|
;
i
;

B [582; 1898 .. | Raghzai Wuzi mear

Boia; Zith October,
1897,

Tut Shiga; 2ith October,
1897,

| Samie Kournear Khutti

Killa; 5th December,
1897,

Mamande, Rahwman,
Pirgai, sons of Miran,
Malikshabis of Kur-
ram,

Tor Gul and Muhammad
Roz, son of Said Gul,
Putban of Bhanamari
(Peshawar).

Bade, son of Muhahhat;
Sakn, son of Said;
R izak. von of Rahmat,
Kharotas of Saroba
Wargun,

7

Jalal Khels

Jalal Khels and Gul
Ram, Taji Khel,
outlaw,

Julal Khels .

Two hundred sheep and
goats, and murder of
Pushak, and theft of
one mare.

Seven :donkeys and
Rs, 41 casb.
Four camels worth

Ra. 485 Nandrami.

The jirga with one exception are of opinion that this should be trested asan
. inter-tribal case and not as a traveller’s case.
We agree in this opinion.

A. B. KETTLEWELL,

J. G. LormesR,
Political Officer, Wana,

Political Officer, Tochi.

Bannu, 25th December, 15898,

In this case we agree with the majority of the jirga, who are of opinion that
complainant should be given oath as to amount of his loss, and that he and vpe
companion should take o1th that they saw the stolen property in the popsession
of Pir Muvhommad, Jalal Khel. Complainant bas taken ovath that he was
robbel of xeven donkeya and Rs. 41 in cash, and bhe and s compasion huve
taken osuth thar they 2w the stolen property in possession of Pir Mubamnuud,
Julal Khel. We consider that decree for Re, 100 should be passed in favour of
complainant against Jalal Khel Mahsuds,

A, B, KETTLEWELL,

J. G, LORIMER,
Political Officer, Wana.

Political Officer, Tochl

Bannu, 7th January, 1399,

Majority of jirga in this case bave found that complainants should be given oath
as to the amount of their lo<s, and as to the fact of the stalen ecamels having
beon seen by them in the possession of Aki Khan and Shah Baheam, Julal Khel
Mahsads, We eousider thita proper finding. Two compluinauts have tiken
onth that they were rolibed of four eamels which they subscquently saw in the
possession of Aki Khan aud Shah Bahram, Jalal Khels  We recoinmend that
decree for Ra. 20 be passed in favour of those complainants ngainst the Jalal
Khels. The othter compininant lost ouly miseellaneous property of small valie.

A. B, KETTLEVELL,

J. G. Lontvgn,
Political OJicer, Wana,

Politieal Officer, Tochi

Bannu, 7th Janunary, 1599,

12
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Spin Chilla; 8th Janu-

Arhzan Killa; 26th
Janunry, 1898,

Zor Hill, 1} miles north
of Lak Ghundi;

ry

Sikandar.sonof Paindah,
caste Bidwal, of Jabai
Akhora, Tahsil Fatsh-
jang, District Rawal-
pindi, Daffadar, Com-
missariat,

Sheran, son of Sarwar,
Kharoti, of Iaibat
Killa (Bannu),

Ninz Gnl, Adamzai, sons
of Pirzada  Dosalli,
Mohmit  Khels of
Khaisore,

Sherjan, son of Khoda-
dird: Ghasi Khan, son
of Nok Kadam ; and
Mazullah, sonof Shin-
skai, Akn Khel Sule-
man Kheldof Takwara,
Tank Tahsil, Distriot
Dern Ismail Khan,

Jalal Xhels, Abdnllais
and Guliram, Waziri

Theft of o camel with:

property worth
R, 133-12-0,

One cnmol e

Two osmals (roonvered
on piymentof Ra, 107
Nandrami bhunga).

Robbhory of 18 camels
and property worth
Rs. 51,

Three eamels rocovered
on bhunga of a Ra, 220
Kabuli; 1 camel re-
covered from Khidder
Khels for Rs, 60.

Rest (14) are =till with

. the accused; alsc

¢ properby.,

In this cnse the jirgn is of opinion that Karim Khan, Jalal Xhel Malik, should be
given oath that he never said that this camel wns stalen by Shadar Gnl and
that he knows nothing about it. and that aceused should be given oath that
they did not stoal the camel and know nothing aboud it.

We axroe with the jirga.

The prescribod onths have boen tuken, and we considor that the claim must Le
Ainminsed.

A, B, Krerumiweny,
Political Ofticor, Wiaun,

J. ¢. Lontme,
Political Officer, Tochi,

Bannu, 7th January, 1399,

The jivga in this cuse recommend that Gualiram, Tajt Khel, should be allowed to
take onth of innovonce. If ho refuses to do so, the valuo of the camel should
be racovored from him. If he trkea onth the Sarpunches consider that the
value of the camel shonld be recoverad from those whao are terrvitorinlly
respounsible.  File should ba made over to Politionl Oflicer, Wana, in order thit
an opporbunity to olenr himmself muy be given to Guliram,

J. G, LorRIMER,
Politionl OMcer, Tochi,

A. B, KeTTLREWELY,
Political Otficor, Wana.

Bannu, 25th Docember, 1803,

In this nuse majority of jirza are of opinion that ten Jalal Khel Mahswis shonld
bo given qath that Pile and Khangad, Mohmit Khel Waziris, committed tho
robbery and brought the enmels to Shpzhmai nnd Trezhmad, Jalal Khel Mahsuds,
and took half the ransom money. If this oath is taken hall the bhunga
(which the Mahsnd munsifs admit to be Ra. 107 Kabuli) shonld be recovered
from the Jalal Khels and half from the Mohmit Khoels. We npprove of this
finding. The oath has been taken as presoribed, and we recommend that
Ry, 53-8-0 Kabuli be recovered from the Jalal Khols and the same from the
Mohmit Khels for the complainants,

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Ofoer, Toohi,

Bannu, 7th January, 1399,

A, B. KETTLEWELL,
Political Otlicer, Wana.

In this onso tho Jirga ave of opinion thut oaths should be given to complainaunt
(1) a8 to nmonnt of bhunga paid by him for regovery of threo camels, (2) as ta
the number of camels originally stolen, and a deoroe passed in his fuvonr for
amount of bhunghn and number of cumels to which he takes oath. Wo awreo
with the finding. Complainant has taken oath that he spont Rs. 162 in blunga
and that ton of .the cumols lost by him jn this.case are sti'l unrovovered, Wo
rcoommend that deoree for R, 162 Kebuli and Rs. 500 British bo passed apainst
Jalal Khel Mahsuds,

J. G, Lorivug,
Politieal Otficer, Tochi.

Banny, 7th Junuary, 1888,

A, B, KETTLEWELL,
Political Oflicer, Wana.

°g



Injury to Travellers in

List No. IL—continued.
the Daur Valley—continued.

Tochi Register
Sermi Place and Date of Complainants in . Property taken or i it i W
No. | No.of Case, Occurrence. p detail. Accused (Tribe only). other Damage. Opinion of Political Officers, Tochi and Waza.
with Year. .
15 I 318 : 1898 .. | Tarki Ghundinear Idak; }SaddaKhnu sonof Lallai, | Jalal Khels ... | Two camels (recovered | Majority of jirga consider the case is a very doubtful ome and that onth of
i [ 9th May, 1898, Sarki Khel Wazir of - . for Ra. 141 Nandrami innocence should be given to seven Jalal Khels, including Kargai, Malik, and
! I T f Karlasta, Bannu Tah- bhunga). the accused Jumaraz. If they fail to take it, decree should be pa.sqed in
! ail, . complainant’s favour. We agree with this ﬁnding. Oath has heen token as
f : ! ! ! requnired, and we consider case should be dismissed.
i i , R :
| | ; J. G. LORIMER, A. B. KRTTLEWELL,
! : . Political Officer, Tochi. Political Officer, Wana.,
i i
Banuw, 7th January, 1899,
14 — Tochi bed near Kajuri; | Shamir, Malik, son of | Shabi Khels ... < | Two camels (recovered | Complainant has withdrawn his claim. Caso may be filed,
{ 15th May, 1898, { Balai, Muhammad for Rs, 204 Xabnli
' i Khel  Wazir, =sub- bhunga). J. G. LORIMER, A. B. KETTLEWELL,
! %ectlon Klndd_r'u, of Political Officer, Tochi. Political Officer. Wana.
B R annt, , .
z E Bannu, 25th Decamber, 1898
17§ 420 1808 L, § High road nresr Abmad-| AliKhan,sonof Maham- | Jalal Khels ... . | Beven camels ... .. | Majority of jirga were of opinion in this case that complainants should be given
i . Khel: 20th May, 1298, mad Ali Khan, of Ko- oath as to the amount of their loss and as to having seen their camels in the
: hat (Tahsil Hangu) : possession of Jalal Khels. Two complainants have taken oath that they lost
: Fakir Khan, son of : seven camels and that they suw them in the possession of Jumaraz and Nizam
Muhammad Diu : Gul- i i Din, Julal Khel Mahsuds. We consider that decree shounld be passed in favour
, 7o, son of Mamet of complainants ngainst the Jalal Khels for Re. 450, the value of even Kohati
i Ké\lnn, of  Kohat ! ' camels.
1 S 1 vill % i
; (Samori village) : J. G. LORIMER, A.B. KETTLEWELL,
i | Political Dfficer, Tochi. Political Officer, Wana.
! i Bannu, 7th January, 1894,
18 | 460: 1598 ... | High road near Ahmad | Kotan Khan. Kabul Khel Do. .. | Five camels (recovered | The Mahsud munsifs admit complicity of Jalal Ehels in this rdiil, but say they
Having regard to place and circumstances

e e

Khet:

SthJune, 1898,

for Rs. 400 Kabuli).

were assisted by Mohmit Khels,
of robbery, it may be safely assumed thnt Mohmit Khels were cither concerned
in or conmved at the offence. We thercfore recommend that a decree for
Ra, 411 Kabuli be decreed in complainant's favour and recovered. half from
Jalsl Khels and half from Mohmit Khels,

A, B, KETTLEWYLL.

J. &. LORIMER,
Political Officer, Wava.

Political Officer, Tochi.
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RTINS IV

- High road near Musakki ;| Said Kban, son of Al
Tower; doh July, 1808,

Kot Issori ; 5th August,
1898,

Chanki Wuei;
September, 184x,

23th

Near Bora; 16th Oecto-
her, 1898,

!

Khan of Shoki (Lachi
Tahsil in Xobat).

Gul Kadam and Gulbat
Khan, son of Kippat
Khan, Bora Khel.

Payan Gul, son of Arzon
Akbud, and Gulam

Din, Jani Khels, of

Bannu,

Macha, son of Nuradin,
and Shahzad, son of
Awmzullah ; Muham-
mad Ali, son of Darya
Kbhan, Kharotis of
Mastei  (Khorasan),
now living in Bharat
(Bannu District).

Do,

Do,

v

2

i
|
|
|

in cash,
Three hundred and
twenty sheep, one

donkey, and one gun,
with olothes ; wound-
ing Gul Kadam.

Two mares and one col

Twelve vamels ... o

H

}

! i
.« Two cawels and Re. 45 | Majority of jirgs in this tuse tind that oath of innucence should be offered tu

Sariadin and Khiddar, Julal Khels, acoused, and that if they clear themselves
by outh the complainapts’ loss should be made good to them by villages or
tribes territorinlly responsible. The accused have taken the prescribed oath,
and the case should now be denlt with by the Politiecal Oflicer, Tochi, a8
recommended by the jirgs.

A. B. KEETTLEWELL,

J. G. LORIMER
. Political Officer, Wana.

Political Officer, Tochi.

Bannu, Tth January, 1899,

With the exception of one member, who is personally interested, the jirgan are
unanimously of opinion that this should be treated as an inter-tribal and not
as a traveller's case. We agree,

A. B. KETTLEWELL,

J. G. LORIMER
; Political Ofticer, Wau.,

Potlitical Officer, Tochi.

In this case complainant states that it cost him Ra. 220 to recover the animmls
stolen, of which he has already been repaid Rs, 27 and Rs. 183 Kabuli ave suill
due. Jumaraz, Jalal Khel, admits that he is responsible for this balance, and
will recover their shaves from the other thieves concerned and pay the funll
awmount to complainant, who is satisfied with this settlement. We recommend
that this friendly settlement be accepted.,

A. B. KETTLEWELL,

J. G. LORIMER,
Political Ofticer. Wana.

Politigal Officer, Tochi.

Mahsud munsifs admit complicity of Jalal Kbels, and they and the Sarpanches
think that dMohmit Kbels mentioned in the enquiry were also in the ruid. In
any case stolen camels must have been taken throngh Mohmit Khel country in
Khaisore. .

We agree with mnjority of jirga, and consider that a decree of Rs. 600 shounld be
passed in complainant’s favour, of whieh two-thirds will be recovered from
Jalal Khels and one-third from the Mohmit Khels,

A. B. KETTLEWELL,

J. G. LORIMER
: Political Officer, Wana,

Political Officer, Tochi.

IAY
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Anpexure 12.
ORDER.

We are agreed that these® travellers’ cases against .{ alal Khel Mahsud
should be tried by a jirga of 15 persons, appointe

* All cases on Travellers’ 5y the Jalal I'%els, 5 by the travellers and 5 by
List except Nos. § and 16. Government. The jirga will arrive at a separate
findine on each claim as to the amount of property lost and the extent to wl}ich
Jalal Khels are responsible for it. In cases where the travellers are natives
of Waziristan or immediately adjoining tracts with whom it is possible the
Jalal Khels may be at enmity, the first question for the jirga will be whether
the raid, if committed by Jalal Khels, was in pursuance of a personal, family

or tribal feud; if a feud is proved, the case will be removed from the list. of
travellers’ cases and placed among tribal cases.

The Mahsuds have selected the following five men as their Munsifs:—

Mir Ajal, Nana Khel.
Allahbagh, Shaman Khel.
Muhammad Afzal, Langar Khel.
Siman, Shabi Khel.

Gulpir, Shingi.

The travellers have selected the following:—
Gulbat Khan, Mohmit Khel,

Aliyas Khan, Tori Khel, | }F or Waziris.
Nabbi Khan, Madda Khel, .
Dost Muhammad, Kharoti, : }F or Kharotis.

Mohibullah, Jowaki Afridi—For Peshawaris, Kohatis, Afridis, &e.

We approve of the above, and appoint the following five on the part of
Government : —

Mir Abas Khan, Shahbuzurg Khel.
Akbar Ali Khan, Ditto.

Zabita Khan, Mama Khel (Bannu).
Allahdad Khan, Isa Khel, Marwat.
Wagzir Khan, Shahbaz Khel, Marwat.
J. G. LoriMeg,
Political Officer, Tochi,

Bannu, 9th December, 1898.

A. B. KETTLEWELL,
Political Officer, Wana.

As Wazir Khan, Sarpanch, has not arrived, we veduce the Sarpanches
to three instead of five.

They will be Mir Abas Khan, Zabita Khan and
Allahdad Khan.

J. G. LoriMeRr; A. B. KerTLEweLL,
Political Officer, Tochi.

Political Officer, Wana.
Bannu, 13th December, 1898,

As Mubhammad Afzal, Langar Khel, is ill, Khoedar, Shabi Khel, has been
substituted for him. ~ .

J. G. LoriMERr, A. B KETTLE\”;ZL“
Political Officer, Tochi. ficer

Political Officer, Wana.
Bannu, 23rd December, 1898.
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Annexure 13.

Letter. from J. Wilson, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab,
to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat. Division, dated . Lahore,
19th April, 1899.

.+ T am directed by His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor to acknowledge
the receipt of your letter, dated the 27th January, 1899, reporting the result
of the cases relating to offences committed by Mahsuds in or on the border of
the Dera Ismail Khan District and decided at the joint jirgas held at Tank. .

. 2. Inreply, I am to say that the Lieutenant-Governor approves of the
orders passed by you in these cases and confirms your action in authorizing the
Political Officer to enforce those orders. His Honour also agrees with you
that the number and character of the complaints brought against the Mahsuds
as regards the Dera Ismail Khan border do not evidence any serious insecurity
of life and property on that border.

Annexure 14, -

Letter from J. Wilson, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab,
to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Lahore,
19th April, 1899,

, I am directed by the Lieutenant-Governor to acknowledge the receipt of
your letter, dated the 30th of January, 1899, reporting the settlement of cases
m which Government or travellers in the Tochi Valley were the complainants
against the Mahsuds. ' ‘ ' N

2. It is observed that you have approved of the joint recommendations
-of the Political Officers, Tochi and Wana, and have authorized the latter to
take steps to recover the arms recommended to be recovered in the cases in
which travellers are the complainants. Your orders are approved by the
Lieutenant-Governor, who desires that his acknowledgments may be conveyed
to Messrs. Lorimer and Kettlewell for the satisfactory settlement effected by
them. :

3. His Honour is also pleased, as desired by you, to sanction the recom-
mendations of the Political Officers, Tochi and Wana, in cases in which
‘Government servants or property were injured, and to direct that stéps may
now be taken. to realize the fines and compensation awarded in these cases.

4. In conclusion, I am to request that you will be good enough to
submit the statement referred to in Mr. Kettlewell's letter of the 28th
November, 1898, showing exactly the amounts outstanding against the tribe,
the sections mainly responsible, and also the class of cases for which the
compensation and fines are due, and to report what prospect there is of
realization of the amounts due and what steps you propose to take to realize
them. The Licutenant-Governor will also be glad to receive your opinion
on the recommendation of the Political Officers that whenever an opportunity
oceurs cross-cases between Mahsuds and Dauris should be taken up and
enquired into as they occur, together with an opinion on the further sugges-
tion that claims of revenue-paying Waziri villages in the bed of the Tochi
should be taken up in the same manner as Dauri cases proper.

fee]

5. The orirrina} en.closu.res of your letter under reply are herewith
returned, together with six printed copies of the same. :




ey

Enclosure 3 in No. 1.

Letierpfrom the Hon. Mr. L. W. Dane, Chief Secretary to the Government of the
unjab, to the Secretary to the (Government gf India, Foreign Depariment,
dated Stmla, 20th September, 1899,

In continuation of this office letter, dated 11th August, 1899, I am
From the Commissioner, directed by the Lieutenant-Governor to submit,
Derajat Division (tw?’), dated  for the information of the Government of India,
th%‘ ggl;lsfgelﬁﬁmcla?‘ %ﬂjcer’ a copy of the telegrams nzargin@y noted, on the
Wana, datod the 9th Septem. Subject of the Shaman Khel prisoners captured
ber, 1899, in connection with the telegraph wire cutting and
From the Commissioner, the attack on the ration convoy at the Shahur -
Derajat Dil‘)’i?‘)]“égg“““’d the  Tangi on the 1st July, 1899. From my telegram,
9%5:;?63(3 elﬁuujaﬁ Govern- dated 11th September, 1899, it will be seen that,
ment, dated 11th September, failing the discovery and surrender of the indi-
1899. vidual offenders, the Lieutenant-Governor has
sanctioned the imposition of a fine of Rs. 1,500 on the Shaman Khels, the
release of the prisoners of that section as scon as the fine is paid and the
immediate release of Suleman, Michi Khel Malik, who was acquitted by the

tribal jirga. '

Annexure 1.

Telegram from the Commissioner and Superintendent, Devajat Division, to the
Chief Secretary to the Government of the Punjab, dated the 8th September,
1899.

Political Officer, Wana, wires:—Begins. Jirga consisting of Badshah
Khan and Muhammad Afziel Khan, Alizais, Barahmat, Nur Agai and
Azam Khan, Bohlolyai, and Marwat, brother of Allah Ragh, and Amin
Khan, Shaman Khels, has found Suleman not guilty; main reason is that
further enquiries proved that the two witnesses, who stated that they spoke
to Suleman and his companions in Splitoi, were lying, and had been induced
to tell this story in hope of getting their relatives, who were among Shaman
Khel prisoners, released. Marwat and Amin Khan swear that the more
muportant of these witnesses admitted this to them privately, and jirga is con-
vinced that their evidence is false. This conviction appears genuine, and is
considered well founded; case against Suleman thus breaks down, and jirga
strongly affirms belief in his innocence; it is proposed that of fine imposed
one-third should be paid by Shahur Shaman Khels and two-thirds by Shabar
Khel, to be refunded if real murderers are found and punished  Proposal as
regards Michi Khels is hardly logical if Suleman is really innocent, but jirga
thinks that, if pressure is put on powerful section like Michi Khels in this
way, they will be likely to find a clue to real offenders, and proposal might,
I think, be justified on grounds that appearances against Suleman are still
suspieious, and he is therefore bound either to pay share of fine or to prove
case aganst offenders, so though failure to prove case up to date against
actual murderers is to be regretted, I think jirga’s award should be accepted,
and fine of Rs. 1,500 imposed as proposed. ~ I will submit detailed report as
Shon as possible, but should be glad of telegraphic orders about prisoners at
once. 1 think Suleman might be released immediately on heavy security,
and Maliks required to give security for payment of fine within month, and I
would also release Shaman Khel prisoners on payment of Rs. 500. Latter
are mnocent, and their further detention will serve no useful purpose, while
it keeps their section in a state of irritation and contest. Fine of Rs. 500
E“lu’ I consider, be sufficient punishment for failure to prove case and for
alse evidence of witnesses. Ends. Commissioner wires:—Begins. In

- €vent of Suleman being discharged, the Michi Khels can be fined only if
Jirga awards that.  Case against Suleman is doubtful, and they cannot return
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him guilty, and that they therefore recommend a fine on his section. Does
the jirga make the above award? Do the Michi Khels object to or accept the
jirga’s proposal regarding imposition of two-thirds of total fine on them? 1f
Michi Khels are to be fined, there ought to be a good reason for making them
share responsibility with Shaman Khels. Ends. Political Officer, Wana,
wires :—Begins. Object of jirga in imposing two-thirds of fine on Michi
Khels, though they considered Suleman innocent, was that latter should, in
hope of fine being refunded, give clue to actual murderers. If Michi Khels
fail to do this, but are innocent themselves, they will recover sum they have
paid as fine from Shaman Khels. Shah Salim tells me that he has strong
hopes of real offenders being discovered, but that, if they are not, it has been
privately settled between Michi Khels and Shaman Khel Maliks that former
should call on latter to repay them their share of fine, which Shaman Khels
will probably do without demur. Shah Salim says Michi Khels have no
objection whatever in these circumstances to paying two-thirds of whatever
fine imposed, and I strongly recommend that proposal be sanctioned, as,
though illogical, it is one on which all parties are agreed; further enquiries
confirm impression that Suleman is innocent after all. Suspicion against him
was roused by his visit to Nasib’s kirri, and Shaman Khels, possibly with
genuine belief in his guilt, invented other statements strengthen case against
him, and get their prisoners released. If Suleman and Shaman Khel
prisoners are now discharged at once, as proposed, unrest among both Michi
Khels and Shaman Khels will cease, and tracing of real offenders will be
facilitated. Please let me have orders before evening, as I wish to leave -
Sarwekai to-morrow, and Maliks here are waiting to hear orders passed, other-
wise please wire when orders may be expected. Ends.

Annexure 2.

Telegram from the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, to the
Political Officer, Wana, (repeated to the Chief Secretary to the Government
of the Punjab), dated the Sth September, 1899.

You state that Michi Khels have made private arrangements with -
Shaman Khels to realise from Shaman Khels the part of fine imposed on
Michi Khels, in event of their failing to trace actual offenders. Michi Khels
are certain that they will not pay fine actually in any case, and the mere im-
position of fine will not serve as a pressure on them to trace offenders. Under
these circumstances, if Michi Khels are not proved to be responsible in any
way, why should we not relieve them of all responsibility, release Suleman
and let tribesmen see that we do not punish innocent section or men? On
the contrary, if we are convinced of innocence of suspected men or section,
we are ready to acquit them at once. In this case whole fine of Rs. 1,500
proposed should be imposed on Shaman Khels, who are locally responsible,
have brought a false charge against Suleman, and have failed to trace actual
offenders. ~Is there any objection to this? In any case, in my opinion, not
a single Shaman Khel should be released until whole of fine in this casé has
been realised, and then other Shahur Tangi cases have been satisfactorily
disposed of. .

Annexure 3.

Telegram from the P(/l[t[gal Oficer, Wana, to the Commissioner and Superin-
tendent, Derajat Division, dated the 9¢h September, 1899,

Yours 8th September. I venture to deprecate further punishment of.
Shahur Shaman Khels beyond fine of Rs. 500 proposed. Tgey are an 1'12-
offensive and well-disposed section, and more under our control than any

11256 F
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other Mahsuds; in present case I believe now they have to choose between
proving case by false evidence against Suleman, whose actions had given
rise to well-founded suspicion of his guilt and confessing themselves unable
to trace offenders. Offence was commitied on border of Shaman Khels’
territory ; none of offenders were wounded and they carried nothing off with
them, so that, unless some one had actually seen them on way to or from
Tangi, evidence against them would be difficult to procure; they would keep
what they had done very dark, and facts would probably only leak out
months afterwards, if ever. On other hand, in case of outrage in Tangi of
July 23rd last, one raider was killed; I have, owing to this fact, succeeded
in tracing offence to gang of ten or eleven Aimal Khels, of seven of whom I
now know the names. In view of severe pressure brought to bear through
baramta on Shaman Khels, where crops are suffering for want of men to look
after them, I think there is some excuse for their action. I venture to think
fine proposed sufficient punishment, but, if you consider it advisable, fine
might be raised Rs. 1,000, and Michi Khels absolved altogether. Imposition
of fine on latter will exercise some pressure on them, though they espect to
realise it ultimately from Shaman Khels, for it will be some time before they
do so; there is always chance of friction arising, though Shaman Khels are at
present complaisant. I mainly supported proposal, however, because it was
that of jirga, and consented to by all parties, and I agree that it would
perhaps be more fair to Michi Khels to absolve them altogether. In any
case I venture again to urge most strongly immediate release of Suleman
and Shaman Khel prisoners on payment of whatever fine imposed. I would
again point out that Shahur Shaman Khel allowances are same as before
Shahur route was opened, and I don’t think we should come down on them
too severely as regards local responsibility, especially in case like present and
only other recent Tangi case, where responsibility can be enforced is that of
wire cutting, in which they have given satisfactory clue to offenders. Latter
case vxgll be taken up at Tank jirga. Addressed Commissioner; repeated
Punjab.

Annexure 4.

Telegram from the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, to the
Chief Secretary to the Government of the Punjab, dated the 9th September,
1899, .

- Watson’s telegram, 9th September. I adhere to imposition fine of
Rs. 1,500 on the Shaman Khels. There is no doubt that Shahur Shaman
Khels are inoffensive and well-disposed, but punishment awarded in serious
cases should be deterrent. I recommend accordingly fine of Rs. 1,500 on
the Shaman Khels and immediate release of Suleman.  Shaman Khel
prisoners may be released as soon as fine is paid. Watson refers to allow-
ances of Shahur Shaman Khels. I would point out that all Mahsud
alloqupes were forfeited after the attack at Wana, and subsequent military
expedition, and new allowances were sanctioned afterwards in consideration
Of, new obligation; the opening of Shahur ronte was a result of expedition.

Annexure 5.

Telegram from the Chief Secretary to the Government of the Punjub to the Com-

??SQS;ONW and. Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated the 11th September,
899,

Your telegram of 9th. Licutenant-Governor agrees in your recommen-
on Lo impose a fine of Rs. 1,500 on Shaman Khels, to release Suleman

dati
i mediately, and also to release Shaman Khel prisoners as soon as fine 13
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paid. As Zhob authorities are clearly not convinced of innocence of Mahsud
prisoners arrested by them and now being sent to Wana, Political Officer
should, before releasing them, in view of the failure to prove these cases on
his side, again review the evidence against them in the view of what he has

since learned.

Enclosure 4 in No. 1.

Letter from H. S. Barnes, Lsq., C.S.1, Officiating Secretary to the {rovernment
of India in the Foreign Department, to the Chief Secretary to the Government
of the Punjab, dated Simla, the 6th October, 1899.

In continuation of the correspondence ending with my endorsement,

, dated the 6th September, 1899, I am directed to

Dated the 25th August, forward, for such action as the Lieutenant-

1899, with enclosares. ~ Governor may think necessary, copies of two

1899, with enclosure. -~ letters from the Agent to the Governor-General

’ in. Baluchistan, regarding raids committed by
Waziris on Zhob.

. 2. Tam totake this opportunity of enclosing a brief statement which has
been prepared in this office of cases cutstanding against the Mahsuds and
Waziris. Additions may be necessary to make the statement complete up to
date; but, even as it stands, the number of cases is considerable, some of them -
are seriolis, and the fines due from the tribes seem likely to reach a high
figure. I am accordingly to enquire, with reference to your letter, dated the
17th October, 1898, what action it is proposed to take to effect a settlement of
all these cases. T am to suggest that it would be convenient if your reply
were accompanied by a statement, as far as this can be prepared without
‘undesirable delay, showing all outstanding cases against these tribes, in which
orders have not been passed or have not been completely executed, and
indicating, to such extent as may be readily possible, the tribes, sections and
sub-sections against which the liability in each case has been proved or is
expected to be proved. ‘

3. His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor will, no doubt, agree that an
early settlement of outstanding ecases is very desirable, since the record of the
last twelve months, culminating in attacks upon regular troops as well as
levies, and finally on Government officials, both in Zhob and in South

Vaziristan, appears to indicate an increasing spirit of lawlessness among the
tribes. The Government of India would be very reluctant to sanction any-
thing in the nature of an expedition to compel a settlement of these cases,
and I am to enguire whether, if other means fail, vigorous action cannot be
taken, before the tribes move to the hills for the next hot season, to recover
fines by a svstem of reprisals against the various sections concerned.

Annexure 1.

Letter from Colonel 11, Wyllie, C.S.]., Officiating Agent to the Governor-General
in Buluchistan, to the Secretary to the Government of India, Foreign Depart-
ment, dated Camp Ziarat, the 25th August, 1899. 5

1 have the honour tojnvite a reference to my telegram, No. 179, dated
the 26th May, 1599, reporting an attack made by a band of Waziris on a party
of five Zhob Levy Corps sepoys between' Girdao and Mir Ali Khel. )

11236 Fa



44

9. I now forward, herewith,A for the information of the Government
* Dated the 2nd August, of India, a copy of a letter,* with my replyt

1899, thereto, from the Political Agent in Zhc
t Dated the 25th August, gyhject, ) ob on the
1899,

3. It appears that, on the afternoon of the 25th May last, a Naik and
four men of the Zhob Levy Corps, while returning from Girdao to Mir AL
Khel, and proceeding in single file up the bed of a nalla, were suddenly fired
on, when about two miles from Girdao, by two parties of men, one on either
side of the nalla. Three shots were fired. One struck and killed sepoy
Bharat, another hit sepoy Kalla Khan in the left thigh, breaking the bone,
while the third missed.

4. Seeing their comrade fall, and as their assailants—about ten in
number—outnumbered them, the other sepoys took to their heels, making
for Mir Ali Khel, where they arrived about 7 in the evening, and at once
reported what had taken place.

5. Meanwhile the Waziris, for by the clothes they wore and their
general appearance, there can be no doubt as to the tribe to which the men
belonged, came down to where the dead and wounded men lay, and, after
having relieved them of their arms, accoutrements, &c., decamped.

6. On receiving intimation of the attack, the Officer Commanding the
Mir Ali Khel post at once wired to Fort Sandeman and-Gul Kach, and sent
messages to the other neighbouring posts informing them of what had
occurred, at the same time sending out 2 parties in pursuit of the offenders,
and making arrangements to bring in the dead and wounded men.

7. Three parties of the Zhob Levy Corps were also despatched in
different directions from Gul Kach, and a party under Jemddars Baz
Muhammad Khan and Fakhr-ud-din from Fort Sandeman. The Com-
inandant himself, with the Extra Assistant Commissioner, following a little
ater.

8. On the morning of the 27th, one of the parties despatched from
Gul Kach came across three Zalli Khel Waziris near Toi Khulla on the Zhob
side of the Gomal, and arrested them on suspicion. These men were found
to have in their possession a rifle, recently discharged, 3 empty cartridge cases,
15 loaded cartrigges, 1 pistol and 2 knives. It will thus be seen that appear-
ances were very much against them.

9. On the 28th May the party under Jemadar Baz Muhammad Khan
and Fakhr-ud-din came across another gang of 4 Zalli Khel Waziris at the
same place where the first three men were arrested, and accused them of
hamg been concerned in the attack of the 25th May. One of these men
escaped. The remainder stated that they knew the offenders and took the
Jemadar and his party to the village of Karab Kot, some ten miles on the
Waziri side of the border, where the offenders were supposed to be. On
arrival the villagers, Mahsuds, were found scattered about attending to their
fields. 'The Zalli Khel pointed out six men, all of whom were quietly secured
and the party then returned to Gul Kach. While the arfests were being

&l;%e,,;a woman was heard to say, “ Did I not warn you against doing such
s. :

10. " On being placed with others before the wounded sepoy, Kalla Khan,
for identification, Kalla Khan picked out three of the Mahsuds as the men
whom he had seen at the time of the outrage. One man in particular he
recognised as a man who came down to where he (Kalla Khan) lay after his
ﬁomradeg had run away and levelled his rifle at him with the intention of

espatching him, but desisted on the sowar’s pleading for his life. Kalla
an has since died.

br‘ 11 Copies of the various statements for and against the accused have
Len‘bient to the Political Officer, Wana, who has been asked to find, if
II)(O}SiSII e, corroborative evidence against (1) the 6 Mahsuds, or (2) the 3 Zalli
els who were arrested on the 26th May. Should he be unable to do so,
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the Political Agent, Zhob, has suggested that a combined Punjab and Baluch
Jirga should assemble and enquire mto the case on such evidence as is already
available. The Political Officer, Wana, is understood to have referred the.

matter to the Commissioner, Derajat.

"12. At the request of the Political Officer, Wana, the Political Agent,
Zhob, has sent the three Zalli Khels who gave Jemadar Baz Muhammad his
information in custody to Wana, and has suggested to that officer the possi-
bilitﬁr of his learning from the prisoners something that might prove of use
n the case, »

13. It will be seen from my letter to the Political Agent, Zhob, that I
have approved cf the action taken by him,

Annexure 2,

Letter from the Political Agent in Zhob to the Agent to the Governor-General in
Baluchistan, dated the 2nd August, 1899.

In continuation of my telegram, dated the 26th May, 1899, regarding
the attack by Waziris on a party of the Zhob Levy Corps between Girdao
and Mir Ali Khel, I have the honour to submit the following detailed report
on the subject.

, 2. On the afternoon of the 25th May, 1899, a Naik and four men of the
Zhob Levy Corps, while returning from Girdao to Mir Ali Khel, and pro-
ceeding in single file about 20 yards one behind the other, were fired upon in
the defile about two miles from Girdae. The assailants, who were 1 two
parties, cne on either side of the naila, were about 10 in number, and, from
their apearance, garments and the arms they carried, were, without doubt,
“Waziris. Three shots were fired by them, one of which missed, while of the
other two, one hit sepoy Bharat and killed him, and the other broke the bone
of sepoy Kalla Khan’s left thigh. The Naik of the party and the other two
sepoys, seeing their comrades fall, and as their assailants outnumbered them
and were posted in unassailable positions, took to their heels, and arriving
at Mir Ali Khel-—about 7 in the evening—reported what had happened.
From the statement of sepoy Kalla Khan 1t appears that two of the Waziris
came down to where the two men of the corps were lying. The others ran
after the Naik and his party, but their pursuit, as already stated, was un-
successful. One of the first two Waziris told the wounded sepoy that they
had been after them for a week and that it was only to-day that they had
got an opportunity of attacking them. The same Waziri levelled his rifle at
Kalla Khan intending to despatch him, but at the latter’s entreaties his life
was spared. The Waziris then having stripped the wounded man and the
dead one of the arms, accoutrements, &c., they had on them, decamped.

3. On the Naik’s making his report at Mir Ali Khel, the Officer Com-
manding the post at once despatched telegrams to Fort Sandeman and Gul
Kach and messages to the other neighbouring outposts, at the same time
sending out two parties in pursuit of the offenders. These, however, returned
unsuccessful. Arrangements were made to bring in the wounded man and
the body of the dead man to Mir Ali Khel. On receipt of the news of the
raid at Gul Kach, three parties of the Zhiob Levy Corps detachment there at
once set out in different directions. Besides this, early on the 26th May, a
party of the Zhob Levfy Corps under Jemadars Baz Muhammad Khan and
Fakhr-ud-din started from Fort Sandeman, the Commandant, Zhob Levy
Corps, and the Extra Assistant Commissioner, Lower Zhob, following them.

4. On the morning of the 27th one of the Gul Kach parties came across
three Zalli Khel Waziris near Toi Khulla on the Zhob side of the Gomal,
- They were proceeding towards the river from the Zhob direction, and the
party suspected them of having been concerned in the late raid. They were,
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therefore, secured, and they were found to have in their possession a rifle
which had recently been discharged, three empty cartridge cases, 15 cart-
ridges, one pistol, and two knives. Thus appearances were very much azainst
these men.

5. On the 23th May in the afternoon the party under Jemadars Daz
Muhammad Khan and Fakhr-ud-din, who were accompanied by Abdul
Kahlik, a Jemadar, and some sowars of the 5th Bombay Cavalry from Air
Ali Khel, came across 4 other Zalli Khel Waziris on the same spot and
accused them of having committed the erimé. One of the Zalli Khels dis-
appeared on some pretence, and the other three said that they were quite
innocent. At the same time they stated that they knew who the actual
offenders were and where they lived, and one of them agreed to go with the
party and point the offenders out. Accordingly the following morning
Jemadar Baz Muhammad Khan, accompanied by some of his men and the
Zalli Khel, started for the village of Narab Iiot, some 10 miles on the
Waziri side of the border. On arrival the villagers, who are Mahsuds, were-
found scattered about attending to their fields. The Zalli Khel informer
was hidden among the horses of the party, so that the Mahsuds might not
become aware of his having informed against them, and from this retreat
he pointed out one by one 6 Mahsuds, whom he declared he had seen cross
the river after the outrage. These men were quietly secured and the party
returned with them to Gul Kach. While the arrests were being made, a
woman was heard saying to one of the men arrested, “ Did I not warn you
against doing such deeds.” The six Mahsuds, together with the three Zalli
Khels who had informed against them and the three Zalli Khels first
arrested, were then Dbrought to Tort Sandeman. Thus we had in
custody six Mahsuds and six Zalli Khels in connection with this affair.  These
men, together with two Waziris arvested on the 23rd May near Khuni Burj,
four Waziris arrested last year in connection with the cutrage committed in
May 1898 (since released) and certain other prisoners, were, on the 26th
May, placed before the wounded sepoy Kalla Khan (since dead) with a view
to his identifying any of them if possible. Kalla Khan picked out three of
the Mahsuds as men whom be had seen at the time of the outrage. One man
in particular he recognised as he who had intended to give him his coup de-
grace. 1 do not, however, attach the highest importance to this identification
owing to the sepoy’s wounded and weakened condition. Tt serves, never-
theless, when taken in conjunction with the information of the Zalli Khels,
to constitute a sufficiently strong primd facie case to justify the retention in
custody of the whole party of six Mahsuds, pending the result of further
enquiries.

The three informing Zalli Xhels, T should mention, completely denied
before the Magistrate that thev had ever said anything about the Mahsuds
or pointed them out to the Zhob Levy Corps party. But Jemadar Baz
Muhammad, Ghilzai, is a man of unimpeachabls truthfulness, and I have not
the least doubt that the Zalli Khels acted as he described.

6. The case now stands as follows:—

Copies of the various statements for and against the accused have been
sent to the Political Officer, Wana, and he has been asked to find, if possible,
corrchorative evidence against—

(1) the six Mahsuds, or
(2) the three Zalli Khels arrested on the 26th May.

- Should he fail to do so, I have suggested that a combined Punjab and
Baluchistan jirga should assemble and enquire into the case on such evidence
as we already have. The Political Officer, Wana, has referred the matter for
the orders of the Commissioner, Derajat.

7. At the Political Officer, Wana's, request, I have dizcharged the three
Zalli Khels who gave Jemadar Baz Mahummad his information.  They were
forwarded in custody to Wana, and I suggested to the Political Olficer the
possibility of his learning from them something that might prove of use.
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Either they really did see the Mahsuds crossing the Gomal and can give
valuable evidence against them, or, for some purpose which they should
-explain, they wilfully deceived Jemadar Baz Muhammad and his paity.

8. I may mention that one of the parties sent out after the occurrence
of the outrage on the 26th May was one consisting of the Thanadar and a
few tribal levies at Moghal Kot. In the hills towards Bagh they were fired
~on by some Waziris. The party returned the fire, whereupon the Waziris
decamped, and were not again seen by the Thanadar. No damage was done
on either side. |

9. I am making a separate report about the late wire cutting outrage
near Moghal Kot.

Annexure 3.

Letter from the First Assistant to the dgyent to the Governor-General in Balu-
chistan to the Political Agent in Zhob, dated Camp Ziarat, the 25th August
1599. ‘

I am directed to refer to the correspondence ending with your letter,
- dated the 2nd August, 1899, reporting details of the attack made by Waziris
on a party of the Zhob Levy Corps between Girdao and Mir Ali Khel. .

2. I am now to convey the approval of the Officiating Agent to the
Governor-General to the action taken by you in the matter, as reported in
paragraphs 6 and 7 of your letter under reply. Your report on the result
of the reference made to the Political Officer, Wana, is awaited.

A}inexure 4.

Letter from Colonel H. Wyllie, C.8.1., Officiating Agent to_the Governor-(ieneral
in. Baluchistan, to the Secretary to the Government of India, Foreign Depart-
ment, dated Camp - Ziarat, the 26th August, 1899, S '

In continuation of my telegram, dated the 25th June, 1899, and the
entries in my diaries for the weeks ending 30th June and 24th July, 1899,
I have the honour to forward, for the information of the Government of India,
the accompanying copy of a letter, dated the 14th August, 1899, from the
Political Agent in Zhob, furnishing further details of the attack by Waziris
on a telegraph-line repairing party under the Thanadar of Moghal Kot and a
Zhob Levy Corps patrol near Kuchbina on the 21st June, 1899.

2. As this is the second occasion within the last few months on which
parties of Waziris have raided into Zhob, I venture to suggest that the
Punjab Government should be addressed with a view to steps being taken
prevent the recurrence of such attacks.

Annexure 5.

Letter from the Political Agent in Zhob to the Agent to the Governor-General in
Baluchistan, dated the 14th August, 1899, -

In continuation of my telegram, dated the 24th Jume, 1899, on tha
~subject of wire cutting near Kuchbina on the 21st June, 1899, I have the
honour to forward a more detailed report as under.
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9. On the afternoon of the 21st June, 1899, information was received at
the Moghal Kot Thana that the telegraph l'mfg had been cut at a point soie
6 miles distant on the road to Kuchbma and Khajuri Kach. The Thanadar,
Moghal Kot, accompanied by 3 civil levy sowars and a tracker at once pro-
ceeded to the site of the damage and found that about 200 feet of wire had
been cut and carried off. The party was soon joined by 2 telegraph-line-
riders, one from Khajuri Kach and the other from Moghal Kot, who at once
set about repairing the line. While they were thus engaged, the party was
fired upon from an adjoining hall. The' spot whence the fire came was sub-
- sequently found to have been roughly “sangared,” and the idea is that the

Waziris {{nowing a paxty would come out to repair the line had purposely
lain in waiting in oider to attack it, the object being, doubtless, to plunder
fire-arms. At the tivee of the attack a Zhob Levy Corps patrol of five men,
which was on its way back from Moghal Kdt to Kuchbina, was present in the
neighbourhood. Hearing the firing the patrol endeavoured to make its way

to Kuchbina, 5 ni';\iles distant, in order to summon

. _The appearance of assistance, but found their road blocked by a
the ]Xi}itéersmwihilcg is well second party of Waziris* They then retur?)ed
known to the levies and others and joined the Thanadar’s party, which, in the
on t_‘ﬁ? VtV‘t‘)m‘ b‘;{ge% t“h‘;d“f‘.];: meantime, had made an attempt to retire towards
gmhfga o @ Mirgal Chaplils » Moghal Kot, but here also retreat was cut off by
which are generally worn by a third Waziri gang. The only man that got
Waziris establish the fact that away was the line rider from Khajuri, The
| they were Waziris. Khajuri road was apparently not blocked, and

the line rider reached that place without acci-

dent. It should be mentioned that his first act was to wire news of the

occurrence to his superiors, adding that when attacked the Thanadar and

arty 1I%ad at once fled to Moghal Kot, leaving him, the line-rider, to shift for
imself.

3. However, the Thanadar and the Zhob Levy Corps parties, finding
themselves unable to reach either Moghal Kot or Kuchbina, established
themselves in the most sheltered spot they could find, and there remained on
the defensive for several hours. The Waziris kept firing on them at intervals
and from different directions, till about 1 a.m., when they took their departure
without having done any damage. In the morning a party of the Zhob Levy

%)rp_s_came out from Moghal Kot, but nothing further was seen of the
aziris.

4. It seems to me that the Zhob Levy Corps patrol allowed themselves
to be somewhat easily repulsed from their endeavour to reach Kuchbina.
They were apparently fired at from a hill overlooking the Iuchbina stream.
But the bed of the stream is wide and open, and is not bad going for horses,
so that a smart dash would soon have got them past the point of danger.
However, it is always difficult to judge of such cases without having been
present, and the fact stated by Major Alban, to whom I mentioned the
matier, that the men were mostly recruits, should be taken into consideration.

9. It is not known what the exact number of the raiders was on this
occasion, but there were probably a dozen or fifteen of them. Nor is it known
to what section of the Waziris they belonged. The Political Officer, Wana,
has been informed of the affair and asked to take cognisance of it.

6. 1 may mention that, on the day after the above attack, damage was
done, T believe, to the telegraph line near Khajuri. This was in the Wana
Jurisdiction, and the Political Officer, Wana, was informed of the report.
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“No. 2.

Letter prom the Government of India, in the Foreiyn Department, to the Right
Honourable Lord Georye I, [lumiltsn, Her Mujesty's Sceretary of State for
Liudia, dated Simlu, the 186 October, 1900, Recewred 3th November, 1900.

Our despatch, dated the 20th October, 1899, forwarded certain papers
relating to raids committed by Mahsud and Waziri tribesmen. FEarly in the
current year, we received* from the Punjab
Government copies of letters from and to Mr.
Anderson, then Commissioner of the Derajat Division, in which the actual
position was reviewed; and, after further voluminous correspondence, the

e e s Punjab Government!{ transmitted a report in

f Enclosure No. 2. which Mr. Anderson claimed that all casp.e; out-
stfanding against the Mahsuds up to the 24th March, 1900, had been disposed -
of. :

* Enclosure No. 1.

2. The report did not} appear to us to be entirely satisfactory, and it
+ Enclosures Nos. 3 dand 5, a5 Dot long before we learnt that the settlement
+ DACIOREEES 208 & 2T had not only omitted to take note of a claim
nearly as large as that concerning which an agreement had been arrived at,
Enclosnres Xos. 6. 7. § and 9 but was in other respects defective. = Further
§ Enclosures Nos, 10 nd 11, corrg:spondenceg wh1_ch was tra,nsmltted. b}f the
Punjab Government in July appeared to indicate
that the situation was drifting from bad to worse, and was such as to give
ground for much anxiety. The Lieutenant-Governor was accordingly invited
to summon to Simla for a personal conference Mr. W. H. Merk, C.S.1., who
had succeeded Mr. Anderson as Commissioner of the Derajat Division. The
result of the conferences held after Mr. Merk’s arrival at Simla is set forth in
I Enclosure No. 13. our Foreign Secretary’s letter|| of the 1st October,
1900, of which we invite perusal. Tt will be observed that the course to be
followed will depend on the attitude of the Mahsuds when Mr. Merk meets
them in jirga next month. Mr. Merk will submit in advance a sketch of the
communication which he proposes to make to the jirga. Should the jirga
prove obdurate, a strict blockade will be enforced.
3. As the enclosed papers contain reference to the Mulla Powindah, we

may explain that in June last the Mulla definitely asked Mr. Merk for an
allowance, and we sanctioned the payment to the Mulla of an allowance of

Rs. 100 a month.
We have, &c.,

(Signed)  CURZON

» E. . H. COLLEN
. A. C. TREVOR.

b C. M. RIVAZ.

,, - T. RALEIGH.

» E. F.-G. LAW.

Enclosure 1 in No. 2.

Letter from W. R. H. Merl, Esq., C'S.1, Opiciating Chief Secretary to
Government, Punjab, to the Secretary to the Government of India, F oregn
Department, dated Lahore, 6th February, 1900.

In continuation of my telegram, dated the-14th January, 1900, I am
directed by the Lieutenant-Governor to submit,

ter, dated 24th Januury, g ; |
Ltery Cate % for the information of the Government of India,

1900. from Commiszioner,

Derajat. o a copy of the correspondence noted in the margin,
My letter, dated 6th Febru-op the subject of our present position in regard
ary, 1900, in reply. to the Mahsud tribe.
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Annexure 1,

Letter from 1. A. Anderson, lisq., CSy CS.A, Commissioner and Superin-
tendent, Derajat Division, to the Officiating Chicf Secretary to (Yovernment,
Punjab, dated Dera Ismail Khan, 246h January, 1900.

With reference to the serious offences recently committed by the Mah-
suds, namely, the murder of Border Military Police at Zeranobo, on the 16th
December, 1899, which twas reported by the Political Officer, Wana, in his
telegram, dated the 16th idem, and the attack made on the garrison of the
Zam Post on the 9th instant, I have the honour to submit a report showing
what is the present position as regards the Mahsud tribe and our relations

with it in order to enable Government to determine what action should be
~ taken to obtain redress both as regards the cases which have been disposed of,
but in which satisfaction has not been obtained yet, and also with reference
to the cases which are pending disposal.

2. In order to lay the case clearly before Government it will be necessary
to give a brief account of the proceedings which have been taken in con-
nection with the settlement of cases, and the realisation of fines since the
autumn of 1898. In my letter, dated the 27th January, 1899, I have ex-
plained that much pressure was not brought to bear on the Mahsuds earlier
to obtain redress in the cases which were pending when I left on three months’
leave in August, 1898, and that this was done advisedly. Before these cases,
which were disposed of in November and December, 1898, were taken into
account, the fines dune on the 1st November, 1898, {rom the Mahsuds and
other tribes under the political control of the Political Officer, Wana, amount-
ed to Rs. 3,703-3-9, on account of the offences committed by them in British
territory, and against British subjects and Government in protected areas.
Out of this sum the Mahsuds were responsible for Rs. 3,247-3-9.

8. The disposal of the pending cases refexred to above in the last para-
graph, in November and December, 1898, imposed on the Mahsuds a fine of
Rs, 18,867-15-0 as follows:—

On account of the offences committed in the .
Dera Ismail Khan District ... .. 5,567 14 0
On account of the offences committed in
Zhob ... .. L7115 0 0
On account of the offences committed in
Gomal ... 9 0 0
On account of the offences committed in
Tochi .. ... .. .. .. 725812 0
Guri Khel raid on the Jani Khel flocks and
a few other Ii))e]tty offences committed
in the Bannu District ... 3801 5 0
On account of offences committed in the
Sherani country = ... 435 0 0
Total ... 18,867 15 0

and the total sum due from the tribe amounted to Rs. 22,115-2-9.

4. Since then fines aggregating Rs. 18,466-8-7 have Dbeen imposed
on the Mahsuds from time to time during the year 1899, partly on account
of certain offences committed during the year, and partly on account of the
old cases disposed of during the period, as noted below:—
' Rs. A P.
1. Attack on the Bhittanni Levies com-

mitted on the 29th September. 1898... 2,000 0 0
2. Murder of two Bhittanni Levies in July,

1897 ... 1,000 0 0
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Rs. AT
3. Raid by the Shingis on Suleman Khel
flocks near Nasran in February, 1899
(share of the Mahsuds) .. 4278 0 0
4. Murder of Sepoy, Isar Singh, of the 1st
Sikh Infantry, near Shahur Tangi, on
1st July, 1899 ... ... 1500 0 0
5. Murder of two Cavalry sowars near
Tiarza, on 5th March, 1899 (share of
Mahsuds) ... 1,856 0 0O
6. Murder of Zhob Levy sowar near Darra
Gardao, on 25th May, 1899 ... 2000 0 0

-~

Killing and wounding of Sherani with
robbery (vide paragraph 3 of Commis-
missioner’s letter, dated the 27th Janu-
ary, 1899, share of the Mahsuds) ... 1,600 0 0

8. On account of petty theft and robbery
cases in the Dera Ismail Khan District,
Gomal and Wana, &ec. e 49252 8 7

Total ... 18,466 8 7

This sum being added to the total arrived at in paragraph 3 raises the total
charge against the Mahsuds to Rs, 40,581-11-4. :

5. Qut of this total charge of Rs. 40,581-11-4 sums aggregating Rs.
21,739-2-11 have been realised from the tribe from time to time during the
vear, and the outstanding balance at the close of the year amounts to Rs.
18,842-8-5. Moreover, in certain inter-tribal cases, action was taken during
the year, and the amount of compensation awarded in respect of such cases
including the opening balance brought forward from 1898 amounted to Rs.
12,460-7-11.  Out of this sum Rs. 7,526-1-0 have been recovered, and paid to
claimants. The outstanding balance in these cases at the close of the year
amounts to Rs. 5,934-6-11. This balance 1s on account of cases which oc-
curred outside the limits of protected area in the hills and among tribesmen
themselves. For the realisation of this balance we are not as much concerned
as we are for the recovery of the balances of the fines imposed on account of
offences committed in British territory, Zhob, Tochi, and protected area
against Government and our own people.

6. The figures given in the preceding paragraph of fines imposed and
collected during the yvear, however, do not fully manifest what has actually
been done. The value of the property, cattle, sheep and goats recovered in
original by putting pressure on the tribe, section, or individual offenders soon
after the occurrence of the offence or restored by the actual offenders after
enquiry by a tribal jirga has not been included in the figures of fines imposed
and recovered. There are several large cases in which property and cattle
worth several thousands of rupees were recovered in this way, notably in the
case of the Shingi raid on the Suleman Khel flocks near Nasran, and the Guri
K hel raid on the Jani Khel flocks in the Bannu District; while there are
numerous petty cases in which the camels or other property stolen were re-
stored to complainants, and the cases were filed after irposing a small fine
or without taking any further action.

7. As regards the steps which have been taken to realise the fines im-
posed during the year, I shall give a brief account of what has been done—
(a) The first step taken was to stop the allowances of all the Mah-
sud Maliks temporarily. These allowances were, however, re-
stored when the Maliks showed that they made a real endeavour

to realise the fines and to assist the Political Officer.

11256 Go



(5) In December, 1898, when a large Mahsud Jirga was sitting at
Bannu, in connection with the settlement of the cases of oifences
reported to have been eommitted by the Mahsuds in the Tochi,
T authorised Mr. Kettlewell, the Political Officer, Wana, to
make arrangements for the seizure of convoys of certain Mahsud
sections. 1 authorised this step subject to one condition,
namely, that the Mahsuds, whose jirgas had been invited by us
to come to Bannu, and were then assembled at Bannu, would
not look upon the seizure as a breach of faith. Mr. Kettlewell
thought that the action might create a misunderstanding, and
recommended that all seizures should be postponed until after
the jirgas were dismissed. After the termination of the jirgas,
Mr. Kettlewell, however, never returned to Wana or Tank, and
was compelled to take one year’s furlough on medical certificate
from the 16th January, 1899. Mr. Watson, who succecded
him, was new to the work and unacquainted with the situation,
and the proposed seizures had of necessity to be postponed
temporarily. '

(¢) Early in February, 1899, I happened to be near Nasran on my way
to the Mahsud country, when I received the report of a serious
raid by the Shingis on the Suleman Khel flocks, in which 1,200
sheep and goats were carried off, and 5 Suleman Khels of the
pursuit party were killed. Being in the neighbourhood of the
ocality when the raid was committed, I was in a position to take
immediate action. The Shingis were surprised in their homes
at Kotka, and near Jandola, and orders were issued for the
arrest of every Shingi at Tank and in the Dera Ismail Khan
District. .The result was that the Suleman Khels were fully
redressed, all compensation due in the case was realised, and 12
of the ringleaders of the raid, who were surrendered uncon-
ditionally, or were arrested, were sentenced to imprisonment for
terms varying from three to five years.

(d) The Political Officer, Mr. Watson, acting in accordance with the
instructions given to him, summoned a large Mahsud Jirga, and
impressed on them the necessity of an early settlement of the
fines imposed in the cases of the past year. After long discus-
sion it was proposed by the Maliks that the fines outstanding
against each section and sub-section should first be explained
to the Maliks of those sections, and if they could not be realised
by those Maliks in a month’s time from the date of communi-
cation the leading Maliks would then meet again to discuss
matters. The suggestion was adopted, and the month asked
for was allowed. ~

(¢) At this stage another serious offence was committed on the 5th
of March, 1899, namely, the attack on the Cavalry sowars at
the mouth of the Tiarza. The Garerais, a sub-section of the
Alizais, were believed to have been concerned in this offence.
Proposals were submitted for the surprise of certain Abdul
Rabman Khel and Garerai villages with the assistance of
troops, and these proposals were sanctioned in your office tele-
gram of 12th March, 1899. All arrangements were completed
involving the movement of a considerable body of troops, but
when Mr. Watson went out to make the surprise sanctioned,
he had to modify the scheme for the reasons explained in his
telegram of the 14th March, 1899, and his letter, dated the 17th
March, which gives an account of the operations. The sur-
prise was carried out in regard to the Abdul Rahman f[\hels
only. The results of this surprise are reported by Mr. Watson
in his letter, dated the 81st March, 1899, copy forwarded to you
under the cover of this office letter, dated the 18th April, 1899.
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The claims against the Abdul Rahman Khel amounted at the

time to Rs. 3,821 ; a very large part of this was paid up at the

’}gmlle, and good security was furnished for the payment of the
alance.

(f) The Maliks, who had gone to their sections to recover fines, as re-
ported in clause (d), made many recoveries, but the outstanding
balance was still very large. The leading Maliks met in April,
1899, and decided that they should give their allowances which
had not been paid to them for some months past in settlement
of the fines outstanding against their sections, and should malke
the recoveries from their tribesmen or actual offenders after-
wards. The result of these measures was that sums aggregat-
ing Rs. 4,864-10-1 were readily recovered.

(9) Two sections which were heavily involved, and which were under
blockade from the beginning of the year, namely, the Guri
Khels and Jalal Khels, did not attend the jirgas. By this time
the hot weather was setting in, and the sections removed to the
higher hills, where it was difficult to reach them. The Guri
Khels owed a sum of about Rs. 4,000, and the amount due by
the Jalal Khels was Rs. 7,000. These sections are small. Their
Maliks are few in number, and do not appear to have a hold on
their tribesmen. It was decided that further endeavours should
be made to persuade them to come and settle their account.
The Guri Khels disputed the fairness of the award made against
them in the Jani Khel raid case, while the Jalal Khels ex-
pressed their inability to pay such a large sum.

() In July other serious offences were committed, namely—

(1) The attack on a convoy, and murder of a sepoy on the
“1st July, 1899. '

(2) The attack on the Political Officer, Wana, and. murder
of his chaprasi, Mahar Shah, on the 20th July, 1899.

(3) The attack on a convoy on the 23rd July, 1899.

In connection with offence No. (1) the Shahur Shaman Khels
were surprised in their villages, and a number of them were
arrested on the ground of their local responsibility for the
offence, and were detained until the whole amount of fine
imposed in the case was realised.

(?) The Guri Khels and the Jalal Khels were then induced to come

: in. A settlement was arrived at with the former; they have
paid a part of the fine due from them, but they have not carried
out the agreement they made to pay off their fines as has heen
reported to you. Some of the other sections, however, who
were jointly implicated with them, such as Abdullais, have heen
induced to pay in their share of the fine.

(§) Before the Zam attack was made, in the beginning of this month,
arrangements were being made to arrest large convoys of the
Shabi Khels and Jalal Khels in the Bannu District. These
arrangements are being carefully worked out on the Tochi side,
and will, T hope, be successful hereafter.

The result of the steps taken during the past year is that sums aggre-
gating Rs. 21,739-2-11 have been realised during the year on account of the
offences committed in British territory, and against Government or our own
people in protected areas, and Rs. 7,526-1-0 in other cases.
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8. The subjoined table will show the amount cach sub-section has yet
to pay on account of the former class of cases.

Dera Gomal,
Section. Sub-section, Tesmail Wana and Zhoh, Sherani, Bannu, Tochi. Totul,
Khan, Shahur.
] o i —
! l
Alizais, Re.A.P.| Ns.AP. | Rs.A.P. | Re.A.P.| RuAP. | R.AP. | Re AP
|
{| Langar Khels... - — — —_ — — _
l Kai Ehels ...} 50 0 0 — — - _ - 200 0
J Chund Khels ... 69 0 0 — st — -— — GY 0
Gidai
Khels. I Batkais 69 0 0 - - — - _ & 0 o
l Wazirgais -— — -— —_ — —_ _
1| Furidais 150 0 0 - — _ — - e 0 o
Salami Knels .., — — —_ — — -— —
Dachhi Guri Ehels G40 0 0 -— 165 0 0165 0 0139253 3 0 - 4233 3 0
Khels,
Mal Khels ... -— — -— — — — -
|
(1 Mochi Khely ... — . — _— —_— —~ —
Garerais W] 223 6 87 573 8 0] 168 0 0270 0 O —_ — 1234 14 8
Marisais * — 182 0 © — — — o 182 0 ¢
Shumi 4
Khels, Bahadur Khels — — — -— — — .
Para Ehels ... — 50 0 0 o — —_ —_ a0 0 0
| { Malik Dinais ... | 150 0 0 e — —_ - | - 150 0 o
Shabi Khels | Sultanais — - - — - 11400 0 0 1400 0 0
| a N
To‘tt_«lAlizais... 1351 6 8| 805 8 0 333 ¢ 0 435 0 0 3288 3 0}1,-100 0 0] 7608 1 8
!
N ]
Shaman Khels, ‘
Shaman Qasim Khels ...| 360 0 0| 5 8§ 0 - - - - 46 50
|Khels
Bahlol:ais,
(| Jalal Khels 97 8 0 —_ — — 86 4 01(5,03315 0 5107 1 ¢
Dhur and Nek-| 510 0 01,179 1 9 —_ — - - 1689 1 9
zan Khels.
Abdur Rahman| 171 0 0| 160 0 © — - - - s 0 0
Khels, !
! |
Bablolzais { | Kikarais - 50 0 0 — — : — ; —_ 30 0 0
Shingis 285 6 0| 376 0 0 — - - - 61 6 0
Aimal Khels ...| 217 8 0 - — - - - A7 8 0
Abdullais  .,. — 364 0 0 — — - — 364 0 0
{| Marsanzais po — — — —_ 1214 0] 195 0 0 20714 0
Total Bahlolzais {1,961 6 0 |2,129 1 ‘9 _ — 9% 2 0522815 0} &718 5 9
Mahsuds ... | Mahsud 'Tribes —_ — 2009 6 0 — - - 2,009 6 0
—= —
GRAND TOTAL (2,072 12 8 {2,001 1 9 {2432 6 0;435 o (ai3,3sz 5 01662815 018812 § 5
]
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It will be observed that the sum due from the Shaman Khels is very
small, and this sum will be realised without the adoption of any special
measures. Among the Alizais the sections which owe large sums are—Guri
Khels, Rs. 3,283-3-0, Shabi Khels, Rs. 1,400, Garerais, Rs. 1,234-14-8.
Among the Bahlolzais the sections from whom large sums are due are—Nek-
zan Khels, Rs. 1,689-1-9, Jalal Xhels, Rs. 5,033-15-0. In addition to the cases
in which the penalties have been fixed there are some serious offences pending
dispusal, namely— ,
(1) Attack on a convoy guard on July 23rd, 1899.
(2) The attack on the Political Officer, Wana, and the murder of his
chaprasi on 20th July, 1899.
(3) The attack on Border Military Police men near Zeraniobo, in
December, 1899.
(4) The attack on the Zam Post on the 9th January, 1900.
(6) The attack on the Zhob Levy sowars in May, 1898.

The fines which are likely to be imposed in the above cases may be estimated
at Rs. 12,000, which, being added to the sum of Rs. 18,842-8-5 outstanding
on account of the cases already disposed of as reported in paragraph & will
raise the total charge against the tribe to Rs. 81,000 in round numbers. To
this sum may be added Rs. 9,000 more on account of the petty cases pending
disposal against the Mahsuds, and the total charge will amount to nearly
Rs. 40,000.

9. 1If the Mahsuds had not committed fresh serious offences during the
year, the sums recovered during the year would have been sufficient to pay off
all fines and compensation awarded in old cases. The sum of Rs 40,000,
which has been arrived at in the last paragraph is large, and cannot all be
realised at once, unless measures of a very drastic nature are adopted to en-
force the payment. It will be observed that to realise the sum of approxi-
mately Rs. 80,000 in the past year several surprises of villages were made,
convoys were arrested both at Tank and in Bannu, sections were placed under
blockade, Maliks exerted strenuous endeavours to realise fines, and in fact
paid large sums out of their allowances, and every effort was made to induce
the sections which are heavily involved to clear their accounts, with the
result that even the Jalal Khels and Guri Khels, who are the most trouble-
some sections and owe the largest sums, paid up Rs. 2,000 and Rs. 700
‘respectively. If it be desired that the fine due up to date on account of old
“and new undisposed of cases should be realised at once, the only measure which
T can suggest to effect this is to place the whole Mahsud tribe under blockade
until the whole sum is recovered.

10. There is at present great scarcity in the Mahsud country, in con-
sequence of the failure of rains, and though the offences lately committed by
them cannot, I think, be attributed directly to this cause, yet there can be no
doubt that the privation caused by scarcity of food and fodder has occasioned
a certain amount of restlessness among the disaffected. If a blockade of the
tribe is decided on it will be necessary to strengthen the military posts in the
Shahur, and to place military garrisons in certain levy posts, such as Ngandi-
oba and Haidri Kach, and also to strengthen the Border Military Police
posts on the Dera Ismail Khan and part of the Bannu border. As a result of
blockade it must be anticipated that our negotiations with Mulla. Powindah,
which are at present being arranged to enlist his assistance on the side of
Government, will be interrupted, the raising of the Militia Corps in Southern
Waziristan will, no doubt, be interfered with, and our friendly relations with
the tribe and the Maliks will be broken off temporarily ; but at the same time
there can be no doubt that the blockade of the whole tribe, which is already
hard pressed for food and fodder, will probably bring about the submission
of the tribe in a reasonably short time, and will lead to the early recovery of
all the outstanding fines. It is now for the Government to decide whether it
is necessary to realize the whole sum promptly and at once. If so, there
appears to be no other alternative than the adoption of the extreme measure
suggested above. On the other hand, if Government is not disposed to
‘sanction this measure, the realisation of the fine by means such as were
adopted last year will proceed in due course. The progress in realisation will,
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no doubt, be gradual, but ther'e will be no serious risk of straining relation
with the tribe or the Maliks, wlio will in the future render the same assistanc
that they have rendered in the past..

11. As to the motives of the sericus offences committed last year, thex
is yet some uncertainty in regard to tbem. Mr. Watson is positive in hi
opinion that these offences were committed at the instigation, or at the in
stance of Mulla Powindah. He has, in fact, from the very first suspected that
the Mulla is at the bottom of these offences. But on the other hand, if the
Mulla is actually desirous of coming to a settlement with Government, as he
appears to be, why should he instigate offences of this kind. The Mulla does
not attempt to gain his ends by openly showing that he can trouble the
"Government by the commission of serious offences. On the contrary he tries
to exonerate humself and his men. On more than one occasion when an offence
of a serious nature had been committed he has at once sent an express mes-
sage to the Political Officer or to the Naib Tahsildar to the effect that his men
were not concerned in' the offence. "Whether Mulla Powindah is or is not the
instigator of these offences there can be no doubt that the Maliks, as a body,
are well disposed, and wish to maintain friendly relations with Government.
Mr. Watson assures me that there is no sign whatever of hostility on the part
of the tribe in general, or of any large section in particular, and I have no
reason to differ from the conclusion arrived at by him. I have, however,
observed of late, and particularly since the Border Military Police have been
armed with Sniders, that there is an ever-increasing desire among the Mah-
suds to possess themselves of firearms of a superior kind, and there appears
to be no doubt that in every case that has been committed during the past
year the aim of the offenders was to get hold of riffes. It is not to be sup-
posed that the Mahsuds are gathering together arms of precision as a pre-
paration for the display of hostility towards Government. Like the Afridis
they find that the better a man is armed the stronger he is in the tribe,
and each man and boy does his best to acquire good arms, and will stick
at nothing to obtain them. The Mulla’s followers have devoted their energies
particularly to securing firearms, and presumably the Mulla encourages them,
in order to strengthen his own position in the tribe. He appears to be play-
ing a double game, coquetting with Government, while he attempts to
strengthen his position in the tribe by increasing the armed strength of his
body gugrd. Thave asked Mr. Watson to make further careful and searching
enquiries to ascertain what are the objects of the Mulla, and what is the
correct explanation of his conduct and submit a separate report on the
pont.

12. As regards the Zam case, the Shabi- Khels, Jalal Khels, and

Bhittannis are suspected. I have seen Mr. Watson and discussed the situa-
tion with him. He wishes that some further time may be given to prosecute
gnqluiries as to the sections to which the offenders belonged. I have accord-
ingly postponed action for ten days to enable him to complete his enquiries.
I propose, in the event of a blockade of the tribe being not approved of,
to make a large baramta of the sections implicated, if this can be done with-
out serious risks. It is desirable to bring about a prompt settlement in this
case as well as of any other cases that may be pending against, those sections.
This has already been reported to you—aoide correspondence ending with this
office endorsement, dated 22nd instant.

: Annexure 2.
Letter from IV, R. 11, Mert. Lsq., C.8.L, Officiating Chicf Secretary to torern-
ment, Puniab, to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Jerajat Division,
dated Lahore, 6ih February, 1900.

I am directed by the Lieutenant-Governor to acknowledge the receipt
of your letter, dated the 24th January, 1900, on the subject of our prescnt
position as regards the Mahsud tribe, in connection with the question of
redress for offences in which satisfaction is still duc to Government.
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2. The case stands thus: No action was advisedly taken during the
winter of 1897-98 to obtain a settlement, in consequence of the general excite-
ment then prevailing on the border, which it was apprehended might spread to
Waziristan.  The Lieutenant-Governor agrees with you that this was a
good reason at the time for suspending pressure. The spring of 1898 would
probably have been a favourable opportunity for resuming operations, when
the news of the defeats of the tribes was fresh along the frontier. The pend-
ing cases were, as a matter of fact, taken up during the winter of 1898-99,
and at the close of the year 1898, the balance for which the Mahsuds were
found to be liable was Rs. 22,115. 1In the course of the year 1899, a sum of
Rs. 21,739, in cash, with various recoveries in kind, was realised. 'While the
proceedings for collecting the balance of Rs. 22,115 were in progress, a suc-
cession of offences, some of them having a grave character, has raised the out-
standings payable by the Mahsuds to about Rs. 40,000. In this sum is not
included the penalty for the attack on the Murtaza rest-house guard, which
occurred on the day before your letter was despatched. Against this, the
proceeds of the seizures in the Zeranobo affair, amounting to Rs. 3,460, may
be set off, <o that the pending balance at the present moment remains roughly
Rs. 40,000. After realisations which very nearly reach the opening balance
of 1899 we find ourselves now with a closing balance of double the amount.
The debit account apparently accumulates much faster fhan it can be
hiquidated.

3. The Lieutenant-Governor cannot regard the situation as satis-
factory. The measures which you propose at this juncture are either a block-
ade or the recovery of the balance by means such as have been adopted
during 1899. In view of the experience of the past year it is clear that the
employment of these latter means gives us no reasonable guarantee of a
speedy settlement or of the cessation of offences in the future.

4. In consideration of the large balance, and of the numerous offences
lately committed by the Mahsuds, it seems to the Lieutenant-Governor that
the time has come for bringing bome to the whole Mahsud tribe the gravity
of the situation, in which it has been placed by the misconduct of many of its
members. A blockade, to be of any use, should obviously be one, not of
individual sections, but of the whole tribe. But before it is imposed the Lieu-
tenant-Governor thinks that the Mahsuds should have an opportunity of
complying with our demands and that a formal demand should be made on
the whole tribe. For this purpose it wculd be necessary to summon not alone
the 270 Maliks (vide Appendix D to Mr. Bruce’s letter, dated the 26th May,
1895), whom we subsidise cut of a fighting strength of some 10,000 men, but
all the grey-beards, elders and persons of influence who sway the tribal
councils. It the fully representative body of the whole tribe fails to satisfy
Government, we shall then probably be compelled to resort to a blockade.
The Lieutenant-Governor will be glad of your opinion on the proposed step,
212., to convene a full jirga of the Mahsuds and to formally call upon the tribe
to make redress. A full jirga is requisite because it is abundantly clear from
what has happened since December, 1898, that the Maliks (who are reported
to be willing to aid Government) have neither the power to restrain the clans-
men nor the ability to furnish early information of the personality of offen-
ders; in the Zeranobo case, for instance, although it occurred six weeks ago,
the identity of the attacking party seems to be still doubtful. Much less do-
they appear to have the power to bring offenders promptly to justice.

5. In your letter under acknowledgment you have adverted to the effect
of the blockade upon the negotiations with Mulla Powindah. The Political
Officer is positive in his opinion that the more serious offences during the
past twelve months have been committed at his instigation. If the Mulla is
sincere in his overtures, it is very doubtful of course if this view or information
can be correct. But the point is whether he is sincere or not; you yourself
think that he is playing a double game. However that may be, it is un-
questionable that the Mulla is responsible for the present state of affairs in
exact proportion to his power in the tribe, like gny other Mahsud of note and

11256 H



a8

weight. If he really wishe; to further the interests of Government, he will
have an excellent opportunity of using his influence in that direction at the
jirga which is suggested.

6. A rupture in our friendly relations will naturally interfere for the
time with the enlistment of Mahsuds in the Southern Waziristan Militia,
but would probably not affect the non-Mahsud clement, the Darwesh Khel,
Dotanis, Ghilzais and British subjects whom, the Lieutenant-Governor under-
stands, 1t is also proposed to entertain in the Militia. I am to ask for your
opinion in this matter.

7. Itis quite possible that the present scarcity in the Mahsud hills may
bring a blockade to a speedy conclusion, but it would have to he stringent,
and efficient, and we should be prepared for outbreaks. Under these con- .
ditions the Lieutenant-Governor desires your opinion, so far as vou are able
to frame it at the present stage, without delaying this refercnce, as to the
employment of further troops and of Border Military Police and Levies on the
lines of communication with Wana, along the border of the Dera Ismail Khan
and Bannu Districts, and, perhaps, in the Tochi also.

8. In conclusion, I am to remark that, as previously intimated, the
Lieutenant-Governor is inclined to think that, judging by results, the present
procedure in force on the Derajat border for the settlement of cases requires
some change; the process of ascertaining and, if possible, of effecting the
surrender and punishment of individual offenders, and failing this, of dealing
first with small sub-sections, then with sections, and so on till the whole clan
or tribe is reached, seems’ to be productive of delay and complications. The
following seems to be some of the necessary accompaniments of the system.
First there is the difficulty in obtaining information, which has already been
mentioned. Then the jirgas or judges in the trials of the offenders appear to
run no inconsiderable personal risk when they do bring cases to light; this
was brought to notice in Mr. Watson’s report on the Tiarza case, received
with your letter, dated the 6th December, 1899, and has been observed in
other instances. At times, too, the Maliks, who are paid to help our officers,
do not skrink from deliberate perjury, witness the case reported in your en-
dorsement, No. 34, of the 15th January, 1900. The procedure of gradation
from the person of the offender through successive tribal sub-divisions to the
whole body of the clan is no doubt excellent in theory, but the inherent diffi-
culties make it so slow and uncertain that it seems to fail to give us redress
or to act with sufficient deterrent force on the tribesmen, and the Licutenant-
Governor is inclined to think that when offenders are not promptly given up by
the Maliks, immediate recourse to tribal responsibility is likely to be more
efficacious in preserving peace and in enforcing good conduct. This, how-
ever, is a subject that can be more conveniently discussed when matters
have been put straight between us and the Mahsuds.

Enclosure 2 in No. 2.

Letter from J. M. Douie, Esq., Oficiating Chief Necretary o Glorernment,
Puniab, to the Secretary to "the Government of India, Forcign Department,
dated Lahore, 16th April, 1900.

_In continuation of this office telegram, dated 26th March,.H)OO, Iam
directed to submit, for the information of the Government of India, a copy of
a letter, dated 30th March, 1900, and cnclosure, from the Commissioner and
Superintendent, Derajat Division, containing a complete report on the settle-
ment recently effected with the Mahsud Waziris.

_ 2. The Lieutenant-Governor desires me to sav that he considers that
this settlement, which is a most satisfactory one, is mainly due to the personal
influence of M. Anderson, whom the tribes on the Derajat border have learnt
to trust.
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3. With reference to the remarks made in paragraph 10 of the Commis-
sloner’s letter regarding the future management of the tribe, His Honour can
only say that he has no objection whatever to the system of dealing with
wdividual offenders cr sub-sections of tribes provided that—

(1) this method 1s accepted by the tribal jirga; and
(2) it is not productive of delay.

The present case, however, appears to His Honour to afford an exemplary
instance of the value of resorting to general tribal responsibility, Although
the Maliks in the last sentence of their petition mildly protest against this
method of treatment being regarded as a precedent, Sir Mackworth Young
15 inclined to regard it as a most valuable precedent. The Commissioner
was enabled, by means of negotiations with the full tribal jirga, numbering
as many as 2,500 persons, to effect a complete settlement up to date of cases
involving demands to the amount of Rs. 35,000. If these cases had been
settled by the individual method, they would probably have dragged on for
many months, perhaps years. Provided the amounts are realised, the inci-
dent seems to the Lieutenant-Governor to establish conclusively the im-
portance of keeping in view the tribal responsibility, which 1s the only secure
basis for diplomatic relations with such a heterogeneous body as the Mahsud
tribe.

Annexure 1.

Letter from L. 4. Anderson, Lsq., C.S., C.S.L., Commissioner and Superinten-
dent, Derajat Division, to the Chief Secretary tv Government, Punjab, dated
Dera Ismail Khan, 30th Mareh, 1900,

In continuation of my telegram, dated the 24th instant, reporting the
settlement made with the Mashuds by which all the cases pending against
the tribe to that date had been disposed of, I have the honour to submit
a translation of the petition presented to me by the Mahsud Maliks, on the
24th instant, and referred to i the telegram cited above.

2. It will be convenient to narrate here briefly the circumstances which
led to the conclusion of the present settlement.

In the end of January last, after the commission of certain serious offences,
notably—
(1) the attack on Border Military Police sowars at Zarrani Oba, on
the 15th December, 1899;

(2) the attack made on the garrizon of the Zam Post, on the 9th Janu-
ary, 1900;

1 submitted a detailed report in my letter, dated the 24th January, in which
I attempted to describe as clearly as possible our position as regards the
Mahsud tribe, and our relations with it, in order to determine what action
should be taken to obtain redress as regards both the cases which had then
been disposed of, and alzo the cases which were then pending against the tribe.
In my report I gave a brief account of the measures which had been adopted in
connection with the settlement of cases, and the realisation of fines due by the
tribes since the autumn of 1898, in order to show that all possible steps had
been taken to obtain reparation as early as was practicable, with the con-
currence of the Maliks, and without breaking off relations with the tribe in
general, with the result that fines aggregating nearly Rs. 30,000 had been
realised from the tribe in the past vear by means of those measures. At
the same time I recommended that if it was desired that the fines due to
date on account of the old disposed of and new undisposed of cases should be
realised at once, the whole Mahsud tribe should be placed under a blockade
until the whole sum was recovered, which measure I considered could be
carried out after stiengthening the military posts in the Shahur, and placing
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military garrisons in certain levy posts, and strengthening certain Border
Military posts on the Dera Ismail Khan and part of the Bannu border. 1
pointed out, however, that the measure was attended with certain diflicultics,
and would lead to the temporary interruption of our relations with the tribe,
and suggested, as an alternative, the realisation of the fines by means such as
had been adopted during 1899. The Government, however, decided that
the employment of measures, such as were used jn 1899, gave no reasonable
guarantee of a speedy settlement or of the cessation of offences in the future,
and considered that before the blockade was imposed the Mahsuds should
have an opportunity of complying with our demands. The Government
further proposed that a Tormal demand should be made on the whole tribe,
and asked for my opinion on this proposal. In the meantime the Political
Officer, Wana, was arranging for an interview which he had proposed with
Mullah Powindah, and the submission of the opinion called for wus delayed
for a short while. The enquiries, however, made in the ihterval in regard to
the serious offences, which had induced me to consider the position in regard
to the tribe seriously, and to postpone drastic measures for reparation, showed
that these offences were the work of intriguers, that the tribe in general was
not to blame, and that it had, on the whole, bebaved hetter than usual, as
was reported in my telegram, dated the 9th instant. Mr. Watson strongly
deprecated taking action against the tribe as proposed by Government. 1
recommended that a formal demand for the payment of the fines should be
made, first on the jirga of Maliks, and then on the whole tribe, as proposed,
if Government was prepared to pass orders that in default of compliance wit)
our demands within a month a blockade of the whole tribe would be declarec
and carried out. At the same time I expressed my concurrence with Mr.
Watson, that the tribe as a whole was not to blame for the serious outrages
recently committed.

3. As the time for my making over charge of the Division before pro-
ceeding on furlough was drawing rapidly near, on the 9th March I summoned
the whole Mahsud jirga to Tank for the 17th of the month, in order to go
there, and first discuss matters with the Maliks myself, and see if any settle-

ment could be made fox the recovery of the fines and settlement of all pending
cases.

I summoned the whole Mahsud jirga in order that if Government decid-
ed by that date that a formal demand should be made on the whole Mahsud
tribe as proposed, there should be no difficulty in making it at once. The
Government decided, however, that it was inadvisable to make a formal
demand at this time, and left me to discuss matters with the Maliks, and
see if any settlement could he made.

4. I proceeded to Tank on the 18th instant, and first interviewed the
leading Maliks. I explained to them the gravity of the position, and im-
pressed on them the desirability of making some arrangement to clear the
tribe. 1 cxplained that I was shortly going on leave, and that I desirved to
bring about a settlement in the interest of the tribe as well as of Government,

and this was the last opportunity that I would have of effecting such a settle-
ment,

The maliks promptly expressed their readiness to fall in with my wishes,
and asked me to have an estimate made out of the fines which would have
to be paid on account of all pending cases. ‘

5. The whole of the files which were found pending against the tribe
on account of offences committed to that date in British territory, the Shirani
country and Zhob and against Government or British subjects in the Gumal,
the Shahur, Wana, and the Tochi were examined. It was cstimated that
the Mahsuds would be liable to pay a fine of Rs. 18,000 in resi)ect of these
cases in addition to nearly Rs. 17,000 already due by them, or in all Rs. 33,000.
This estimate was communicated to the Maliks, who then held consultations,
and discussions, with a view to make arrangements for the liquidation of this

~sum, and the outcome was the presentation of the petition of the 24th instant,
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which was drawn up by all the Maliks unanimously, and was verified on the
afternoon of that date in an open Darbar attended by over 2,500 Mahsuds of
all classes.
6. In this petition the Mahsuds Maliks arranged for the payment of
nearly Rs. 20,000 at once, as follows :— R
5.

(1) Their allowances for three months... =~ ... 8,466
(2) Half the pay of the levies for three months 3,300
(3) Estimated value of two-third share of th

rabi crops of the Mahsud lands ... ... 3,234

(4) Sale proceeds of previous crops of the
Mahsud lands in deposit ... ... 5,000
Total ... 20,000

Most of the money under the first and second items will be available on
the 1st of April, and will be awarded as compensation in cases. The amount
of the fourth item has been made over to the Political Officer. As regards
the third item, tenders were invited for the purchase of the green crops. The
highest bid which was made was Rs. 4,000 for the whole share of the Maliks.
The Naib Tahsildar, Tank, who inspected the crops, assured me that Rs. 6,000
to Rs. 5,000 might be accepted as a safe cstimate of the full Mahsud share of
the produce when ripe. In any case the sale proceeds of the crops will not
be less than the estimated amount. With regard to the balance of Rs. 15,000,
the Maliks offered to pay a toll on all camels, bullocks, cows, donkeys, &ec.,
coming in trading convoys to the Dera Ismail Khan and Bannu Districts
and the Tochi Valley. The offer was a reasonable one, and I had no hesi-
tation in accepting it on the spot, and I issued orders for the imposition of the
toll at once. It is hoped that the Rs. 15,000 will be recovered within six
months.

7. The Maliks were certainly supported by the whole tribe in general in
making the offer to pay tolls, as none of the 2,500 men, who were present
in the Darbar, and to whom the Maliks’ petition was translated into Pashtu,
made any objection. The settlement which has been concluded has the
great advantage, I think, of bearing on all classes equally, namely, the Ma-
liks, the levies, and the masses who have any relations with British territory.

8. As soon as I discovered the satisfactory attitude of the Maliks, and
before the petition of the Maliks was presented on the 24th, I arranged that
the cases pending against the Mahsuds relating to the Dera Ismail Khan
District and the Shirani country should be taken up by the Deputy Commis-
sioner of Dera Ismail Kbhan and the Political Officer, Wana. In the same
way the cases in which offences had been committed against Government,
British subjects, and Powindahs in the Gomal, the Shahur and Wana were
referred to jirgas. The Political Officer reports to-day that Rs. 16,003 in
all have been awarded as compensation by the jirgas, namely, Rs. 8,997 in
the Dera Ismail Khan cases, Rs. 515 in the Shirani country cases, and Rs.
6,491 in respect of Gomal, Shahur, and Wana cases.

Statement A, which forms the enclosure of Mr. Donald’s letter, dated
the 21st November, 1899, a copy of which was forwarded to you with this
office letter, dated the 16th December last, will show that there were only
seven Tochi cases against the Mahsuds in which Government or British sub-
jects are complainants. In most of these reparation has already been ob-
tained. The Political Officer, Wana, however, is arranging to meet Mr.
Donald in a few days to dispose of all the cases pending against the Mah-
Sﬁds to date, and to ascertain the actual amount of compensation in respect of
them.

The Political Officer, Wana, and the Dolitical Agent, Zhob, held a joint
jirgah at Tank in November last to dispose of the cases against Mahsuds,
relating to the Zhob District, and only eight cases were then left undisposed
of. These, together with any other cases that may have been brought against
the tribe since then, will be taken up probably next month. Though the
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Tochi and Zhob cases have not been actually disposed of, the amount which
will be left in hand after paying for the disposed of cases relating to other
tracts will, it is hoped, be more than enough to mect the demands of the
Tochi and the Zhob District. Assuming that no modification is made in the
awards of the jirga in the cases which are being disposed of, the demand
against the tribe will amount to Rs. 32,854-8-0, as follows: —
(1) Fines unrealised in cases disposed of Rs. A D.
before the present settlement (Kabuli

rupee equals eight annas) ... ... 16,851 8 0
(2) Dera Ismail Khan cases recently dis-

posed of .. 8997 0 0
(3) Shirani country cases recently dis-

posed of e 015 000
(4) Gomal, Shahur, and Wana Valley ... 6491 0 0

Total ... 32,854 0

Y o}

This leaves Rs. 2,145-8-0 to meet the Tochi and Zhob demands. It is pro-
bable, however, that some modifications of the jirga awards, as reported by
Mr. Watson will be made, and that the total receipts from the Mahsud land
crops will exceed the estimated amount by about Rs. 700, in which case we
shall have over Rs. 3,000 in hand for the Tochi and Zhob cases. Under these
circumstances, the settlement which has been made leaves no case pending
anywhere against the Mahsuds, except the inter-tribal cases, which will be
disposed of as opportunities offer.

9. It is gratifying to me to be able to report to Government that the
large Mahsud jirga, which assembled on the present occasion, showed a very
© friendly and cordial attitude. The Maliks displayed good feeling and grati-
tude for the friendly relations which have been maintained in the past between
the local officers and themselves. This feeling of cordiality between the
officers who are conducting our political dealings, with the tribe and the
tribal Maliks, is increasing as time goes on; and as the intimacy and personal
intercourse grow closer and closer, and the true knowledge of each other in-
creases, the feeling will, I think, unquestionably grow stronger, provided the
policy of the past, namely, the policy of acting through headmen, is main-
tained in the future. Mr. Gee and the other English officers, who were
present at the jirga will bear me out in saying that the leading note struck
by the tribal speakers at the jirga was that they were grateful to the local
officers for the treatment they had received in the past, and they made this
tribal settlement to show their good-will to the local officers, and to mark
their gratitude for the friendly relations maintained by these officers with the
tribal Maliks and the tribe through the Maliks.

10. It has been placed on record recently that the Lieutenant-Governor
considers that the present procedure in force on the Derajat border for the
settlement of cases requires some change, and the want of tribal unity is our
principal difficulty in dealing with the Mahsuds. In view of these remarks
1t appears to me right that I should, before proceeding on leave, report the
result of my experience of working the Mahsuds during the last four years
I have had charge of the tribe as Commissioner. I consider that the system
for the settlenient of cases which has been in force has, on the wholé, worked
well and satisfactorily. I fully admit that the Derajat system of working is
slow, and is attended with difficulties. The effort to bring home offences
to the actual offenders, and to obtain their surrender and punishment causes
delay, and we do not"generally, though we do occasionally, obtain prompt
Sat1§facti0n. Similarly, the enforcement of the graded responsibility of sub-
section, section, and finallv the tribe is not favourable to the immediate settle-
ment of cases. On the other hand, the svstem of obtaining reparation from
actual offenders, and of restricting punisliment to a guilty section instead of
at once punishing the whole tribe is a much less primitive system than the
svstem of habitvally from the first enforcing tribal responsibility. Tt is far
more popular with the Mahsud tribe; the alternative system is distasteful to
them. Tt js repugnant to them, because the weak and innocent are forced
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to share the punishment with the strong and the guilty. The Mahsuds are

sufficiently civilized to appreciate the ethical superiority of the one system to
the other.

We have for some years past attempted to work the present system in the
face of difficulties, but it must take its time before it can be fully developed,
and time may well be allowed before it is condemned. During the past year
we have enforced personal responsibility and inflicted punishment on actual
offenders in more than one serious case of offence. :

There can be no doubt, I think, that any essential change in the present
system of working will weaken the power and influence of the Maliks, and the
system of working through them will break down. In former yvars the
system of dealing with the Mahsuds was that we dealt with the tribe as a
whole. The evil of this system is that the tribe easily becomes committed as
a body, and then there is no alternative but to enforce our demands by a
military expedition. The experience of the past shows that, under this
system, our chances of cultivating friendly relations are small, and it is
difficult to enlist the sympathy of the tribe. Coercive pressures are the essen-
tial basis of this system, and they are not conducive to the cultivating of really
friendly and sympathetic relations. Punitive expeditions mark our attempts
in the past to manage the Mahsud tribe, dealing with it as a whole.

The Mahsud Maliks receiving allowances have, undoubtedly, not acted
up to the full extent of their obligations, and their position and influence
are weakened by their jealousies of each other, their feuds and intrigues.
Moreover, their tribesmen are turbulent and difficult to manage. Making all
allowances for their defects, it must be admitted, in my opinion, that the
Maliks have been of the greatest assistance in managing the tribe. They
are, I think, gaining power and influence, and are gradually justifying the
position assigned to them in the tribe under our arrangements. Had it not
been for their influence in the tribe, and their disposition to maintain friendly
relations with Government, the settlement now arrived at would never have
been effected. They saw clearly the seriousness of the position; they realised
the danger of friendly relations being broken off, owing to the outrages com-
mitted by a small minority of tribesmen. They grasped the situation, and in
return for the sympathetic treatment accorded to them in the past they
readily acquiesced in my wishes that they should use all their power and
influence in the tribe to induce it to pay up the fincs due, and make a friendly
settlement. Had we not had these sensible responsible men to deal with,
I do not think that it would have been possible to have made a settlement.
A blockade would have been necessary to coerce the tribe, our friendly re-
Jations, which we have done our best to create and consolidate at much ex-
pense and trouble would have been broken, and had the blockade failed,
there would have been no alternative left but to send out another expedition.
The settlement now made at Tank affords strong evidence of the power,
strength, and friendly. spirit of the Mahsud Maliks, and should not be over-
looked when considering whether radical changes should be introduced into
our present system of managing the Mahsud tribe.

11. In conclusion, I desire to tender my best thanks to Mr. Gee, Deputy
Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan, and Mr. Watson, Political Officer, Wana,
for their hearty co-operation and assistance rendered in bringing about the
settlement. Mr. Gee has acted as Political Officer in Southern Waziristan,
and his knowledge of the Dera Ismail Khan Frontier, and the relations of the
Mahsuds with British territory, enabled him to make full use of the intelli-
gence and influence of the leading men of that frontier for the promotion
of the settlement. Mr. Watson has earned the liking and respect of the
Mahsud Maliks by the marked fairness and justness of his dealings with them,
and by his accessibility and patience. He has acquired influence in Southern
Waziristan, and I regret that we are soon to Jose the benefit of his experience
and knowledge of the Mahsud tribe.

T desire also to bring to the notice of Government the good work done
in connection with the settlement by Mr. E. Tej Bhan, Head Clerk of my
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office, and by Muhammad Azim Khan, Naib Tabsildar of the Mahsuds, The
former proved himself invaluable in working out the terms of a practicable
settlement and in obtaining the unanimous consent of the Maliks to them.
His intimate knowledge of the Maliks and of their personal characters and
relations once more came in usefully, and he showed his usual tact and judg-
ment in his dealings with them. Muhammad Azim Khan showed goSd
political capacity, and worked hard and well.

Anmnexure 2.

TRANSLATION of a petitiqn, dated Qi.th March, 1900, presented by the Mahsud
Maliks representing all sections in a Darbar atttnded by neaxly 2,500
Mahsuds at Tank.

With reference to your enquiries as to what measures should be adopted
for the realisation of the fines amounting to about Rs. 17,000 due on account
of the cases already disposed of, and for the disposal of the cases pending
against the Mahsuds, we beg to state as follows:—

After full consideration and discussion it is only right that the offending
sections should be made to pay the fines due by them, i order that pressure
might be brought to bear on the actual offenders. Each Malik should control
and restrain his section, otherwise he should bear the consequences of his
failure. This practice has been in vogue in the past. No doubt on special
occasions the tribe joined in settling matters affecting the tribe as a whole.

You have now explained that the amount of the fine realizable in cases
already disposed of, or still pending against the tribe, is a substantial one, and
it would take time to recover it if each section is made to pay the amount due
from it, that you are about to proceed on leave, and that you desire that the
tribe should clear itself before your departure. You have examined all the
files pending against the tribe in which the offence was committed in British
territory or Zhob, or against Government or British subjects in the Gomal
Pass, Shahur, Wana or Tochi.

You estimate that fines ageregating eighteen thousand will be imposed
in those cases. The total fine will thus amount to Rs. 35,000 for all offences
recorded against the Mahsuds to date.

This is a large sum, however, and, owing to failure of crops, there is great
distress in the hills. The Mahsuds you are aware have scanty means of Liveli-
hood, and the recent drought has made their condition worse, and we, the
Maliks, are pressed hard. But as it is very necessary to settle all the cases at
once, we unanimously propose that the allowances of all the Maliks for three
months, and half the pay of the levies for three months should be credited
to the fines, as well as two-thirds of the Maliks’ share of the produce of the
rabi crops of the lands granted to Mahsuds by Government, and the amount
in deposit being the income of the Mahsud lands should also be devoted to the
liquidation of the fine. We hope that in this way the sum of Rs. 20,000 will
be recovered at once.

As regards the payment of the remaining sum of Rs. 15,000, we propose
that a light toll should be imposed on camels, bullocks, &c., accompanying
Babhirs to Dera, Bannu, and Daur, and Rs. 5,000 should be realised from each
of the three sections of the Mahsud trive, i.e., Alizai, Shaman Khel, and
Bahlolzai. When one section has paid up its share of the fine of Rs. 5,000
1s responsibility should cease, and it should not be required to help in the
liquidation of the arrears of the other section.

The following scale of tax is proposed to be imposed:—

For a camel ... 8 annas,
»  bullock ... ... 3 annas.
» donkey .. 1 anna 6 pies.

» balla broug}it down to Tank by water ... 1,
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We trust that by this arrangement the tribe will clear itself in the course
of a few months, but we request that this arrangement may not be taken
as a precedent for the future, and pressure may be made to bear on the actual
offenders, and the offending sections should be made to clear themselves, so
that the bad characters may not be cmboldened. Even in the present cases,
It&e money, if realised from the actual offenders, should be refunded to the

aliks.

This petition is submitted for favour of sanction.
We, the petitioners, are—

Sealed by Malik Bad Shah Khan, Alizai,
- Malik Mubammad Afzal, Alizai.
Malik Badr Din.
Mir Ajal, Malik of Hailfat Khel.
Malik Bramat Khan, Aimal Khel.
Fateh Khan Shingi, Bahlolzai.
Ghazi Khan Malik, Shaman Khel.
Ala Bagh, Malik, Shaman Khel.
Signed by Muhammad Amir Khan, Malik.
) Malik Fateh Roz Khan, Shaman Khel.
Marwat.
Muhammad Ayaz Xhan, Shabi Khel.
Sealed by Shah Salim, Michi Khel. :
Khawaja Muhammad Khan.
Signed by Muhammad Amin Khan, Shaman Khel.
Sealed by Shahzad, Shami Khel.
Muhammad Afzal, Gaga Khel.
Muhammad Afzal. -
Sur Kamand, Aimal Khel, Malik Shabi.
Khatakai. -
Zabar Khan,
Pasham Din, Aimal Khel.
Signed by Ali Khan. :
Sealed by Zama Khan. :
Faqir, Shaman Khel..
- Tor Khan. :
Sealed by Gul Khan.
Arsala Khan.,
Muhammad Ali Khan.
Gul Pir.
Tor.,
.+ Gul Dad, Abdul Rahman Khel.
Signed by Talib.
Maizar.
Sealed by Shahzam.,
Signed by Jamal.
Sealed by Janggi.
Signed by Muhammad Amin, Shahman Khel.
Sealed by Muhammad Amir, Shahman Khel.
Shahzar Shingi.
Signed by Haji Muhammad.
Sealed by Panani Khan.
Rasul Khan.
Atta Muhammad.
Signed by Ziyate.
Sealed by Maida.
Malang.
Bara Khan.
Senrang.
Mnazam Khan.
Gandapur,
Shahamar Dix,
11256 I
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Sealed by Saiyid Akbar Shah.
Sanobar Shah,
Muhammad Amin Khan, Shahman Khel.
Fazal Khan.

Azim Khan.

Signed by Gauhar Malik.
Muzaffargarh Khan.
Gul Band, Band Khel.
Gul. Walli.

Sealed by Ghaizal.
Maindar Khan.
Khawaja Gai. .
Fateh Roz, Shahman Khel.
Khaila, Shahman Khel,
Bailak.
Nazar.

Signed by Salehin.

Sealed by Naizam Din,
Samandi Khan.
Piyao Shah.
Mamidar,
Karim Khan.

Sealed by :é{hawaja Muhammad.

alz

Bazgul Khau,
Salim Khan,
Zar Piyao, Badanzai.
Signed by Gul Bagh.
Sealed by Shahnazar.
Nilgar.
Haji Muhammad.
Signed by Khana Shah.
Nek Amal.
Sealed by Badarkai.
Signed by Pira Khel, Shamerai.
Sealed by Tairsam.
Maula Dad, Shaman Khel,
Signed by Rasha Din, Gule Shabi.
- Sealed by Bat, Shabi Khel.
Shanir.
Suleman, Badanzai.
Adal Khan, Badanzai, .
Shaujar Khan, son of Sayid Shaman Khel.
Dinak, Shabi Khel.
Mustafa, Bibizal.
Signed by Suleman, Shabi Khel.
Haidar, Shabi Khel.
Darai, Shabi Khel.
Sealed by Azmat, Batkai.
Brahim Khan.
Salehin.
Sealed by Sabil Khan.
Bala Hissar.
Khudrai.
. Akbar Shah.
Signed by Azam, Gori Khel,
Tor, Gori Khel.
Saidal.
Tair Sam.
Bayyid Muhammad.
Sealed by Laki, Shamerai.
Signed by Sher Ali Khan, Shamerai.
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Sealed by Shahzad, Kasim Khel.
Kakar, Shaman Khel.
Barat Khan.
Taman Khan.
Bara Xhel, Shahman Khel.
Mamidar, Shahman Khel.
Lal Gul
Azam, Turi Khel.
Saidal, Gurt Khel.

Enclosure 3 in No. 2.

Letter from Sir William Cuningham, K.C.S.1., Secretary to the Government of
India, Foreign Department, to the Chief Secretary to the (Government of the
Punjab, dated Simla, the 16th May, 1900.

I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter, dated the 16th
April, 1900, forwarding a report on the general settlement recently effected
with the Mahsuds.

2. As far as can be judged at present, the settlement may be regarded
as satisfactory; but the confiscation of half the pay of the levies in Southern
‘Waziristan, in order to make up the fine, indicates a weak spot, unless, indeed,
this was expressly ordered on the ground that many of the offences were to
be ascribed to the negligence of the levies. Experience alone can show
whether the hope that Rs. 15,000 will be realised within six months by tolls
on caravans is not over sanguine.

3. 'With reference to the future management of the tribe, the Govern-
ment of India will only observe that the best method of dealing with the
Pathans of Waziristan appears to be 3till a matter for experiment. The
recent negotiations were not conducted exclusively with the Maliks, and the
degree of success with which the negotiations were attended may indicate
that it is desirable for the tribe to be more fully represented during discus-
sions with the local authorities than had previously been the custom.

The matter, however, is one in which the Government of India do not
desire to fetter in any way the discretion of the Local Government or of the
local officers. Similarly, in regard to the question of individual offenders and
tribal responsibility, the Government of India prefer to lay down no fixed
principle, and will leave it to the local officers to deal with particular cases in
such a manner as may, on a consideration of all the circumstances, seem suit-
able. They ought not to regard it as an inflexible rule that attempts must be
made to find and punish the individual offenders before tribal responsibility
is enforced.

4. The Govgrqor«Geperal in Counecil awaits with interest the result of
Mr. Merk’s negotiations with the Mahsuds concerning their difficulties with
the Darwesh Khel, as decided upon at the recent conference at Dera Ismail
Khan.

Enclosure 4 in No. 2.

Eatract from letter from J. M. Douie, Esq., Officiating Chicf Secretary to the
Government of the Punjab, to the Secretary to the Government of India
Foreign Department, dated Lahore, the 15th May, 1900. ' ’
The Lieutenant-Governor understands that, by sugeesting in

Mr. Barnes's letter, dated the 2nd October, 1599, that we should come tc

terms with the Mullah, the Government of India means that, if he could be

induced to formulate some reasonable basis for a good understanding, they

11256 10
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would have no objection to ~ubsidizing him.  But while Le muy intend to do
this in time, he has assuredly not done so yet, and Sir Mackwerth Young is
of opinion that, though a present may whet his appetite, it will, under present
circumstances, be mizunderstood.  Whatever favours are bestowed upon hiwa
should have their equivalent in some engagement on his part.

I am to ask for very early orders on this reference.

Enclosure 5 in No. 2.

Letter grom J. M. Douic, Lsy., Ujiciating Chief Necretury to the Gurerioment of
the Punjab, to the Necretary to the Gorerament of Dulia, Fereige Drpat-
ment, dated Simla, the 19tk Uay, 1900.

1With reference to correspondence, regarding the Mullah Powindah, end-

ing with my letter, dated 15th Mayg, 1900, I am

Punjab Government tele- directed to submit copies of the telegrams noted
gram, Jdated Iith May, 1900.  in the margin and to communicate the following

Commissioner, Derajat, tele-  yopyqyles of the Licutenant-Governor.
grams, dated 15th May, and

18th May, 1900. 2. Sir Mackworth Young is much concerned
: to know that the balance of fine due from the
Mahsuds was understated, and he has no doubt that Mr. Merk i1s quite right
-in regarding the position as a difficult one. Full explanation will be called
for, and meanwhile the Lieutenant-Governor would be extremely somy
unduly to hamper Mr. Merk in his conduct of negotiations.

3. But as regards the present of Rs. 1,000 which Mr. Merk proposes to
give to the Mullah Powindah, Sir Mackworth Young is quite unable to see
that it is likely to do anything but harm. The Mullah iz pretty sure to
realize that we want something fronj him, will not be slow to avail himzelf of
this advantage, and the last thing he is likely to do iz to throw his influence
into our scale for this small consideration.

4. Mr. Merk speaks of the refusal to make the present as if it were a
drawing back, but the Lieutenant-Governor does not suppose the Mullah
has been led to believe that we are going to give him money before he has
formulated his demands, and given us some assurance of his good will. Sir
Mackworth Young therefore still thinks that, before showing him any favour,
we should obtain this much from him.

Annexsure 1.

Telegram from the Oficiating Chief Secretary to the Gavernment of the Pur al,
to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Deraat Division, duted 14k May,
1900, ’

. Yours, dated 10th May, has been referred to Foreign. Lieutenant-
Governor has not recommended the present.

Aunnexure 2.

] e . .o . . . e ?
Tméyram Jrom the Comnussivner aiid .‘-v]'e'mu‘uu/am‘, Droraat Divisin, te 1

1({[”““”.”2/ C}”'U. »s'ﬁ‘l‘t‘f('()"/ to the torernment of the Piyab, darsd 13k -Ut/f»'-
200, ' ' '

. Your teleqram of vesterday evering.  In my telezram of vesterday fie @
Afank I reported that 1 had succeeded in getting Maksuds to agree to mede
of settlement of Badar dizputes desired by Government; this was it Jsre
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without considerable difficulty. Please refer to my letter of 6th instant. I
ascertained yesterday from Watson and am reporting officially that, in addi-
tion to the Rs. 35,000, of which payment was arranged by Mahsuds in March
last, a sum of Rs. 32,000 is, at the present month, due from the Mahsuds,
about the payment of which no arrangement has been made with them, and
payment og this additional sum it will be by no means easy to obtain. Backed
up as he is by the ulus, the man has certainly the power, and if not won over
or neutralised, may very likely have the will to upset the arrangement about
settlement of Badar disputes and any arrangements we may come to presently
for payment of this additional Rs. 32,000. If either arrangement is upset,
we shall be within near distance of a rupture with the tribe and its grave
sequels. T do not myself, after enquiry, share Watson’s view that he 1s
instigator or accomplice in most of the offences attributed to him; but, how-
ever this may be, I venture, in view of the general situation, to suggest a
reconsideration of the case in respect of the present. It seems to me that
it is cminently desirable at the present juncture to neutralise this element of
evil, and if, after Watson’s interview, and what was said by Watson at it, we
draw back, I think he will certainly construe this withdrawal as a rupture,
and will take up a position accordingly. I was personally not in favour of
-opening negotiations; but since they have been opened, and after what was
said at the interview, I consider we have to go on at, the risk of grave com-
plications if we draw back.

Annexure 3. ,

Telegram from the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, to the
Officiating Chief Secretary to the Government of the Punjab, dated 18th May,
1900.

Yours of 15th instant to Government, India; please refer to my telegram
-of 15th instant. If Mullah Powindah only stands neutral in cases of border
-disputes and of realization of fines due by the Mahsuds, he will, I submit, have
.done us at this juncture considerable service, worth more as an equivalent
than what I propose to give.

Enclosure 6 in No. 2.

Telegram from J. M. Douie, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to the Glovernment
of the Puniab, to the Secretary to the Government of India, Foreign Depart-
ment, dated Simla, the 21st May, 1900.

With reference to your lette_r, dated the 16th instant, I am directed to
Commissioner,  Derajat’s Sllbmlt.-, for the information of the Government
letter, dated 8th May, 1900, of India, a copy of the correspondence marginally

and enclosures. noted regarding the cases outstanding against the

Punjab Government letvtér T PR
dated 21st May, 1900. * Mahsud Waziris.

Annexure 1.

Letter from the Commissioner and Superintendent of the Derajat Diviswn, to the
Chief Secretary to the Government of the Puniab, dated the 8¢ May, 1900.

In compliance with the instructions conveyed in your letters noted in the
margin, the Political Officer, Wana, has now pre-
pared and submitted a statement of cases against
the Mahsuds and other Waziris, a copy of which
13 herewith submitted in his letter, dated the 1st

Dated 31st October, 1899,
15th February, 1900, and 16th
April, 1800.

instant, with enclosure.
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9. The reasons given by Mr. Watson for the delay are insufficient. I
do not understand the statement myself, but do not further delay its sub-
mission pending the explanations which I have requested the Political Officer
to give, and which 1 will forward on receipt.

3. Apparently the statement does not include any of the cases on
account of which a settlement of Rs. 35,000 has been effected. Yet those
are the cases on which Government desires information. T am unable to
explain what is meant by classes A, B, C and D of cases, and why some cases
are “ Miscellaneous ” and others are not. I cannot make out how we stand in
regard to our claims on the Mahsuds; one thing is clear, and that is that a
settlement for Rs. 35,000 has been effected in respect of a certain set of cases;
what these are is described in paragraph 5 of my predecessor’s letter, dated
the 30th March, 1900. The Political Officer now estimates the fines that
will be imposed in “classes A and B and Shirani cases ” as Rs. 9,000, plus
Rs. 6,000 in “classes C and D and Miscellaneous” cases, or Rs. 15,000 in
all, apparently in addition to the Rs. 85,000; then (paragraph 3 of his present
letter) the Political Officer says that Rs. 8,500 is still due in the less important
classes of cases, in addition to the Rs. 35,000. Whether this item of
Rs. 8,500 is included in the Rs. 15,000 above or not, I cannot tell on the
information before me. Supposing that it is included, we have Rs. 50,000
in all due to us and to private individuals from the Mahsuds; if excluded,
then Rs. 58,500 are due. Lastly, it is difficult to understand the sentence
in paragraph 4-IV. of the Political Officer’s letter; the settlement of
Rs. 35,000 which I presume is what is meant by the “ recent settlement” is a
fait accompli, and it is not easy to see how an item of Rs. 1,500 can now
“1if possible ” be included in it; if it was not included when the account was
made up, it is impossible to bring it in now.

4. T am on my way to Wana and hope to introduce some system and
clearness into this complicated arrangement of Mahsud accounts. Mean-
while, T have requested the Political Officer to furnish an explanation of the
doubtful points noted above before he goes on leave, as he is fully conversant
with the cases.

Annexure 2.

Letter from the Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner and Superinfendent,
Derajat Division, dated the 1st May, 1900,

With reference to your predecessor’s endorsement, dated 17th February,
1900, and subsequent reminders on the subject of the preparation of a state-
ment required by the Government of India showing the amount of the fines
due from Mahsuds in outstanding and pending cases, I have the honour to
forward herewith a statement which I trust will serve the required purpose.
It shows the total fines due from Mahsuds in all decided cases still pending

except those relating to the Tochi, particulars of which can be better obtained
from the Political Officer, Tochi.

2. The statement comprises practically all the cases reported up to the
end of March, 1900, the pending cases being those which it was impossible
to include in the recent settlement for various reasons or those which have
peen reported since then. In such cases the amount of compensation awarded
will be probably considerably less than the amount estimated, as some will be
struck off the file and in some the loss will be found to bave been much
exaggerated. 'We may thus perhaps estimate the fines which will be imposed
in classes A and B and Shirani cases as under:—

Rs.
A 2,000
B .. 4,000
Zhob 2,000
Shiranis 1,000

Total ... 9,000

B
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In cases of class C and in class D and miscellaneous cases the amount

-actually awarded will probably be still less in proportion and may be estimated

at Rs. 6,000 in all, so that the total amount likely to be due in pending cases
mav be put at Rs. 15,000.

3. In the cases already decided the realization of Rs. ’35,000’_ has been
provided for, and the sum of some Rs. 8,500 is still due in the less important
classes of cases. The realization of the latter sum is proceeding slowly.

4. Asregards the serious cases mentioned in the memorandum of actual
.and prospective liabilities of the tribes compiled by Government of India,
the results arrived at may be briefly indicated below :— ,

,I.—(«) Fine of Rs. 2,000 included in settlement of Rs. 35,000.

(b) Fine of Rs. 2,000 inflicted will be realized under recent settle-
ment if possible.

(¢) Will be disposed of at next meeting of Political Officers, Zhob
and Wana.

IV.—Some Tochi and Dauri cases were disposed of at a recent meeting
of the Political Officers, Tochi and Wana, and fines aggregating
about Rs. 15,000 inflicted, which will be included, if possible,
in the recent settlement.

V.—(a) Rs. 2,000 fine inflicted and realized.

(b)) All the fine due from the Mahsuds in this case has now been
realized.

(¢c) Fine aggregating about Rs. 4,450 imposed on certain Darwesh
Khels and Mahsuds. Mahsud’s share of fine included in recent
settlement.

(d) Ringleader punished by two years’ rigorous imprisonment 28
well as confiscation of rifle.

(¢) Fine reahzed.

(f) Fine of Rs. 910 inflicted on Mahsuds in recent settlement. It is
proposed also to impose a fine of Rs. 1,000 on some Tori Khels
who were concerned as well,  Case will be reported separately.

(9) Three of offenders surrendered and sentenced to seven years
imprisonment each.

5. Twa other serious offences, viz., the attack on the Zam post and the
murder of Border Military Policeman near Zaraminoba, were included in the
recent settlement. A separate report on the latter case will be submitted.
If any further report on the Zam case is required, it will, I presume, be
submitted by the Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan, to whom I have
forwarded a précis of the information which I obtained.

6. In apologising for the delay in submitting this statement, 1 would at
the same time venture to explain that I thought at first that the ground was
covered in my two letiers, dated January 16th and January 26th, 1900
Later I imagined that, in view of the settlement with the Mahsuds effected
by Mr. Anderson, no such statement would now be required.




I Annexure 3.

List of Pending Cases of Olasses A, B, C, de.

: Number . s Fine or .
ngoxle Re rriix‘:“m , Date of Ocenrrence, (Z’-omp]n.irmnt:f Accused, Sub-section, Section, Offence, Compensation. Remarks,
1
7 !
- ’ Compensation. i
; CLASS A. Bs. A. B. |
1| 180-A. ! 26th~-27th February, | Shera, son of Nawaz of | Unkunown <o | Unknown ... Unknown ... .. | Theft of two bullocks 60 0 ©- Case under enquiry,
1900, Shahbaz. : and two  donkeys : .
valued at Rs. 60,
2] 167-A. | 9th March, 1900 .., | Madar, ton of Jamal of Da, - Do. Do. . ... | Theft of 20 zoats valued 60 0 0 Do.
Girni. : at Rs, 60, :
${ 168-A  23rd-24th March,1900 | Maghar, son of Shakhe Do, Do, - . Do. .. | Theft of three bullocks 60 0 0 Do.
of Tank. valued at Rs. 100,
4| 169-A. | 3rd-ith March,1900... { Khota, son of Ghulam Do. Do, Do, . o | Theft of ghi valued at 60 6 ¢© Do.
Mubhammad, Baloch. . - Rs. 60,
5 23ra Mareh, 1900 Guldad, son of Tor, Do. Do. _ Do, w. | Theft of two camels 127 4 0 Do,
Badzai Bhittanni, - valued at Rs. 127-4-0.
[} 20th March, 1900 .., | Nazr Khan,Zangi Khel Do, oe Do. . Do. e .. | Theft of 300 sheep and 900 0 O Do.
Nasir, goats, : ‘
T 28th March, 1900 ... | Sharfaraj Shuh, son of Do. s - Do. . o Do s ... | Theft of one camel 50 0 0 Da,
Lal Sheh, Powindah, valued at Rs, 100,
8 30th Mareh, 1900 .., ; Kajiri Khan,son of Amir Do. . Do. . . Do “ +.. | Theft of three bullocks 5 0 0 Do.
Hasan, Jani Khel, valued at Rs, 95.
R 13th March, 1900 ... S:kib, son of Nadir Na Do, Do, « | Theft of 40 gouts valued 120 0 O Do,
Khan. at Ra. 120,
o 2nd Jonuary, 1900 . | Pirzada, son of Ustrane Do, Do . Do e .. | Theft of one camel 50 0 0 Do.
| 3rd-1¢h March. 1900 valued at Ra, 50,
71 8rd-4th Mare 900,., -
11 26th I’ehrnnr;\". 100, ., Abmed  Khan gmd
ete I1 27en 28k Maven, 190 | Lok Ram, - Nihal
I 28rd-24th Mareh, 1900 § { Singh, Tateh TInji, Do. - e Do. - . Do. " «oo | Theft of property, &e.... 160 10 ¢ Do,
i | 29th-30th March, 1000 [ i “.ﬂrlam Maji. Gord- J'
Ll 7th-8th December, 1805 [§  ¥iT

)
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164-A,

50.B.

$8-B,

56-13.

63-B.

12th March, 1900

s5th January, 1800 ...

3rd November, 1809..,

7th-81h March,1900...
26th March, 1900

13th-14th March, 1900

7tk March, 1900

th March, 1900

Mian Khan, son of
Brahim Khan,

Garai, son of Ajn Dotani

Dost Mnﬁnmmm‘k, son of
Sarfaraz, Mian Khel,
Powinduh,

Shin Kai, Akka Khel,
Powindah,

Brahim, son of Zafar
Khan.

Haukim, &ec., Nasirs and
Adam Khan Levy,
footman.

Nasiran, Myanjar Khel

Nasirs through Hassan
Suleman Khel.

Jalal Khel Bhittannis..,

Gulzada. Sinak, Muham-
mad Ali Maktar,

Do,

Unknown

Do.

Do.

Abdurrahman Khel

Aimal Khel ...

Jalal Khel Bhittannis

CLASS B,
Abdurrahman Khel ...

Deo.

Do. -
Do. “
Do,

Do, eae

Aimal Khel ... e

Bahlolzai

Do.

Bohlolzais, Bhittannis

o

Theft of 16 camels
valued at Rs. 840 and
wounding complain-
ant,

Total ... Ra.

Theft of 40 sheep valned
at Rs, 120,

Muzder of one man, theft
of two revolvers, one
sword, and one belt,
&e., valued at Rs, 210,

Theft of one camel
valued at Bs. 50.

Theft of 180 sheep und
goats.

Thett of eightsheep, &e¢.,
valued at Rs. 56,

Theft of 62 cows, 160
goats, and murder of
two men.

Theft of 40 camels worth
Ra. 2,000 and wound-
ing one man,

Total ...

b

tosz 0 o
Mahsud Ghure
Rs. 688, De-
cree for Rs,

688 given
againet Jalal
Khel; rest
against Bhit-
tannis,

2430 0 O
126 ¢ ©
470 0 O
50 0 0
540 0 0
5% 0 0
2,130 6 ©

2,000 0 O

5365 0 0

3

Efforts will be made to
realise share of Mah-
suds by Baramata of
kindred sections.

Case under enquiry,

Do,

Do.

Pressure is being put on
Abdurrahman Khels
to restore stolon pro-
perty, but without
effect as yeot.

Five camels bave been

restored, and efforts
are being made to re-
cover the remainder.
Six Aimal Khels are
in custody and case
will probably be
settied satisfactorily.

-
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List af Pending Cuses of Classes A, B,

C, #c.~continued.

5 |
: Numbher ! . Fi
S;vr;nl, in o Dato of Occurronce, Complainant, Acoused. Sub-seotion. Section, Offence, Oom;:g:sg:i on. Romarks,
o Rngisuxr.g *
Compensation,
CLASS C. Re. A P.
1| 117-C. | 21st December, 1892 | Guldad, Taji Khel of | Najum Ikhtiar ... . | Abdurrahman Khela | Bahlolzai .., .«o | Theftof one horse valued 160 0 0 Under enquiry.
Wana at Ra. 100,
2 2.-C. 2nd Decembeor, 1896... | Torsam and But, Zalli | Asl Khan, Shabzaman.,. | Guri Khel, Shahman | Alizai Shahman Khel | Ransom money Ra, 160 160 0 ¢ Do.
Khels of Wana. Khel. for 200 sheep,.
3| 125-C. | 20th Junc, 1898 «+ | Ismail, son of Khan Mu. | Samand Khan, Zargul... | Mul Khel, Wazirgai... | Alizai ... w. | Claim of one camel 50 0 o Do,
hammad, Tnji Khel of valued at Rs, 50,
Wana.
4 61--C, 7th September, 1898 | Shujn Khbnn, wson of | Bukni Khan ... v | Wazirgai Do. o Theft of four cows 60 0 0 Do.
Sarfraj Khan, Ghune valued at Rs. 60,
Khel of Wana,
b h8 -C, 25th June, 1599 o | Boz Gul, Kaka Khe! of | Rujuk Gulzade Aghik ... | Abdurrshman Khels | Bahlolzais ... ... | Theit of one gun, to- 60 0 0 Do.
Wana, gether with eartridges
and belt, valued at
Ra. 60,
6 86-C, 184h July, 1898 Ali_ Muhamumad, Masti | Satal Mashkai, Mukhtar | Faridui ves v | Alizai ... ... | Theft of two camels and 150 ¢ 0 De.
Khel of Wana, Garran, Bobznd, Rs, 60 Kabuli,
7 53 C, 3rd March, 1899 ., Pir:);zui cand  Ekam, | Kuzam and Abdulla ... | Marizais Do. v | Theft of five cows and 100 0 0 Do.
Khandi Khel, clothing valued at
Rs. 100.
8 120.C, 15t Fanuary, 1900 ., Khamu Khan, Umnr | Unknown ey e . s oo } Thott of 6O goats valued 10 0 0 Do.
| Khel, at Re. 150,
]
@ g4t - 4th November, 1867 l Amir - Khan, son  of ! Rakhu Shab and Abdul | Dhur ... . | Bablolzais ... «: | Theft of nine cows 13 0 0 Do.
, X Paind Khan, Dotani.. © Glatur. valued at Ry, 135,
b ! :
‘ ; !
[N SN ¢ { Lith August, Isus | Shabazim Sarkai, Khojal HMumwoon, Fazl Shaeh, | Michi Khels .., .o { Alizais .er ... | Theft of property valued 200 0 O Do.
: Khel, Maste, Abdal  Azriz, at Ru, 200,
1 | Mir  Jamal  Bliohi
i

Khels,

¥l
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11

13

14

i6

17

19

20

51-C.

174-C,

36-C.

55-C.

183-C.

10th January, 1899 ..

Sth July, 1899

20th November, 1808

Sgh T'ebruary, 1200...

Sth January, 1900

1st Angust, 1899

13th January, 1100 ...

12th November, 1893

2ith July, 18908

19th February, 1900

Said Hassan ...

Jallundhar, Taji Khel...

Pastakai, Khojal Khel...

Shakai Khan, son of
Almar, Zalli Kbel.

Vallamir, son of Mir

Khan,

Nawar Khan, son of
Pirwan, Utman Khel.

Nizam Din, Utman Khel

Nandar Khan, Utman
Khel.

Bojar Zalli Khel e

Akbar Shah, Qaderdad
Khan, Xhan Mir Zalli
Khels.

Other cases of class C

Khojal Kbel ...

Sahib Din, Nekzan Khel,
Hassan, Lal Khan,
Bhunga Khel.

Mir Alam, Para Khel,
Kozi, Michi Xhel,
Mastkai, Faridai, Gul-
dad Malik, Shahi Gul-

wam, Garerai, Satal |

Abdulle, Faridais,

Unknown

Gulzada, Sinak, Balocha
Abdulla Khan.

Piao Shah. Aimal Khel,
Satal, Faridai, Abdulla.

Mira Khel Kamin ...
Kozam Ahmad, Marizai,

Mushkai, Faridal.

Unknown

Akhtijan Marisai
Shadamir, Garerai.

Nekzan Khel, Bhunga
bel.

Para Khel, Michi Khel,
Malik Shahi, Fari-
dai.

Abdurrahman Khels

Aimal Khel, Faridai,
Abdurrahman Khel,

Garerai . .

Marisai, Faridai ...

Alizai ...

Bahlolzais

Alizai, Bahlolzai

Bahlolzai

Bahlolzai, Alizai, Bah-

lolzai.

Alizai ...

Alizai ...

e s

Toe are

Theft of five cows valued |

at Re. 75.

Theft of 56 sheep and
goats and Bhunga
monay Rs. 200 Kabuli,
ete., worth Rs, 270,

Murder of one man ...

Robbery of 18 cows and
cash Rs. 80, total Rs.
200.

Theft of 32 sheep valued
at Rs, 96,

Theft of 13 goats valued
at Rs. 50.

Theft of 14 goats valued
at Rs, 52,

Theft of one came),

Bhungsa money Rs. 80.

Theft of three cows
valued at Rs. 50,

Theft of 12 bullocks
and five donkeys.

Total o

Miscellaneous ...

75 0 Do,
270 0 O Do.
360 4 Do.
200 ¢ Do.
96 0 Do.
50 0 Do.
52 0 Do.
50 1] Do.
650 0 Do.
210 0 Do.
3,000 0
5,578 0
6,000 0 (roughly).

¢l



List of Pending Cases of Classes A, B, C, &c.—continued.

ot Number . . Fine o
biv:;:“ in Date of Occurrence. Complainant. Accused, Sub-section. Section. Offence. c om;::x?sazi on. Remarks,
“% 1 Register.
’ - N Compensation.
| Zhob. Rs. A. P
1 ! 5 ( 25th March, 1899 ... | Mahi Shirani, Shirani... { Jalal Khels Abdurrah- | Jalal Khels, Abdur- Bahlolzais .. .. | Theft of eight cows and 150 ¢ ¢ Under enquiry.
; man Khels, rahman Khels. 1 gun, Rs. 150.
L5 e j 26th March, 1900 ... | Mazar Khan, Suleman | Unknown e ves | v ses .. v | ves —er ... | Theft of 2,020 Kabal 1,223 0 0O Do.
| Khel. and murdering one
i man and wounding
i . three others.
' .
3 - i 2nd September, 1899 | Bakhtar Nasir ... < { Gulzada Abdullah, Id | Abdurrabman Khel, | Bahlolzais ... ... | Theft of 40 goats. 120 0 © Do.
Muhammad, Nekzan Khel,
4 5 12th April, 1898 ... | Hassan Umar Khan, | Id Muhammad, Abdulla | Nekzan Khel ... ... | Do. . Theft of two horses 400 0 O Do.
i Shiranis. Khan, worth Rs. 400.
5 8 26th August, 1899 ... | Surat Hikmat Khan, | Unknown . e P R ‘e «» | Theft of three bullocks 50 0 0 Do.
‘ Shiranis. : worth Rs. 100,
6 9 | 7th October, 1899 Baz Gul, son of Rakim ! Do, . ! . v ORI oo . « 1 Theft of 135 =rheep 530 0 0O Do.
: Khan, Madda Khel ; : worth Rs, 530,
7. . 24th Augnst, 1809 .., - Khair Muhammad Juma S s . e - . . . - I- Theftof 240 goats worth 20 0 0 Do.
Khan, Mihtar Musa, B ! Ra, 720. :
Madda Khel. ] i
8 3 10th April, 1899 ... | Murad, son of Jehandad Spin. ete. . .. | Nekean Khel ... | Bahlolzais ... . Theft of seven donkeys 70 0 @ Do.
{
L - 6th March, 1898 i Lala Khan, etc.. Shira- b - , - . <. | Theft of three bullocks 60 0 0 Do.
. I nis. { : worth Re. 60. 1
i Ll ol ; |
" . pApril 18 L L‘ald Khan, Lambardar, ; . . e . . ... | Theft of copper utensils 200 0 0 Do.
i Getol. : ! )
| : 1
: i Total .. .| 3523 0 0
1

-



Shiranis., )
. 28th October, 1899 ... | Galistan, son of Gum- | Unknown oo | Theftof IGGsheci)worth 400
bed, Shireni. . Ra. 400, .
16th March, 1900 Empress, through Do. O .» t Theft of 156 cows, and 635
Powindahs, murider. of one man
and wounding
another.’
28th Februnry, 1898 ...} Ala Khan, Muhammad Do. .o | Theft of 120 sheep 360
Yar, Musazal. } worth Rs. 360,
4 29th December, 1897 | Shahbaz, Shirani Do. R ... | Theft of 15 gouats - 50
28th December, 1839 | Kakar Khan, and | Asl Khan, Guri Khels... | Guri Khel ... veo | Alizai ... .o | Theft of 130 gonts ... 390
Mohammad Gul
Nasirs.
- Total .... 1,885
Rs. ABSTRACT oF ToTAL FIngs AND COMPENSATION DUE,

A= . .. 2430
B= .. .. 0366
C= .. .. 5578

Miscellaneous=— 6,000
Zhob=... . 3,523

Shiranis ... 1,883

24,781

Fine due from Mahsuds in accordance with recent settlement with tribes (including classes A, B, Shirani, Zhob, and Tochi cases)= ...

Fines outstanding iu classes C, D, and Miscollaneous==

Total

Total fines dutstanding (including sum of Rs. 33,000) which is being realiscd in accordance with recent settlement

Total amount of compensation estimated as due for loss of property, &e., in cases of all kinds (excepting Tochi cases) pending up to
last week in March, 1900,

0 Do.
0 Do,
0 Do.
o Do.
0 Do.
0.

Re. A, P.
35,000 0 0
8351 8 2
43351 8 2

200 Kabuli.

43,351 8 2
200 Xabuli,
24,781 0 ¢

Camp Sarwekai,

The 1st May, 1900.

(Signed) H. D. Warsox,
' ' Political Officer, Wana.

-

-1



Annexure 4.

Letter from J. M. Douie, Esy., Officiating Chier' Secretary to the Government or
the Punjab, to the Commussioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated
Simla, 21st May, 1900.

With reference to your letter, dated Sth May, submitting a statement
of cases against the Mahsuds and other Waziris, I am directed to say that
the Lieutenant-Governor is much concerned to learn that the case has
hitherto been so imperfectly reported, and that the outstandings against the
Mahsuds appear to be so much larger than hitherto stated.

Sir Mackworth Young awaits with anxiety the further explanation
promised. He agrees with you in thinking that the reasons given by Mr.
Watson for not complying earlier with the orders for the preparation of a list
of cases is insufficient, and a full explanation on this point should be submitted
in due course. The first request for a statement of outstanding cases was
made so long ago as 31st October, 1899, in Mr. Dane’s letter of that date.

2. With reference to Mr. Anderson’s letter, dated S0th March, I am
to send you a copy of a letter, dated 16th Mary, from the Government of India,
Foreign Department, and to say that Sir Mackworth Young fears that the
expression of satisfaction contained therein may, with reference to the facts
you have now reported, prove to have been premature. I am to invite your
attention to the remarks contained in the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of the
above-mentioned letter.

Enclosure 7 in No. 2.

Letter from the Secretary to the Government of India, in the Forelgn Depurtnend,
to the Chief Secretary to the Government of the Punjab, dated Simla, the
29th May, 1900.

I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letters marked in the
Dated the 15th, 19th and margin, regarding Mullah Powindah and fines
21st May, 1900. due from the Mahsuds.

2. With reference to the proposal made by the Commissioner of the
Derajat Division, to give a present of Rs. 1,000 to Mullah Powindah, I am
to say that if any negotiations with him could be secretly undertaken so as
to commit him in the eyes of his tribe, it would be worth spending Rs. 1,000
or more in order to gain that object: but the opportunity has probably
passed, and the dealings with the Mullah have been so fully and cpenly
discussed that anything given to him now would probably be regarded on
every hand as an acknowledgment of him as a leader and a power in the
irlbe. ’dThiS is precisely the position which the Government of India desire

0 avoid. .

3. As regards the fines due from, and the claims against, the Mahsuds,
the Government of India have heard with much surprise and concern that the
settlement arrived at with the tribe in March last omitted to take note of a
claim nearly as large as that concerning which an agreement was come to.
The Governor-General in Council will wait with interest to hear how s
remarkable an omission can have taken place.
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Enclosure 8 in No. 2.

Letter from J. M. Douie, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab,
to the Secretary to the Government of India, Foreign Department, dated
Sirda, 2nd June, 1900.

With reference to paragraph 3 of your letter, dated the 29th of May,

Commissioner  Derajat’'s letter,

.dated 11th May, 1900, and enclosures, *

CCommigsioner Derajat’s endorze-
ment, dated 18th May, 1900, and

1900, T am directed to submit, for the information
of the Government of India, a copy of the corre-
spondence marginally noted relating to the settle-

enclosures.

Commissioner  Derajat’s letter,
dated 19th May, 1900, and enclosures.

Commiszioner  Derajat’s letter,
dated 24th May, 1900.

Puanjab Government letter, dated
2nd June, 1900,

Panjab Goveroment letter, dated
2nd June, 1900,

ment with the Mahsuds made by Mr. Anderson.

Annexure 1.

Letter from W. R. H. Merk, Esq., C.S.1., Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derajat Division, to the Officiating Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab,
dated Dera Ismail Khan, 11th May, 1900,

With reference to this office telegram, dated.the 17th January, 1900,
regarding the Zam outrage, I have the honour to

This office endorsement, submit, for the information and orders of Govern-
‘gﬁi‘i:}sﬁgzh January, 1900, and - ment, a copy of the correspondence noted in the

Letter from Deputy Com- margin.
missioner, Dera Ismail Khan,
dated the 30th April, ;06047

2nd May, 1900,
and enclosures.

2. This offence is included in the settlement
that was arrived at last March on account of
which the Mahsuds are to pay 35,000 rupees. , It
seems to me that a very madequate retribution
has been made for this grave occurrence in that the Mahsuds have to pay
only the blood-money for the murdered men and the value of the rifles and
accoutrements carried off.

3. But inadequate as the punishment is, we are, I think, precluded
from further action against either the individual offenders or with a view
to the recovery of the stolen property. It is always understood that a settle-
ment with a tribe clears everybody and everything, except where it is ex-

pressly stipulated to the contrar{. The tribe pays for all individual offenders
~and for all property stolen, unless there is a distinct agreement excluding
special persons or special property. From my predecessor’s letter, dated the
30th March, 1900, to your address, it will he seen that no such stipulation or
agreement was concluded when the settlement was effected. Under the
circurstances I am unable to support the proposals of Messrs. Gee and
Watson, and am obliged to suggest that, altgough the punishment for the
Zam attack is exceedingly lenient, the recent settlement be accepted as final.
I would ask for the instructions of Government in this matter.

Annexure 2.

ExTracT from the Police Diary of the District Superintendent of Police,

Der(:)a, Ismail Khan, for the week ending Saturday, the 13th J anuary,
1900.

Police Station, Tank.
C.R. 6. Sections 302—396, Indian Penal Code—2Zam Post.

On the night of the 9th instant a band of 30 or 40 men, said to be
Waziris, entered the Zam Post, the door of which was open, and killed two
Border Police Sepoys, three Bhittanni Levies, and a zamindar, and carried
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anider rifles, two Enfield muskets and one Enfield carbine, besides
zfrfiffgxl*lrfl,bl?éiits and clothes, and 130 Snider cartridges. Tracks showed that
the raiders came from the direction of Mianbagh, and after committing the
offence the gang appears to have separated, twelve or thirteen men going
through the Khoa Pass to the Shuza: One man of the gang appears to have
been wounded, as there were marks of blood in three pl_aces near the tracks
coing to the Zam Pass. The report is that one Buchi, Bhittanni, Lance-
%ardar, and his nephew, Ali Khan, vowed vengeance against one Talwar,
Bhittanni Levy, as the latter had fired and killed Hakim, brother of Ali Khan,
beyond Khirgl, Hakim being with a gang of badmashes. The gang is sup-
posed to have been a mixed one composed of Shabi Khels, the Mulla Powin-
dal’s Sheikhs, some Niamat Khel, Bhittannis, and a few Shingis. T have .
submitted a full special report regarding this separately.

EnpDorseMENT by the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division,
dated 20th January, 1900.

_ Copy of the above forwarded to H. W. Gee, Esquire, C.S., Deputy Com-
missioner, Dera Ismail Khan, for favour of report, particularly as to the
sections to which Buchi and the other Bhittannis named or who were killed
in the attack belong.

Annexure 3.

Letter from H. W. Gee, Esq., C.S., Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan,

to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated 30t April,
1900.

" In reply to your endorsement, dated 20th January, 1900, on the subject
of the attack on Zam Post, I have the honour to forward in original letter
dated 27th ultimo, from the Political Officer, Wana, who has now completed
all the investigation that is at present possible.

With regard to Mr. Watson’s remarks in paragraph 2 of his letter, the
recent settlement of this case in the Tank Jirga held last month should not
be considered as final, as the amount debited to the Mahsud account only

consisted of the actual blood-money payable to the relatives of the murdered
men and the cost of the rifles and accoutrements stolen. ‘

Annexure 4.

Letter from H. D. Watson, Esq., Political Officer, Wana, to the Deputy Com-
missioner, Dera [smail Khan, dated 27th Aprd, 1900.

I have the honour to forward, herewith, a swmmary of the information
which T have obtained up to date regarding the attack by Mahsuds on the
Zam Post on 9th January, 1900. As most of these statements were made

to me under pledge of secrecy, I would ask you to regard this communication
as confidential.

2. This case has been included in the recent settlement made with
Ma.'hsuds, and therefore as regards the tribe may be considered as disposed of.
This does not, of course, preclude proceedings heing taken against the actual
offenders, if further evidence is forthcoming against them, and any of them
fall by any chance into our hands, nor does it mean the abandonment of all
efforts to recover the stolen property. Some tima, however, must probably
elapse before any further progress is made in this direction.

3. The en

of th quiries which T have made convince me that the ringleaders

¢ gang were some so-called Sheikhs of the Muilah Powindah, mcluding
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probably Raza Khel, Satar and Kamil, Shabi Khels, Fakir, a pepheyv of the
Mullah " Powindah, and Amr Din, Abdullai. I cannot obtain satisfactory
evidence implicating any Bhittannis, for the statement of Shahzad (No. 17
in the Summary) is not reliable. Of course, the fact that the gang passed
right through the Bhittanni country raises a presumption that some of the
latter tribe were in collusion with them, but, on the other hand, the route
is one which can be and is often taken by Mahsud raiders on their own
account, while no Mahsud has given me any trustworthy information impli-
cating the Bhittannis, although it was to be expected that the Mahsuds would
do their best to throw the blame on them, and my most reliable informant,
Haji Muhammad, the Shaman Khel Malik, expressly says, in his second
statement, that he does not believe any Bhittanni was concerned.

4. If there was a Bhittanni in it, he would probably be Ali Khan,
Niamat Khel, whose brother was killed by the Khirgi Levies in a chiga a
month or so previously. Boche, the Niamat Khel Malik, was reported to have
threatened reprisals, and accordingly I had put him and the other Niamat
Khel Maliks on security, but Ali Khan was at the time a hamsaya of the
Shingis, and may possibly have induced the Mahsuds to help him to take his
revenge for his brother’s death. T doubt if any other Niamat Khels were
directly concerned, for they must have too vivid a remembrance of the punish-
ment received for their share in the Nasran raid to dispose them to take part
in any similar offence for some time to come.

5. The route taken by the raiders appears to have been as follows:—
Numbering 12 or 14 men they passed down the Tank Zam from the Kani-
guram direction, and were seen in the Barari Tangi by Nezam Din, Galeshahi.
Further on they were seen by Amin Khan, the Shaman Khel Malik. They
made their way into the head of the Shuza by a route some miles north of
Jandola, and were seen by the women of an Abdullai Kirri, which lies just
off that nullah, cooking their food in the nullah bed. The women took them
water and they left a “guda” (skin for holding water) behind them there.
Further on, at the junction of the Khaisora and Shuza Nullah, they were secn
at noon by three Bhittannis, who were irrigating their land there, and lower
down, just above the Pir Tangi, Abdullah Khan, a Bhittanni Levy Sowar,
saw them cooking their food in the shade of some trees. Some Niamat Khels
who were watering their cattle below the Pir Tangi probably saw them also.
At Kirwam they left the Shuza and proceeded across the tract of country
named Khua to the Tank Zam, which they probably reached via the Khua
Nullah. From there they proceeded to the Zam Post.

6. On their return journey they followed the same route as far, at any
rate, as the junction of the Khaisora and Shuza Nullahs. They are said to
have been met in Khua by some Jalal Khels (see statement of Guldin,
Kiharai, &c.), but T am not sure whether this information is to be relied on.

7. As said above, I believe the ringleaders of the gang were the
Mullah’s Sheikhs; the rest were probably composed of hangers-on of the
Mullah belonging to various sections, but mainly Shabi Khels and Abdullais.
I doubt if any Shingis were concerned, but possibly there may have been one
or two Jalal Khels and Abdurrahman Khels, The chief motive of the attack
was probably the arest of Hakim, the Mullah’s Sheikh in the Bannu Dis-
trict, but it is possible that the Mullah did not intend that so serious an
offence should be committed, and that what he meant was to kidnap one or
two Levies or Border Police, and hold them as hostages. In murdering the
men the gang may have ‘exceeded their instructions, though the Mullah Tnust
have known what was likely to happen with such a set of ruffians, for they
included men who have been involved in several of the more serious offences
of recent years. Other motives may possibly have been the shootine of the
brother of Ali Khan by the Khirgi Levies and the death of two Jalal Khels
at the hands of Bhittannis, referred to by Shahzad, and several members of
the gang may have had their individual grievances against Government. Tt
i3 to be hoped that eventually hy recovery of some of the stolen property or
by other methods further light may be thrown on the matter, a

11276 T,
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Annexure 5.

Information received with regard to the attack on Zam Post, January 9th,
1900.

1. Haji Muhammad, Shaman Khel Malik—13th January, 1900.

On the day of the attack Amin Khan, Shaman Khel Malik, met in
Bangewal a Shaman Khel bahir which was going down to Tank, and told
them not to go on, as a gang of the Mullah Powindah’s Sheikhs had passed by.
Masta Khan, Shaman Khel, told me he went to the kirri of Gat, Abdullai,
in the Shuza, and the woman there told him that 12 of the Mullal’s Sheikhs
had passed down the nullah, and had been given food and water. A shepherd -
of mine at the mouth of the Khaisora Nullah also saw them. The woman
above mentioned recognised Vatta, Bhittanni, among them, and she also
spoke of Kamil, Shabi Khel, as being one of them. They all wore pattis like
Levies, and no one but the Mullah’s Sheikhs wore these; both the woman
and the shepherd noticed this. Maste Khan says Vatta was wounded.

2. Second Statement of Haji Muhammad—6th February, 1900.

The facts which T stated before are true. The Mulldh Powindah sent
his Sheikhs to make some prisoners. He did not mean that murder should
be committed. Raza Khan, Shabi Khel, one of the gang, borrowed his rifle
(Martini-Henry) from Hela, Shaman Khel Malik. Amin Khan, Shaman
Khel Malik, lent his Martini-Henry rifle to Mad Albar, Shabi Khel (cousin
of Kamil). Both Maliks knew the gang were going to commit some offence.

The gang came to a Shabi Khel Kirri, close to mine; there are only
three families in it, Patonais, chief man Jat. They also passed the kirri of
Esamdin and Azim Khan, Abdullais. The woman who went to fetch water
saw them cooking their food in the nullah. T made a mistake when I said
they came to Gat’s kirri.

The gang included Raza Khan, Kamil, Mad Akbar, Satar, Shabi IChels;

Amxl'lDin, Abdullai; Fakir, Shabi Khel, nephew of Mullah Powindah; 12
in all.

Some Bhittannis at the mouth of the Khaisora Nullah recognised him.
I don’t believe now there was any Bhittanni in the gang. The route taken is
one constantly used by Mahsuds. The Shabi Khel relative of the Mullah
Powindah (Bazgul) gave information about the post. I don’t believe any
Jalal Khels were concerned. Balik and Amin Khan have sworn on the

Quran to the Mullah Powindah that they said nothing about the matter to the
Political Officer.

3. Masti Khan, Shaman Khel—13th January, 1900.

The day before yesterday at “ Namazidigar,” I came to the kirri of Gat,
Abdullai, in the Shuza. All the cattle, &c., had been driven out of the
kirri. T asked Lajmir, Abdullai, what was the reason. I had heard of the
attack on Zam, the news having been brought by Faujdar, Sheilkh of the
Mullah Powindah. I asked Lajmir whether the murderers were Abdullais.
He told me that he had heard at Jandola that Khan Mir, Badzai Bhittanni,
was wounded, and suspicion would thevefore fall on the Bhittannis. The

women in the kirri told me they had fetched water for the gang, which was a
large one.

4. Bilak, Shaman Khel—14th Janvary, 1900.

The offence was committed by the Mullah Powindab’s Sheikhs. They
came to Tanlk, thence by Narai Shua down the Shuza and through Pir Tangi.
There were eight men with rifles. The Mullah Powindah sent them an
account of Hakim's arrest. Shabi Khels were in it. Ask Nezam Din,
Galeshahi, Amin Khan, Shaurang, Haibat Khel, Gulkhadin Umar Khel.
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5. Mamak, Umar Khel—14th January, 1900,

Eight Sheikhs of the Mullah Powindah were concerned, including the
Afridi from Tirah, Raza Khan and Kamil, Shabi Khels. A boy from my
kirri met them on the road, I think on the morning of the day of the attack.

6. Amin Khan, Shaman Khel, Malik—15th January, 1900.

Two or three days before this affair I visited the Mullah Powindah, and
he told me that his Sheikh had been treacherously seized in Bannu, and that,
1 revenge, he would send some men to seize a sahib who went out fishing,
or if he could not do that, he would try some other plan. I went home an
spent two nights there. On the third day there was a jirga of Shaman Khels
at Adam Kachkai. As I was returning home in the afternoon I saw some
men proceeding in the direction of the Shuza. FEach had a rifle and their
faces were muffied. - They were going along in bodies of three or four. There
were probably about 15 men. I recognised Raza Khan only. The brother of
Khidrai, Shamarai, told Nezam Din, Galeshahi, that there were some Garerais
among them. T did not notice whether they wore pattis. I told my Kirri-
wals not to take bahirs or go down to the plains as the Mullah Powindah’s
Sheikhs were after some mischief. The Mullah Powindah told me to go to
the Political Officer and find out about his Sheikh. He deceived me, and I
did not imagine his Sheikhs would meanwhile commit this offence. The
Mullah Powindah promised me that he would not do anything until he heard
from the Political Officer. The Sheikhs passed one or two nights in the
Khua Nullah watching for an opportunity to commit some offence.

7. Gulpir, Shingi Malik—15th January, 1900,

There were eight men, including Raza Khan, the Afridi Sheikh, Satar,
Shabi Khel, and the son of Mit, Shabi Khel (Tomin). They were seen in
Mattaghar. They had baked bread with them. They were sent by the
Mullah Powindah. He was much annoyed about the new Militia scheme.
Gulkhaddin, Umar Khel, told me this.

8. Second Statement of Bilak, Shaman Khel—15th January, 1900,

Amar Din, Raza Khan, Kamil, were heads of the gang. They were 12
in all. The Mullah Powindah told them to go and commit some offence.
I don’t know about Bhittannis.

9. Third Statement of Bilak—26th January, 1900.

A Galeshahi boy with a bahir saw a gang of 13 men returning up the
Khua. e recognized three men by their clothes as Bhittannis. One was
Khanmir or possibly Vatta or Amaldar,

10. Nezam Din, Galeshahi—16th January, 1900.

I was going up the Barari Tangi, about six or seven days ago, when I
met 12 or 13 men coming down. I recognized among them Amr Din, Raza
Khan and Kamil.  About four days later the son of Piyadad, Galeshahi, who
was with a bahir, saw them in the Shuza, but did not recognize them, as it
was dark. After passing by me the gang passed the night in the kirri of
Salemkai, Abdullaj, in the Shuza. They left a “ guda” behind them. Gat,
Abdullai, lives in the same kirri. Every one knows that this was the gang.
Khanmir, Kamrzai, Bhittanni, and two or three others were with them,
(The Galeshahi bahirwals told me this; they said the Bhittannis told them
Khanmir and others were with them.)

L. Gul Din, Kikarai, Muhammad Afzal, Qaibat Khel, and Sandal, Kikarai—
about 20th January, 1900,

Two_dalal Khels, Salch-ud-din and Mir Zaman, told us that they
went to Khua to raid Bhittannis, and met there at night a gang of 14
or 15 men, who advised them to clear out, as they had "~ raided
a post, and there would be a chiga. ‘Among these men they
recognized Kamil, Nashtar, Shahi Khel, Tomin, son of Mit, Raza Khan,

11256 Lo
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the son of Mamat, Shingi (who owing to a blood-feud lives with the Mullah
Powindah), Makhad, Gareral (lives with the Mu}lah Powindah), and the
Tirah Mullah (the Afridi deserter). They met this gang at an old tauk in
Khua. They thought at first a Bhittanni chiga was after them. The Jalal
IChels hurried off with them vid the Pir Tangi, and turned off up the Khaisora
Nullah, while the gang went on up the Shuza. They did not notice that any
one of them was wounded. It is said in the hills that the gang had some
food brought them from Gut Abdullai’s kirri, which was in the Shuza. The
gang was sitting on “ Matta Ghar,” between Shuza and Shilmanzai.

At first it was the Mullah Powindah’s intention to openly boast of this
attack on the post, but some wiser head advised him not to do so, but to
protest his innocence.

The motive was probably the arrest of the Mullah’s Sheikh, Somebody |
told the Mullah that Government refused to release him, and that he might
" do what he liked. '

12. Second Statement of Gulpir, Shingi—28th Janvary, 1900.

Daudin, Boblai, Shingi, told his relatives that he was with a balir at the
mouth of the Zam. When at Digarwala 12 men passed by with caps over
the lower part of their faces like what sepoys wear; all had rifles. He
recognized Raza Khan, Satar, Kamil, Muhammad Azam, Shabi Khels; the
“ Tirah Sheikh,” the son of Mit, Shabi Khel; two Giga Khel Sheikhs and
Amr Din. It is said the Mullah Powindah sent out three gangs, one towards
Wana, one to Zam, and one to Bannu. Every one says this in the hills. I
am certain no Shingis were concerned. /

13. Abdulla Khan, Levy sowar, Waruk Bhittanni—28th January, 1900,

I was going on leave to my home in Khaisora, and was passing through
the Pir Tangi, when I saw 16 or 17 men cooking their food among some trees
in the nullah. I recognized Makin and Mauladad, Bibizai, Shabi Khels
(relatives of Dinak, Ali Khan, the brother of Zanjir, Spozhmai and Tarazh-
mal, Jalal Khels. A Niamat Khel kirri (that of the two Ahmad IChans) was
in Torwazar near Kirwam, and is still i the same place. I turned back
on seeing the gang, and the Niamat Khels, who were watering their cattle
in the nullah, drove the animals away at the same time. Karre, Niamat
Khel, Ahmad Khan, Oba Khel, Niamat Khel, were with the cattle. I did
not say anything to them about the gang. Then I went round to my home
by another way. Janghaz, Mirazali, Umar Shah and Katte, who were irri-
gating their land at Dur Kachkai, at the mouth of the Khaisora Nullah, saw
the gang also, but they say they did not recognize them, except one, the
nephew of the Mullah Powindah, but the gang was one of the Mullah
Powindab’s Sheikhs. I suspect some of the others may have been Shingis.
I heard of the attack on Zam the third day after this. All the gang had
rifles.  As they were cooking their food they had their faces uncovered, so I

was able to recognize them.

Y. Jangbaz, Mirajalli, and Umah Shah, Waruka Bhittannis—7th Iebruary,
' 1900.

! We were irrigating our lands at noon at the mouth of the Khaisora
Nullah when we saw some men pass down the Shuza Nullah under the cliff
at the further side. First came eight men, each carrying a rifle, then at a
distance of about half mile behind them three, four or five more men without
rifles.  Among the first lot we recognized by their appearance, gait, &c. (we
did not see their faces, which were covered up) Kamil, Satar and Takir,
Shabi Khels. These men last year lived in a kirri close to us; so we knew
them by sight. There were no Bhittannis among them.

15. Mine Khan, Bhittanni Malik of Sarayhar—=6th Lebruary, 1900,

o A small boy told a man who was stopping in the Niamat Khel kirri that
me men who were irrigating land i Bedzahwam above Pir Tangi recognized
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the gang. Then Ahmad Khan, son of Madad, stopped the boy from saying
any more; so he did not mention their names. The men referred to were
Niamat Khels of the same kirri. I suspect that one Bhittanni (probably a
Niamat Khel) was with the gang.

16. Ahmad Khan, son of Madad, Niamat Khel Malik—10th February, 1900.

Abdullah came upon us in Torwazar. Karre was with me. My cattle
were not in the Shuza Nullah. I have since questioned Karre, and he says
he saw 12 or 15 men at “Peshinwela,” going along by Kirwam, but they
were a long way off, and he did not recognize them. He thought there were
men going to the jirga. :

17. Shahzad, son of Mamad, Abba Khel Bhittannc.

This affair was got up by the Niamat Khels, chiefly by Ali Khan, whose
brother was killed by the Khirgi Levies, and who is 2 hamsaya of the Shingis.
Al Khan asked the Shingis to attack Zam, but they refused. He then went
to Makomi Khan, Bibizai, Shabi Khel, an old friend of the Niamat Khel
badmashes. The following then formed a gang: —Makomi Khan, Mauladad,
Guldad, Shabi Khels; Chundai KXhan, Juma Gul, Mumadar Khan, Jalal
Khels; Matin Khan, Kamil Khan and a nephew of the Mullah Powindah
(Falkar), Shabi Khels; in all 14 persons.

Munadar’s brother had been killed by Bhittanni Lashkar along with .
another Mahsud. In revenge for one of these the Jalal Khels killed Namdar,
Sheikh; the death of the other was laid by the Mahsuds to the account of
Babrai Khan and Maluk Surars, who, from fear of the Mahsuds, came and
lived in the daman.

The following rifles were in possession of the thieves:—
Makomi, 2 Martini-Henry. ' '
Mauladad, 1 Snider.

Guldad, 1 Snider.

Chundai, 1 repeating rifle.

Munadar, 1 Snider.

Matin, 1 Snider.

Amir Khan (? Ali Khan), 1 musket.

Juma Gul, 1 Snider.

Kamil, 1 Snider.

Nephew of Mullah Powindah, 1 Martini-Henry.

Mulkarrab, Dak Jemadar, a relative of Ali Khan's, knew of the intended
attack, and on this account detained Imam Bakhsh, Jandola Muharrir, in his
kirri on his way back to Jandpla and sent for Sheikh Halim from Zam, but
the latter did not come.

Salim Khan, Sara, sold seven packets of Snider cartridges to Amaldar,
Bhittanni badmash. Salim Khan also took one of the muskets, which, per-
haps, had been left behind by the raiders, or perhaps it was his share of the
loot. He has now probably sold it. Salim Khan's wife has told people
about this. - Four Bhittannis are said to have been in the gang, viz., Zakkan,
brother of Amad Khan, Nianat Khel Malik, Taji, Makhmad, son of Bochie,
Ali Khan and another whose name I don’t know, but Malik Shah, son of
Akil Shah, does. Ahmad Khan and Karre saw the raiders in the Shuza and
spoke to them. If Amldar is pressed he will admit bringing the cartridees
irom Salim Khan. °

18. Gul Husain? Nubbul (as reported by Political Officer, Tochi)—
Tth February, 1900.

About 15th January a man went to the Shuza to look for a camel at
Peshinwala.  He met Abdullah, son of Akhmad, Abba Khel, Amrdin,
Ghozral, Sirat Khan, Abdullais, and "a Shabi Khel Talib of the Mullah
Powindah, and altogether 19 men with a number of rifles, going apparently
with the intention of committing some serious offence. That nicht or next
the attack on Zam occurred. b
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10, Nherin Khan, Shaman Khel (reported by Polidical Oriiccr, Tecki )~
Ceh Felruary, 1800,
The six rifies taken from Zam post are with the Sheikhs of the Mullsh
Powindah, Haji Mubammad, Shaman Khel, Gul Khatin, Umar Kbel, Nezam
Din, Guleshahi and Amin Khan, Shaman Khel, saw them.

H. D. Watsorx,
Political Officer, Wana.

Annexure 6.

Letter grom H. D. Watson, Esj., C.S., Pelitical Officer, Wana, to the Cominls-
stoner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Tank, 14th May, 1900.

In continuation of the correspondence ending with my letter, dated
December 23rd, 1899, I have the honour to state that I met the Political
Officer, Tochi, at Bannu, on Aprl Sth, 1900, and the following days, and
discussed with him a number of pending-Tochi and Dauri cases.

We disposed of several that had remained outstanding in the lists sub-
mitted by Messrs. Lorimer and Ilettlewell with their joint letter, dated
Tochi, 8th January, and dated Wana, 10th January, 1899, and decreed against
the Mahsuds sums amounting in all to Rs. 800. All the cases in these lists
so far as concerns the Mahsuds may now be considered as disposed of.

9. Of the Dauri cases in the list submitted by Ar. Donald, we filed five,

remanded four for future enquiry, and in seven gave decrees against Mahsuds,
amounting in all to Rs. 740.

So the total amount awarded by us against the Mahsuds was Rs. 1,540.
The remaining cases it is proposed to take up at a joint jirga to be held,
probably at Tank, some time next cold weather.

3. The question of the realization from the Mahsuds of the sum awarded
18 a part of the question of the Habilities of the AMahsuds under the recent

settlement and otherwise, which is forming the subject of separate corre-
spondence.

~ Endorsement by the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Divi-
ston, dated Dera Ismail Khan, 15th May, 1900.

Copy of the foregoing submitted to J. M. Douie, Esquire, C.S., Chief
Secretary to the Government of the Punjab, Simla, for information, in con-

tinuation of the correspondence ending with this office letter, dated the 27th
December, 1899.

Aunnexure 7.

Letter jrom W. R. H, Merk, Esq., C.S., C.S.L., Commissioner and Svperintondent,
Deraiat Division, to the Ugiiciating Chief Secretary to Goverranent, Pun/ab,
dated Dera Ismail Khan, 19 May, 1900

In continuation of my letter, dated the Sth instant, I have the honour

to submit a copy of the correspondence noted in

_ Leter, dated the 13th the margin, on the subject of the fines and
WL, from 'igloifical Officer,  compensaticn stil due by the Mabsud tribe over

Letter, dated the syme day, and above the s, 35,000 settled for.

from the same, and enclosure. 2. I would explain that the statemerts or
offences, claszed A, B, C and D, were prescrived
by Mr. Bruce when Commis:icner of the Derajat, and are furnished waonthly
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to this office by the Political Officer, Wana. In addition the Political Officer
maintains statements of what are known as “Miscellaneous,” “Tochi,”
“Shirani” and “ Zhob ” cases. These eight statements show what offences
have been committed during the month and how disposed of, but they do not
show cases pending from previous months; and I have arranged for one
statement in place of eight to be prepared monthly, which will include undis-
posed of cases from previous months and will group the offences according
as the offenders belong to the main sections of the Mahsuds.

3. I will endeavour now to clear up the complicated accounts, taking
first those connected with the settlement of March last. In paragraph 8 of
this office letter, dated the 30th March, 1900, the liabilities of the Mahsuds
are given as Rs. 32,854-8-0.  The Mahsuds arranged for a payment of
Rs. 35,000, which left a balance of Rs. 2,145-8-0 in hand to meet Tochi and
Zhob cases. In this Rs. 83,000 is included an item of Rs. 3,234, being the
estimated value of the two-thirds share of the spring crop on Mahsud lands
in the Dera Ismail Khan District. The Assistant Commissioner at Tank,
however, anticipates that the value of the crop will be only Rs. 2,500, which
pro tanto will reduce the 35,000 rupees. But this loss we can make up in
tolls, and we may assume the figures of Rs. 35,000 to be so far unchanged.
It appears, however, now that the liahilities of the Mahsuds for the cases on
account of which they were held to owe Rs. 32,854-8-0 are in fact
Rs. 36,055-1-11; and further that for the Tochi and Zhob cases, on account of
which a balance of Rs. 2,145-8-0 was reserved, a sum of Rs. 3,540 is due.
This raises the total liabilities of the Mahsuds on account of the March settle-

ment to Rs. 36,055-1-11 + Rs. 3,540, total Rs. 89,595-1-11. To pay this
we have:—

Rs. A P

(@) Agreed upon by the Mahsuds ... ... 35,000 0 0

() Sundry fines paid in at the March jirea ... 292 0 0
(¢) Alimony of Mahsud hostages placed in jail
owing to escape of a hostage; alimony is

not paid to hostages in jail ... ... 1,100 0 0

Total ... .. .. 36392 0 0

39,595 1 11

36,392 0 0

Deficit ... .. 3203 111

or Rs. 3,200 in round numbers.

Mr. Watson proposes to meet this deficit in part by crediting and paying
to private individuals as compensation, &c., a sum of Rs. 2,117, which is due
to Government from the Mahsuds out of the March settlement of Rs. 35,000
on account of the value of rifles and other Government property stolen. I
am unable to support this proposal. The settlement from what the Political
Officer says was a lenient one; the fines inflicted in several of the cases were
hardly commensurate with the gravity of the offences, he states: and that
being so, it seems if, on making up accounts, we find that Rs. 3,200 more is
due from the Mahsuds, plus the deficit on account of sales of the rabi crop
say, Rs. 4,000 in all, that it is for the Mahsuds to make the deficiency, an(i
not for Government out of its just due. This deficit can be covered by con-
tinuing the tolls till they have produced Rs. 19,000 instead of the 15 000 .
rupees contemplated in paragraph 6 of this office letter No. 287 of the éOth

March, 1900. I understand that it will take about eighte .
realise Rs. 15,000 by means of the tolls. o on months to

If Governiment approve I will arrange to meet the deficit in the manner
suggested above.

4, This deficit of Rs.
sericus features in the pre
March settlement was m

4,000_is a relatively trivial matter, however, The
sent situation ave, first, that at the time that the
ade Rs. 23,500 were (in addition to the Rs. 32,854
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or as it appears Rs. 36,392, then due and settled for) payable by the tribe,
for the liquidation of which no arrangements have as yet been made; and,
second, that the settlement of March last has had no effect in checking the
predatory habits of the Mahsuds, for they have, since this settlement, run up
an account of at least Rs. 7,500 in six weeks, as explained in paragraph 4 of
the Political Officer’s letter, dated the 13th instant, to which must be added
Rs. 1,000 for two murders of British subjects in the Dera Ismail Khan
District, committed last week by Mahsuds. The total due comes to
Rs. 32,000. The Political Officer has informed me that when they engaged
to pay Rs. 35,000 last March, the Mahsuds knew that more money was due,
but not how much.,

5. We are responsible for the realization and payment of this money
to the injured parties. Leaving British subjects and their property out of
consideration for the moment, it was accepted years ago that on the roads
through the protected area we are bound to maintain the Pax Britannica,
and if, off the roads, we do not redress the wrongs suffered at the hands of the
Mahsuds by the residents of the protected area, we must either permit them
to exact redress themselves (a course which would make the protected area
a scene of constant raids and counter-raids) or face grave discontent.

1

6. In the hot weather and with cholera hanging about the Gomal and
Tank, it would be hopeless to attempt to convene the Mahsud Jirga for the
settlement of the outstanding sum of Rs. 32,000. Even if we could assemble
the jirga, I apprehend that the burden may be soon becoming too heavy for
the tribe to bear. The only thing I can suggest is to leave matters alone till
August or September, when it may be practicable to send for the whole
Maisud Jirga to Sarwekai or Jandola and then to see what can be done. By
that time I hope to be in a position to submit a review of the whole situation
in respect of the Mahsuds; it is clear that things cannot go on as they have
been doing. : :

7. One point remains on which I would ask for the instructions of
Government. The Political Officer thinks of going behind the settlement of
March last, of procuring the punishment of the actual offenders in the more
serious cases or the recovery of the stolen rifles and other property. It seems
to me that this is neither just nor expedient. A settlement is supposed to
wipe clean the slate. Although the punishments may have been inadequate,
yet, such as they are, they have been accepted, and there is an end of the
matters. There must be finality in proceedings, and to go on trying to get
hold of offenders and effect the recovery of property in cases of which many
are one to three years old, after a settlement has been made, opens up an
interminable vista of trouble and friction which had better be c?osed. We
have enough on our hands without this. And I am not so sure that to go
behind the settlement may not be considered by the “ulus” as a breach of
. faith, whatever individual Maliks may have been told or may think. We

could not entertain the thought of going behind the settlements effected with
the various tribes in 1897 and 1898, and I submit that the same applies here.

In the petition enclosed with this office letter, dated the 30th March,
1890, the Maliks say nothing of pursuing individual cases. They talk of
putting pressure on bad characters and misbehaving sections, so that they
may not be emboldened and the settlement may not be a precedent; and they
ask that if in the present cases the money (clearly meaning whatever was
fixed at the settlement, and nothing more) is realized from the actual offenders,
it may be refunded to the Maliks.  This I should certainly. decline to do. It
is for the Maliks to police their sections; that is what they are paid for; and
we cannot undertaﬁe to do the work of the Maliks, though they would
naturally much prefer us to do so, and to relieve them of all trouble and
responsibility and yet to pay them handsome allowances.
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Annexure 8.

Letter from H. D. Watson, Esq., Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner
and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Tank, 13th May, 1900.

With reference to your endorsement, dated May 8th, 1900, forwarding
a copy of your letter to the Chief Secretary, Punjab Government, on the sub-
ject of the statement of fines due from the Mahsuds prepared by me and
subfmliltted with my letfer, dated May 1st, 1900, I have the honour to state
as follows.

2. In dividing cases into classes A, B, &c., I have followed the classifica-
tion prescribed for the monthly statements of border offences which are
submitted to you through the Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan.
These classes are explained in the foot-note to the printed form of Statement
No. 1. Class A comprises offences committed by Mahsuds in British territory;
Class B those committed against British subject (including Powindahs) in
protected area; Class C those committed against the tribes in protected areas
or near posts; Class D those committed in the area under political control
exclusive of Class C. Tochi, Shirani and Zhob cases are separate.

“ Miscellaneous ” includes all cases not brought under the other classes.
They are mainly claims brought against the Mahsuds some time after the
offences to which they refer were committed, e.g., a Powindah finds a stolen
camel which he lost a year or so previously in the possession of a Mahsud,
or he puts in a petition about some property which he lost several months
or years before, and which he did not report at the time, having now perhaps
received some information as to who the offenders were. These cases are
of verydlittle importance and very few of them can be brought home to the
‘Mahsuds.

3. The sum of 8,500 rupees to which I referred in paragraph 3 of my
previous letter is that due from Mahsuds in decided cases of Classes C and D
and miscellaneous (the amount is really Rs. 8,351-8-2 + 200 Kabuli rupees—
vide abstract statement appended to letter). .These are the inter-tribal cases
referred to in paragraph 8 of Mr. Anderson’s letter to the Punjab Government
dated 30th March, 1900, and are not included in the 35,000 rupees
of Mr. Anderson’s settlement. Nor is this sum of about Rs. 8,500 included
in the 15,000 rupees estimated by me as the additional fines to which the
Mahsuds have rendered themselves liable for recent offences of the different
classes which were not taken up at the jirga because in cases other than
Classes C, D 2nd miscellaneous, enquiries into them had not been completed.

They are the cases mentioned in the abstract statement referred to in my
- letter as pending up to the last week in March. The value of the property
lost, &c., 1s there estimated at Rs. 24,781, but for reasons given in my letter
I considered that not more than 15,000 rupees would probably be realized
from the Mahsuds.

4. I have now brought the estimate of the liabilities of the Mahsuds up
to date by a supplementary statement attached to this letter, which shows all
cases reported against Mahsuds up to last week. The value of the property
lost in these most recent cases of all is shown as for Class A Rs. 3,659-5-0,
for Class B Rs. 7,993-8-3 (of which Rs. 2,000 is due from the Zalli Khels),
for Zhob Rs. 682-8-0, and for C and D Rs. 630 and Rs. 90 respectively. As
some of these claims are probably exaggerated or not proveable against
Mahsuds, the amount of their liabilities may be estimated as follows:—

Class A Rs. 2,500, B Rs. 4,000, Zhob Rs. 500, Classes C and D Rs. 500

5. In saying that certain sums due in Zhob and Tochi cases would be
included, if possible, in the settlement of Rs. 35,000, I meant that they
might be paid out of the balance reserved by Mr. Anderson to meet Tochi
and Zhob demands (vide paragraph 8 of his letter above referred to), which
he bopes will amount to over Rs. 3,000. Till it is known what the receipts
from the Mahsud land crops will be, the account cannot be finally made up.

11256 : M
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6. Leaving these Zhob and Tochi cases out of consideration, the total
liabilities of the Mahsuds up to date may be estimated in round numbers as
follows :—

Rs.
Tines due from Mahsuds under recent settlement for
outstanding cases of Classes A, B and Shirani, Zhob
and Tochi oo ... 35,000
Tstimated as due from them in the above classes of
cases (exclusive of Tochi cases) up to end of March,
_ 1900 (not included
» W;st}(l) Of(t)s. 6,000 bel.?meakes in  settlement of
0 : Rs. 35,000) ... 9,000%
Estimated as due from them in the above classes of
cases, reported between end of March and 2nd week
in May, 1900 ... ... 7,000
Total ... ... 51,000
Outstanding fines in Classes C, D and miscellaneous at
date of Mr. Anderson’s settlement ... ... ... 8500
Estimated amount due in pending cases up to end of
March, 1900 . .. 6,000
Estimated amount due in cases reported between end
of March and second week in May, 1900 ... 500
Total ... ... 15,000

Thus, briefly, in cases affecting British subjects or territory, the amount due
up to date 1s Rs. 51,000; in inter-tribal cases it is Rs. 15,000. It must be
remembered that this is a very rough estimate, and also that one or two of the
more important cases are in a fair way to settlement through recovery of the
stolen property or realisation of compensation from the offenders by baramta.

7. In conclusion I should be glad if one point in connection with the
recent settlement could be cleared up. I bave on several occasions told the
Mahsud Maliks since that settlement that I shall not relax my efforts to
procure the punishment of the actual offendérs in the more serious cases or
the recovery of the stolen rifles and other property. I understood that Mr.
Anderson agreed to my saying this, and on the principle that the innocent
should not, be punished for the guilty, and also in view of the fact that the
fines inflicted m several of the cases were hardly commensurate with the
gravity of the offence (if they had been, a settlement of this kind would have
probably been impossible, for the burden imposed on the tribe would have
been too heavy) T thought it would be bad policy to regard these cases as
altogether wiped off the slate. In pursuance of this policy I have detained
In custody Sabar Khan, nephew of Baramat, the Aimal Khel Malik, who
is believed to have been concerned in the theft of the Nawab of Tank’s rifles,
and a Balkai Mahsud, whose brother Atta Khan is believed to have been
concerned in the theft of Snider rifles from the Border Military Police guard
at the Murtaza rest-house, both of which cases were-included in the recent
settlement. I do not think the Mahsuds regard these proceedings on my
Paé'tft}s unfair or breach of the understanding arrived at in that settlement;
and if by the pressure thus exercised I can recover any of the rifles stolen or
{’);g;zelfhe case against any of the thieves, I do not see that T am precluded

ou th'e%lﬂg those rifles or punishing the thieves by fine or otherwise. If
Zpttlenzllg , Bowever, that all these cases were finally disposed of at the recent
the 'pointnt, I should be glad if you would send my successor early orders on
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Annexure 9.

List of Pending Cases,

Date of
Qccurrence,

Place of
Qccurrence,

Thana,

Nature
of Offenoce.

Complainans.

Tribe.

Brief Account of the Case taken

to Date.

Remarks,

e
<D

[

23rd

+— January, 1900 ...

24th

4th April, 1900

13th April, 1900
17th April, 1900

18th April, 1900

24th April, 1900

22nd .
Erory Apri], 1900

24th .

25th April, 1800

25th .
BTy April, 1900

25th

5% April, 1900

are

Jamal Dial -...

Near Kulachi ..

Kotnawaz ...

Near Manjhi ...

Talrod Chur ...

Kaziwals
Water-mill.
Near Tank ...

Gul Imam ...

Gomal...

Near Jatta ...

Mullazai

Tank

Kulachi

Gomal
Do.

Tank

Do,
Mullazai

Gomal

Do.

Mullazai

Theft of four maunds
wheat, valued at
Rs. 16,

Dacoity of four camels,
valued at Rs, 360 and
cash Ra. 260. :

Theft of three sheep,

valued at Rs. 17-10-0.

One bullock with wheat,
&c., valued at Rs, 40,

Robbery of three camels
with other property
valued at Rs. 110-8-0.

Theft of two camels,
valued at Rs. 170,

Theft of one bullock,
valued at Rs, 27,

Theft of property b
house-breaking. v

Theft of four cows,
Theft of seven goats;
valued at Bs. 61,

Theftof clothing, valued
at Rs, 1-3-0,

Theft of ome camel,
valued at Rs, 5O,

Cases of Class A.
Lal Chand

(1) Khan, o
(2) Faizulla, a4
(3) Shah Jahan, (5 8’9

Ain-ud-din, Sheikh ...
Hokim Machi ... ..

Amrdin, Ali Khel

Alam ° Khan, Xundi,
Powindah.
Inayat Khan ... .

Asa Ram

Alidad, Kharoti Powin-
dab,

Mamit Kbhan, Khidarzai

Zarif Khan, Carpenter...

see

Case under enquiry.

Value not told by
complainant.

16



List of Pending Cases—continued.

Serial Date of Place of Nature : Tribe. Brief Account of the Case taken Remarks,
No. Ocourrence. Ocecurrence, Thana. of Offence. Complainant. Accused. ribe. to Date.
. Cases of Class A—cont.
12 ;f—% April, 1500 ... | Nasran wee | Mullazai ... Tligft of bullock, value | Naurang Nasr ... e e Case under enguiry.
g s, 13,
13 | 28th April, 1900 ... | Kot Azam’ ... | Gomal .. | Theft of 45 camels, | Dauran, Miari Powin- e Do.
valued at Rs. 2,250, dah,
14 %}i April, 1900 ... | Kot Nawaz ... Do. ... | Wounding  complain. | Baz Khan, Sheikh Deo.
aab, .
15 | 13th April, 1900 .. | Near Tank ... { Tank ... | Theftofproperty,valued | Khadim ... B e o Do
) at Rs. 15-6-0.
5 . : |
16 %& April, 1960 ... | Kot Nawaz ... { Gomal «» | Theftofproperty,valued | Khaldin through Khan- Do.
_at Rs, 13-12-0, gul, :
17 | 26th April, 1900 ... | Near Draband { Chaudwan... Theftof property, valued | Abdulghafar.
ab Rs. 251-14-0.
Cases of Class B.
1 Ist Aprii, 1900 <. | Khajuri Kach | KhajuriKach | Theft of four camels, | Khar Khan Nasir Unknown ... { Unknown ... Do
valued at Iis. 360,
2 | 2ud April, 19080 ... | Sado Chilla ... Do. Theft of property and | Ram Singh and Mus- Do. e Do. o Do.
jewels, valued at sammat Bhag Bhari,
Rs. 133-8-3. ~
8 | 20th April, 1900 ... | Spin ... - | Ngandioba... | Theft of 11 camels, | Sahib Khan, Powindah, Do. Do. ... Do.
walued at Rs, 550. &e.
4 | 220d April, 1900 .., | ChaparuKhulla Do. .. | Theft of 100 camels, { 1. Juma Khan ... . | Numin Zan- | Michi Khels, | Case under enquiry. Ten Zalli Khels
valued at Rs. 5,000, 2. Jamal. galte, &c, Malikdinais, of Spin have been arrested, and one
3.. Hassun, Faridais,&ec., bhas confessed, implicating himself,
also Zalli several of his companions, and a
Khels of nnmber of Mahsuds. Pressure is
Spin. being put on the Mahsud Maliks to
recover the camels, and six have
been brought in by the Malikdinais.
Share due from the B ahsuds may
3ed . S be estimated at Re. 3,000,
3 i May, 1900 --. | Pasta Kach ... | KbajuriKach | Theft of five camels, | 1. JTaidar Shalh . .. e | Case under enquiry, !

4th

valued at Rs, 250,

2. Umar Shah; Sayads

o
Lo



6th May, 1900

5th May, 1900

10th Decgember,

January, 1900

Tth o
§iE May, 1900

ses see aea

1899

Near Ghwelera

Grazing ground,
Pasta Kach.

Chachobi e

Wana ...

Do,

Do.
Moghal Kot
Wans
Jandola ...
Gomal

Theft of two camels,
valued at Rs. 100,and
cloth valued at Rs. 900,
and cash Rs. 600
Kabuli, and shooting
four camels.

Theft of four ~Tanels,
valued at Rs, 200.

Thefs of 63 sheep, 50
bullocks, 60 cows, &c. ;
property valued at
Rs. 682-8-0.

Theft of 60 sheep and
goats,  valued at
Rs. 180.

Theft of 30 cows, valued
ab Rs. 450,

Theft of five cows, five
goats, valued at Rs. 80,

1. Mallah Mu-

bammad, { Powin-
2. Sikandar, dahs.
3. Lal Khan,

Ghulam Rasul, Nasir ...

Zhob cases, 1899-1300,
Khanak, Shirani

Class C.
1. Naim Xhan } Taji
2. Gandapur Khels.

Rozi Bhittanni ...

Class D.
Dad Nasir -

Do.

A cases, value of property lost, &c.

B do.
Zhob do.
C do.
D do

do.
do,
do.
do.

ABSTRACT,

se wes .o

o & ©w o ow bt

. P
0
3 (of which Rs, 2,000 is due
from Zalli Khels).
¢
0

H. D. Warson,
Political Officer, Wana, Southern Waziristan.

€6
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Annexure 10.

Letter from H. D. Waison, Esq., Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner
and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Tank, 13th May, 1900.

In accordance with your verbal instructions and in continuation of my
letter of to-day’s date, I have the honour to submit herewith a statement
. giving a more correct account of the sums due from the Mahsuds under the

recent settlement, and of the sums which are or will be in hand for dis-
charging those liabilities. It will be seen that the Labilities are more than
were originally estimated, owing partly, I fear, to mistakes made in my
office, and partly to the fact that Mr. Gee and myself found ourselves unable
to keep within the limits alotted in awarding compensation.

2. On the other hand there are several items which can be added to the
Rs. 35,000 which the Mahsuds agreed to pay; and I have shown these in the
total sum realized or realizable from the tribe. I trust that under the cir-
cumstances they will be allowed to be credited.

3. It will be seen that the balance in hand for settling Tochi and Zhob
demands is Rs. 2,484-1-11. This will be diminished or increased according
as the sale of Mahsud crops realises less or more than was anticipated.

4. The Tochi and Zhob demands in cases settled up to date (excluding
those comprised in the item of outstanding fines) come to Rs. 3,540, viz,
Rs. 2,000 for the murder of the Zhob Levies in May 1899 and Rs. 1,540 for
Dauri cases recently decided at the meeting held by the Political Officer,
Tochi, and myself. There is thus a deficit of Rs. 1,086 still to be realized
under the settlement; and T would add to this Rs. 914 for settling some
undecided Zhob cases which have been long pending. If it is considered
advisable to settle up this particular account withont making further demands
on the Mahsuds, as% strongly recommend, part of the odd 19,000 rupees due
for outstanding fines might ge used for this object, for out of this sum over
Rs. 2,000 are due as fines to Government and not as compensation to indi-
viduals, so Government would be the only loser if that amount of fines were
commuted into compensation. '

Liabilities of Mahsuds up to Settlement of March, 1900 (including cases decided
- at the jirga held).
Rs. A. P.
Outstanding fines (as amended after re-examin-
ation of files) ... .. 19,113 0 5
Awarded in March jirga in Classes A, B and

Shirani cases .. 16,942 1 6

Total ... .. 36,055 111

Realized or realisable under recent settlement 35,000 0 0

Fines paid in at jirga, &c. ... 292 0 0
Pay of Mahsud hostages in Jail at Dera Ismail

Khan e L100 0 O
Compensation due to Government for rifles, &e.,
awarded in certain cases decided at recent
lrga and included in the total of

Rs. 16,942-1-6 above ... e e 2117 0 O

' Total ... .. 38509 0 0
Balance in hand available for Tochi and Zhob

cases ., . 2454 0 O

Due for Tochi and Zhob cases settled up to date 3,540 1 1
Deficit .., .. 1,086 1 1



95

Annexure 11,

Letter from W. R. H. Merk, Esq., C.S.I., 1.C.S., Officiating Commissioner and
Superintendent, Derajat Division, to the Oficiating Chief Secretary to
Government, Punjab, dated 24th May, 1900,

Your letter of the 21st instant has crossed my letter, dated the 19th
instant, which furnishes the further report promised regarding the out-
standings against the Mahsuds. Mr. Watson has left India on furlough, and
I am therefore unable to obtain the full explanation called for by Govern-
ment. I would, bowever, in justice to Mr. Watson, point out that insistence
on the part of this office would doubtless have resulted in an earlier com-
pliance with the orders of Government.

2. With regard to the remarks of the Government of India in the 2nd
and 3rd paragraphs of Foreign Department letter, dated 16th instant, I
propose, with the permission of Government, to submit, in August next, the
review of the situation in respect of the Mahsuds which is mentioned in para-
graph 6 of my letter cited above. The accuracy of the conclusion in para-
graph 2 of your office letter, dated the 6th February, 1900, viz., that the
liabilities of the Mahsuds under present conditions accumulate faster than
they can be liquidated, has been vindicated by the facts as now ascertained;
and it seems to me that the whole position requires very full consideration,
for it is clear, if the tribe cannot or will not reform its ways, that there can
be but one end to the existing state of affairs.

3. I think it is very unlikely that the Rs. 15,000 will be realized by
tolls within the next six months; from what I was informed at Tank, I
should say eighteen months would be nearer the mark,

4. T am unable to say why half the pay of the Levies was attached for
three months, nor can any officer inform me, since the Political Officer was
apparently -not associated with the Commissioner in the actual settlement
of the terms with the jirga. This was, T understand, effected alone by my
predecessor, with the assistance of his Head Clerk, Mr. E. T. Bhan, who has
left my office. It was arranged, I believe, that the Levies are to go in turn
on leave, and that while they are away their pay is to be credited towards
payment of the Rs. 35,000.

5. For the result, so far, of negotiations with the Mahsuds about the
Badar disputes, I would refer to my telegram of the 14th instant, and to my
letter of to-day’s date to your address. )

Annexure 12.

Letter from J. M. Douie, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government,
DPunjab, to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated
Stmla, 2nd Jurne, 1900. :

I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of yours, dated 18th May,
regarding the disposal of certain Tochi and Dauri cases. In accordance with
the orders contained in this office, No. 83, dated 19th January, the reason
why four of the cases remained unsettled should have been reported. I am to
request that the necessary information may now be obtained from the Political
Officer, Tocha. '
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Annexure 13.

Letter  from J. M. Doute, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government,
jab, to the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated

Punj
Simla, 2nd June, 1900.

I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letters noted in the

margin, giving further information as to the

Dated 11th, 19th and 24th  getlement with the Mahsuds made by Mr.
May. Anderson.

2. Of the eight classes of cases described in paragraph 2 of Mr. Watson’s,
dated 13th May, to your address, your predecessor only professed to have
dealt with five in the jirga held at Tank. These comprised offences in British
territory, and offences against British subjects and Powymdahs in the pro-
tected area, correspond to Classes A and B in the registers maintained in
your office, also offences In the Shirani country, the Tochi and Zhob. Mr.
‘Anderson expressly stated that he had not settled the “inter-tribal cases,”
which the Lieutenant-Governor presumes are identical with Classes C and D
in your registers, and that these would “be disposed of as opportunities offer.”
For some unexplained reason the “ miscellaneous ™ cases were also omitted,
though to judge from the figures in the abstract at the end of the list appended
to Mr. Watson’s No. 663, dated 1st May, this last class is not unimportant.
Tt was stated that the settlement “leaves no case” with the exceptions noted
above “pending anywhere against the Mahsuds.” :

3. It now appears that the settlement was faulty in the following
respects. A composition of Rs. 35,000 was accepted for offences for which
the amount really due is Rs. 39,595. The detail is—

‘ Rs.
(@) Unrealized fines in cases previously settled .. 19,113
(b) Fines due in cases settled at Tank jirga ... ... 16,942
(¢) Tochi and Zhob cases . 3,540

The figures given under the first two heads in paragraph 8 of your prede-
cessor’s, dated 30th March, are incorrect, and it is difficult to understand how
such serious miscalculations can have passed muster. Moreover it now
appears that Mr. Anderson was in exror in thinking that all pending cases of
the five classes which he mentioned had been settled. A comparison of M.
Watson’s, dated 1st May, 13th May, and 14th May, shows that a number of
cases were left unsettled in which the claim against the Mahsuds is stated at
Rs. 13,203 (see list appended to Mr. Watson’s letter, dated 1st May), which
the Political Officer considers will probably be reduced to Rs. 9,000 when
the cases are finally decided. To this must be added the amount ultimately
found due on account of four cases in the Tochi Valley. Had a complete
settlement been made with the Mahsuds in March the demand made upon

* Rupees 7,000 estimated as them should have been in round figures
Goto 00 decount of 4 aud B Rs. 49,000 instead of Rs. 35,000. Since March
Tochi cases]m:;ili%}t;()bh?;i they have added Rs. 8,000% to their liabilities
occurred  since March plus URder the same five classes of cases. The claims.
Rs. 1,000 due for the murder against them in respect of the other three classes,

of two British i i .
Ders Tomn et an'sub]ects in namely, C, D and miscellaneous, may be roughly

stated as—
Rs.
(@) In respect of cases settled before March, 1900 ... 8,500
b) In respect of cases pending in March, 1900 ... 6,000
¢) In respect of cases which have occurred since
March, 1900 ... ... ... ... .. 500
Total ... 15,000

Assuming that

. we ibili 5
in all these oy are bound to enforce the responsibility of the Mahsuds

€3, the total claim against them amounts to Rs. 72,000, of
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which cases involving in round figures Rs. 40,000 are included in the settle-
ment made at Tank and cases involving Rs. 32,000 are not so included.

4, The first question that arises is whether the difference between the
real demand of Rs. 39,595 in the cases actually dealt with at Tank and the
lump sum of Rs. 35,000, at which the demand was assessed,'can be recovered.
No doubt the petty fine of Rs. 292 realized at Tank can be utilized, but Sir
Mackworth Young fails to see how Rs. 1,100, which would have been paid as
alimony to Mahsud hostages had they not been transferred from the serai at
Dera Ismail Khan to the Jail, can be used to make up part of the deficit.
The question whether we can continue to collect tolls from Mahsud trading
convoys till the whole amount now found to be due is realized depends on the
question whether the Maliks understood that they were agreeing to pay
Rs. 35,000 as a final settlement of certain cases previously settled and certain
other cases actually decided by jirgas at the time the payment was arranged.
Tt would appear from paragraph 8 of Mr. Anderson’s letter, dated 30th
March, that this is the case, and unless you have anything further to urge
on the subject, the Lieutenant-Governor thinks we must forego the demand
of Rs. 4,303 (i.e., Rs. 4,595 — Rs. 292) overlocked at the Tank settlement.

5. The question remains how we are to deal with the demand of
Rs. 17,000 on account of the five classes of cases mentioned in paragraph 2 for
which the Mahsuds are liable on account of cases left unsettled last March
and cases which have occurred since, and with the further demand of
Rs. 15,000 which is stated to be due on account of miscellaneous cases and
cases of Classes C and D. With reference to the last two classes I am to
refer you to the correspondence printed in the Foreign Department (Frontiex)
Proceedings, of May, 1899, where the policy to be followed with reference to
them is discussed. In that correspondence you took the view which you have
again expressed in paragraph 5 of your letter, dated 19th May, while Mr.
Anderson contended that we should only deal with such cases by giving
friendly advice to the contending parties. As Mr. Anderson and
Mr. Watson have both left the country, Sir Mackworth Young will be glad
if you can explain with special reference to the 3rd paragraph of Government
of India, Foreign Department, dated 29th May, a copy of which has been
sent to you with my letter of to-day’s date, the precise nature of the C and D |
cases not included in the settlement, and endeavour to show why M.
Anderson excluded them. As he stated that they would be disposed of as:
opportunities offered, it is clear that he did not regard them as pressing for
settlement in the same way as offences in British territory or against British
subjects in the protected area. You should also explain more particularly-
as regards cases of this description not settled before March last whether 1t -
is expedient to face the settlement of these inter-tribal cases as well as of
the large number of cases in which the interests of British subjects are
involved. Further particulars as to the cases classed as miscellaneous will
also be useful.  Subject to the.above remarks the Lieutenant-Governor
accepts your proposal to defer dealing with all cases against the Mahsuds not
included in the March settlement till August or September next.

6. 1am toadd that the arrangement as to the Levies described in para-
graph 4 of your letter, dated 24th May, is another unsatisfactory feature of
the recent settlement. ,

7. Sir Mackworth Young endorses the views expressed in paragraph 7
of your letter, dated 19th May, and paragraph 2 of your letter dated 11th
May, regarding the attack on the Zam Post. “He entirely agrees with you in
thinking that where a settlement with a tribe has been made in respect of
any offence that settlement must, in default of express stipulation, be held
to be complete, and to preclude further action against either the tribe or
individuals of the tribe concerned in that offence.

8. But the demand made upon the tribe on account of the attack on the
Zam post, consisting as it appears merely of the valuation of blood-money
and of the property stolen, is so manifestly inadequate as a complete settle-
ment of this very grave offence that the Lieutenant-Governor can hardly

11256 N
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:ave that Mr. Anderson accepted it as such without recording his reasons,
%)sh&vee 5tthh paragraph of his letter, dated 30th March, he reported that the
files in all pending cases were examined. His Honour would wish to he
informed whether the particular file relating to the attack on the Zam post
was laid before Mr. Anderson and whether there is any record on it of the
settlement made with the tribe.

Enclosure 9 in No. 2.

Letter from Sir William Cuningham, K.C.8.L, Secretary to the Government of
India, Foreign Department, to the Chief Secretary to the Government of the
Punjab, dated Simla, the 25th June, 1900.

1 am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter, dated the 19th
June, 1900, forwarding a copy of correspondence regarding offences recently
committed by Mahsuds, including a reported robbery of the mails in the
Tiarza Nulla on the 20th May, 1900.

9. The Political Officer in Southern Waziristan considers that the mail
robbery was instigated by the Mullah Powindah, and the mail bags were
said, on the 5th June, to be in the Mulla’s house, where they had been
taken after the robbery. In these circumstances His Honour the Lieu-
tenant-Governor thinks that the Mulla should not be granted any allowance
at present, unless he clears himself of complicity in the robbery.

3. The Government of India are of opinion that the sooner the dis-
bursement of the allowance, which has already been sanctioned, can be
commenced the better, and the more so if steps are subsequently taken to
ensure that publicity is given to the arrangement with the Mulla. With
this view, the degree of Mulla Powindal’s complicity, if any, in the robbery
of the mail should be established by immediate investigation, so as to admit
of further action being taken in the matter of the allowance, which is an
object of much greater importance.

4. T am to take this opportunity of acknowledging the receipt of the
_papers forwarded with your letter, dated the 2nd June, 1900, regarding
the unfortunate defects which have been brought to light in-the settlement
made with the Mahsuds by Mr. Anderson in March last. The Government
of India observe that the Commissioner of the Derajat Division has been
called on for further explanations on some of the points at issue in regard
to the settlement. I am to request that, when this supplementary infor-
mation has_ reached the Lieutenant-Governor, the views and recommenda-
tions of His Honour may be furnished at the earliest possible date.

Enclosure 10in No. 2.

Letter from 1. M. Douie, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government,
Punjab, to the Secretary to the Government of India, Foreign Dcpartment,
dated Simla, 26th July, 1900.

With reference to the 4th paragraph of your letter, dated 25th June,
Letter, dated 28th June, I am directed to submit, for the information
from Cowmissioner, Derajat, of the Government of India, the further corres-
with its enclosares, i i he subject of
Endorsement, dated 2nd b ondgnce noted in the'margm g Tiibe las
July, from Commissioner, the séttlement made with the Mahsud Tribe last
Derajat, with enclosnre, " March.

2. In the 3rd paragraph of my letter, dated 2nd June, to the address
of the Comumissioner, a copy of which was submitted with my letter of the
same date, the fact that, cases as regards which the claim against the Mahsuds
would probably amount to Rs. 9,000 had been overlooked by Mr. Anderson
was noted. Tt now appears that to these must be added seven cases belong-
Ing to the Bannu District, which were pending in March last, but had, ap-
parently, not been reported by the Deputy Commissioner to the Political
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Officer at Wana. The last and most serious of these cases only occurred in
the end of February, and the facts of its not having been reported is not
wonderful. But all the other cases ought to have been reported, and some
of them are very old. The amount due by the Mahsuds on account of the
seven Bannu cases is put at Rs. 4,800.

3. The Lieutenant-Governor accepts the conclusion stated in paragraph 2
of Mr. Merk’s letter, dated 28th June, that the total amount due by the tribe
at the end of March, on the assumption that the settlement made at Tank
was intended to include all pending cases, except inter-tribal and miscellane-
ous cases was under estimated by about Rs. 19,000. In fact, it will be better
to put the figure at Rs. 20,000, for Rs. 19,000 does not include Rs. 914, on
account of pending Zhob cases mentioned in Mr. Watson’s letter, dated 13th
May, 1900. This is a serious matter, and the question whether we are
really bound, under the terms of the agreement, to accept Rs. 35,000 as a
foll acquittance for a demand, which ought to have been put at Rs. 55,000,
is a difheult one. The Lieutenant-Governor thinks it very desirable to have
the opinion of the officer who made the settlement, and he further considers
that Mr. Anderson ought to have an opportunity of furnishing such explana-
tion as may be possible of the numerous defects which, on the information
at present available, appear to have marked his proceedings. A copy of the
whole correspondence 1s, therefore, being sent to Mr. Anderson by this week’s
mail, with a request that he will favour the Punjab Government with his
- remarks on the various points in issue at a very early date. Until his reply
has been received Sir Mackworth Young wishes to reserve his final conclusions
on the case.

4. As already stated in my letter, dated 2nd June, to the address of
the Commissioner of the Derajat, the Tank settlement did not profess to take
account of claims relating to C, D, and Miscellaneous Cases, amounting to a
sum of about Rs. 14,500. Mr. Merk has now explained exactly what these
cases are. There is, of course, no manner of doubt that we can enforce our
claims regarding them against the Mahsuds, and this will have to be done
sooner or later. The Lieutenant-Governor reserves his remarks on the proper
way of dealing with cases in the area “wunder political control ” but outside
“ the protected area ” till he is in a position to deal fully with the whole case
on receipt of Mr. Anderson’s reply.

- 5. With reference to the proposed recovery of Rs. 3,300 out of the
total composition of Rs. 35,000 by withholding part of the pay of the Levies,
I am to refer to the correspondence submitted with my letter, dated 25th
June.

6. It is, as the Government of India are aware, unfortunately the case
that our claims against the Mahsuds have mounted up rapidly owing to the
commission of fresh offences since the conclusion of the settlement in last
March, and that our relations with the tribe are in-an unsatisfactory state.
Mr. Merk proposes to report fully on this subject at a very early date.

Annexure 1.

Letter from W. R. H. Merk, Esq., C.S., C.S.L, Commissioner and Superin-
tendent, Deragjat Division, to the Officiating Chief Secretary to Government
Punjab, dated 28th June, 1900.

I am now in a position to reply to your letter, dated the 2nd instant,
on the subject of the settlement with the Mahsuds made by Mr. Anderson
in March last. The case is complicated, and to avoid interrupting the text,
all references to previous correspondence, and to copies of correspondence
now enclosed, are given in the margin. I will, as far as possible, follow the
heads of your letter under acknowledgment, in the order therein given. As
none of the desired information could be found in my office, I addressed the

Dated 5th June, 1900, to FPolitical Officer, Wana, and attach a copy of my

Political Officer. letter and of Mr. Waterfield’s reply, which givea
Dated 20th June, 1900, from  information.
Politieal Officer.

11256 , N2
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9. According to the information which wag available when your letter
under reply was written, the total sum really due from the Mahsuds, on
Puragraph 3 of your letter.  account of the five classes of cases with which
the settlement professed to deal, was Rs. 49,000. But since then it has been
discovered that there were caﬁ?shc%nlgﬁttedl?y thgm inhthe Bannu District,
, ‘ ) which had not been brought up at the settle-
19(1;100' fftg);ndgggut}mgmgﬁs: ment.  What these cases are will appear from
sioner, Bannu, and enclosure,  the enclosed correspondence. The damages that
No. 922, dated 20th June, cun be held to be fairly claimable on their account
1900, from Political Officer, amounts to Rs. 8,370; add to this Rs. 1,500 for
Wana. fines, which it will not be excessive severity to
impose for offences, No. 1 (Rs. 200), No. 5 (Rs. 500), No. 7 (Rs. 800), and
we have Rs. 4,870, or in round numbers Rs. 4,800 additional to the Rs. 49,000.
This makes a total of Rs. 53,008 instead of Rs. 35,000, or an excess of Rs.
18,800.

3. In regard to this excess which is due, a very important point is
His letter, dated 20th June, raised .by Mr., Waterfield. He says that the
1900. Mahsud Maliks argue that the Rs. 35,000 were
a composition for all offences of the five classes whatsoever and wherescever
against the Mahsuds, whether decided before the date of the settlement or
decided during the settlement or not decided at all as yet when the Tank
meeting broke up, and, therefore, still pending like the cases aggregating Rs.
* His letter, dated 1st May, 9,000, mentioned by Mr. Watson,* or these Ban-
900. nu cases. Mr. Waterfield is inclined to accept
the contention of the Maliks, upon the strength of Mr. Anderson’s statement
Paragraph 8 of Mr. Ander- that “the settlement which has been made leaves
son's letter, dated 30th March, 1o case pending anywhere against the Mahsuds,
1900, to Government. except the “inter-tribal” cases, which will be
“disposed of as opportunities offer.” This statement certainly lends colour
“to what the Maliks urge. But in the first place, since the Bannu .cases
apparently escaped the notice both of Mr. Anderson and of the Mahsuds, it
is impossible to make the settlement embrace what neither side was aware of,
or rather, did not think of. In the second place, Mr. Watson before going on
leave distinetly informed me that the Mahsuds, when they engaged to pay
Paragraph 4 of my letter, RS. 35,000, knew that more was due, but not how
dated 19th May, 1900, to much, The files of the cases for which the settle-
Government. ment was made were gone into, as will he de-
- scribed below. If these Rs. 9,000 cases had been included in the settlement
the files relating to them would have been gone into and disposed of; but they
were not so gone into, and, therefore, they cannot have been included in the
settlement, since a clear account of what was actually included in the set_tl@—
t Paragraph 8 of his letter, Mentis given by Mr. Anderson.t Against this is
dated 30th March, 1900, to the puzzling statement that there were no cases
Government. pending. I do not understand it, and cannot
explain it. That the Maliks should be anxious to show that the settlement
covered the Rs. 9,000 cases, and the Bannu cases, one can quite understand;
they refer to their petition of the 24th March, 1900, but this petition must be
taken quantum valeat; but in spite of the statement of Mr. Anderson, which
appears to have been written under some misapprehension, I consider that
the March settlement did not, and was not, intended to cover the pending, or
what T call the Rs. 9,000 cases, and also the Bannu cases; that we shall be
%erfect]y Justified in demanding redress for these cases, in addition to the
su2h35»000, and that this will involve no breach of faith or appearance of
4. The Rs. 4,303, mentioned by vou were not overlooked, but misecal-
*Paragraph 4 of your letter culated at” Tank. What happened was this:
nnder reply. The detail of the Rs. 35,000 consists of—

L—Unrealised fines in cases previously settled.
I1.—Fines due in cases settled at the Tank jirga.
IIT.—Tochi and Zhob caues,
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There was no need at Tank to go into the files of Class I.  The files of Classes
IT and III were, I understand, run through by Mr. Tej Bhan, late Head Clerk
in this office. He prepared an estimate of the labilities considered due on

* Paragraph 8 of his letter these Classes IT and III, which seems to have
cited above. been what is given by Mr, Anderson,* and then
the officers concerned in the cases and the Mahsuds were told that an aggre-
gate sum of Rs. 35,000 would be demanded, and would cover everything in
Classes I, IT, and III. Apparently the files of only four cases were put before
the Mahsud jirga—see Mr. Waterfield’s letter, dated 20th June, 1900.
When, however, it came to working out the sums due in each individual case,
the estimate could not be adhered to, and for the Dera Ismail Khan cases

alon ¢ ut Rs. 2,000.1 Mr.
f Letter, dated 9th June, e the excess came to about t

1900, from Deputy Commis-
sioner, Dera Ismail Khan.

t My telegram, dated 1ith
June, 1900,
.t Deputy Commissioner’s
telegram, daied 15th June,
1300,

Gee is mistaken in thinking that it was proposed
to meet the aggregate excess (Rs. 4,000) by utiliz-
ing the fines due to Government on account of the
Zam and Murtaza cases, ¢.e., by making Govern-
ment pay, for, firstly, it cannot have been fore-
seen when the estimate was framed that the
actuals would be in excess, or otherwise, more

than Rs. 35,000 would have been fixed as payable by the Mahsuds, and
secondly, Mr. Gee himself, with Mr. Watson, assessed the payment for the

(5) Letter, dated 20th June,
1900, from Political Officer.

Zam case, and they did not fix any fine at all. T
will deal with the punishment awarded for the

Zam and other serious offences later on.
5. The proceeds of the sale of the rd share of the Mahsud crops have

Telegram, dated 21st June,
1500, from Deputy Commis-
sioner, Dera Ismail Khan.

1 Paragraphs 7 and § of
Mr. Anderson’s letter, dated
30th March, 1900, to Govern-
ment.

fallen short of the estimate by Rs. 234, Rs. 3,000
having been realised. The anticipations on this
point} have not been fulfilled ; this gives a further
deficit of Rs. 234, but the item is a trifle.

6. The alimony of the hostages is looked
upon as a tribal allowance. We call them
hostages, but some years ago, in 1889, I think, it
was proposed to send back the hostages to their

homes, by way of punishment to the Mahsuds. This throws a new light upon
the common interpretation of the term “hostage.” It was because the ali-
mony is in effect a tribal allowance that I proposed to utilize it towards

Paragraph 3 of my letter, meeting the deficit. I am presently going to
dated 19th May, 1900, to address Government separately on the whole
Government. question of Mahsud hostages.

7. I thought we could explain to the Mahsuds that on working out the
detail of the damages due from them we found that they come to Rs. 4,300,
or rather Rs. 4,600 now (with the deficit on the Mahsud 2rd crop proceeds),

Paragraph 4. and that they must make this good. But in view
of the remarks in your letter I venture to agree that this measure is not
feasible. The only course now open to us for giving some compensation, at
any rate, to those injured British subjects, who will otherwise not have even

Paragraph 2 (9) of my letter partial justice done to them, is to reduce rateably

dated 5th  June, 13900, to
Political Officer, and his letfer,
dated 20th Juune, 1900, clause

the compensation payable throughout the cases,
so as to make all the cases fit into the limit of the
Rs. 35,000. I do not advocate that Government

9. pay the Rs. 4,600.

8. But here another and very grave difficulty meets us, if the plea of the
Maliks is accepted, viz., that the Rs. 9,000 cases and the Bannu cases are
included in the Rs. 33,000 settlement. These cases aggregate Rs. 13,300.
Obviously some compensation must be given in these cases. We cannot do
justice in some cases affecting British subjects and their property, and not do

. justice in others that are in precisely the same class.  1F the Malik’s plea is
accepted, we shall have to fit in Rs. 13,800 + Rs. 4,600 worth of cases, or Rs.
18,400 worth of cases altogether, into the Rs. 35,000 1 addition to the cases
already supposed to be covered by the Rs. 35,000. "This will reduce the com-
pensation payable all round by 50 per cent. To judge from what was done
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in the grave offences mentioned below, it is not to be supposed that the com-

nsation fixed in the ;I and III Classes exrs on the side of liberality to the
Injured people. And it can easily be realised what effect a further reduction
by 50 per cent. of this compensation will have upon British subjects and
Mabsuds alike. If, however, Government decide to demand the Rs. 13,800
from the Mahsuds, the distribution of the deficit of Rs. 4,600 over the already
settled cases will not matter much, qud, moral effect, although the process
will cause infinite trouble to the Poltical Officer, since compensation has, I
believe, been already paid in many cases from moneys in hand out of the Rs,

* Paragraph 6 of Mr. Ander- 5,000 Mahsud dCPOSit, and the Rs. 8,466 Malild
son’s letter, dated 30th March, allowances.* However, it will have to be gone
1900, to Government. through.

9. Turning now to what have been called “ C and D ” cases, I would
Paragraph 5 of your letter.  explain that this classification was introduced by
Mr. Bruce, late Commissioner of this Division, in 1895. “C” cases were
- defined by him to be inter-tribal cases in pro-
t Paragraph 2, clause (4) of tected areas or near posts, &c., which, for political
!1!;)%0 lettt:r, P%Tit&%alstho 1%2;?3 reasons, require to be taken up, and “D” were
clause (4) of his Teply, aateq 10 be othe,z: ;nter-trlbal case. What are “ Mis-
20th June, 1900, - cellaneous ” cases, and why so classified by Mr.
Watson we cannott tell, beyond this that fhey
appear to be old or doubtful cases, which were not of sufficient urgency or
Paragraph 2 of Mr. Watson’s importance to be entered in Lists C and D. 1
letter, dated 13th May, 1900.  have endeavoured to obtain some insight into the
nature of the cases in the C, D, and Miscellaneous lists by gong through
the statements for the past four years of all cases sent monthly to this office
by the Political Officer, but Miscellaneous cases are not mentioned in them,
and for Lists C and D only numbers, viz., abstract totals and results, and no
details of the offences are given. No further information than the above
can, therefore, be supplied to Government without a laborious and lengthy
examination of all the files in the Wana Office. In Proceedings, Foreign—
Frontier A., May, 1900, an abstract (from which, however, D cases are
omitted is given by Mr. Watson. Excluding the cases committed since
Paragraph 3 of your letter. ~ March, 1900, the money equivalent of which by
this date is very considerably more, I know, than Rs. 500, Rs. 14,500 are due
for cases in Lists C, D, and Miscellaneous. At a rough guess, out of this
I suppose about Rs. 8,000 are due for C cases, Rs. 4,000 for D cases, and Rs.
2,500 for Miscellaneous cases. It will be observed that both Messrs Watson:
* Clauses (2) and (3) of his and Waterfield* are of opinion that all moneys
letter, dated 20th June, 1900.  due on C, D, and Miscellaneous cases should be
exacted from the Mahsuds.

My own view is that the amount due is a detail, and that in this matter
we are under an obligation. The principle that should govern our line o.
action must be accepted and defined, the rest follows as a matter of course.
I would premise by pointing out that the designation inter-tribal” in no
Way removes a case from the category of those in which Government is bound
to ~ do right,” if the case happens to come into this category; the Guri Khel
raid upon a Bannu village has been termed an “inter-tribal” case, but no
one 1s prepared to say that this was not an offence which Government was
boul_ld to take up, in which we were not obliged as a matter of duty to sce that
Justice was done and punishment was inflicted. Now, as to the principle.
1o Punjab Government letter, dated the Ist April, 1892, it is emphatically
laid down that the British Government has taken possession of the Gomal
route, and has established the Queen’s peace, and has determined to maintain
law and order there. Hence, the Lieutenant-Governor proceeds to say, any
attack there or any attempt to carry off looted property along the route by
aly one must be severely punished. = And in paragraph 6 of your office letter
Olf] the 1st February, 1892, Sir Dennis Fitzpatrick agreed with the local officers
that under no circumstances ought raids in the Gomal Pass to be passed over
without severe punishment and redress. That is to say, the obligation and

ay eye . . o .
responsibility incurred by possession were as clearly as possible recognized
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and pronounced. It will be seen that no distinction of persons was made;

whether the injured persons are British subjects or others, whether the cases
are “inter-tribal” or not, there must be peace and order kept, and justice
done. At that time, in 1892, we had not extended our possession to Wana,
to the Shahur line, and to the intervening and neighbouring tracts. Since
1894 we have done so; But so far as I am aware the principle then enunci-
ated, viz., that effective possession implies and imposes the duty to maintain
the peace, has not been traversed, and the orders of Govqrnment:‘ are still
binding upon the local officers. There is here no mention of friendly
advice” to the parties; it is the authoritative maintenance of order, the
official and peremptory redress of wrongs, which is meant. Looking at the
question from another aspect, to put it bluntly, we cannot eat our cake and
have it. We cannot occupy a country, cover it with posts, cross it with
roads, exercise in it criminal and civi] jurisdiction, levy taxes in 1t (e:g., the
Suleiman Khel tirni), call it a protectorate, and then say to its residents:

“Well, we will give friendly advice to the Mahsuds to leave you alone and
to restore your property and pay you damages for your people whom they
have killed.” Considering the huge bill against the Mahsuds for offences
against Government and against British subjects, much will the Mahsuds
heed friendly advice, especially when it relates to their dealings with their
hereditary and bitter foes, the Darwesh Khel, Powindahs and Ghilzais, who
reside in or travel through our protected area. *“Friendly advice” means.
practically an adjournment to the Greek calends, and both parties under-
stand this. It would be out of the question to permit the residents or those
who are temporarily in our protectorate to take the task of redress into their
own hands.  With raids and counter-raids the protectorate would soon be a
pandemonium, and no one’s life or property would be safe; they are not
very safe now, but that is nothing to what would be the case if the door
were thrown open to reprisals. But if we do not permit reprisals, and if
we do not ourselves intervene with authority, what are those who are in-
jured in our protectorate to do? A virtual denial of justice produces the
worst effect upon all; upon the Mahsuds, upon the people in the protected
aren and upon British subjects. I am hound to say that I have recently
had significant hints as to the state of feeling arising out of what the people
within and without the berder think is the almost unchecked licence of the
Mahsuds to prey on their neighbours. If we do not protect those who live
in the protected area, the discontent will be of such as to render it im-
possible to hold it with Militia drawn from the affected localities themselves,

Lastly, in the Tochi we redress the wrongs suffered by the residents of the

valley at the hands of the Mahsuds, and what we concede to one protectorate
we cannot deny to the other. It comes to this: having taken the country
we cannot abnegate our responsibility for the Queen’s peace in it; “friendly
advice,” considering the character ‘and habits of those concerned and the
gravity of the bloodshed and rapine that have occurred is practically such

an abnegation. The anly course which in my humble judgment is wise,

politic and just is to take up all cases that have taken place in the protected

area in much the same way and to the same extent as if they had taken

place in British territory and as if British subjects had heen concerned.

There is no other way out of it; legally and technically speaking the pro-

tected area is not British territory, but virtually to all intents and purposes

it is like Zhob, and must be treated as such.

I am quite unable to say why Mr. Anderson, in view of the orders I

have cited and in view of the general position which I have endeavoured to

* Clause (2) of his letter, sketch, excluded the C and D cases from the
dated 20th June, 1900. settlement; nor can Mr. Waterfield* explain.

If the adoption of the principle which I have advocated is approved, we
shall have to face the settlement of these cases, in so far as they have
occurred in the protected area. It is expedient to do so, else there will be
serious discontent in the protected area, and with the erisis in our relations
with the Mahsuds, which is imminent, we cannot afford to have dissatis-
faction behind us, even if for other reasons it were not highly expedient to
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hose whom we take under our protection that we are prepared to
?1}1131‘1; :]rlguble and risk in order to make that protection a reality and not a
name, and our occupation a benefit and not an evil.

What will be the total of the cases that out of the aggregate of the
Rs. 14,500 will on enquiry be found to have occurred in the protected area
it is impossible to say without going through all the files; but I should
not be surprised if we find all or almost all of the cases to have occurred
in the protected area, since, however prepared Political Officers may have
been on paper in the past to extend our responsibilities, I think.that their
ractice did not correspond to their theory and that they were not particu-
rly anxious to take up cases occurring outside of the rough limits of the
occupied area. To this Rs. 14,500 or greater part of it must be added when
the settlement comes off several serious offences committed since last March,
e.g., the robbery of 140 Powindah camels from
My endorsement, dated 25th  SpIn, out of which the Mahsuds have to account
April, 1900, to your address,  for 117. (Correspondence about this case will
shortly be submitted.)

Paragraph 6 of your letter. 10. For my opinion in the matter of the
t My letter, dated 4th June, fine on the Levies I would refer to the corre-
1900. spondence already submitted to Government.t

11. I am at a loss to explain why Mr. Anderson accepted a settlement

of the Zam case consisting only of blood-money

Paragraph 6 of your letter.  and the value of the stolen property. There 1s

no record of this settlement in my office file of

the Zam case, nor apparently in that of the Political Officer beyond the

‘ vernacular finding of the jirga, signed by

Letter, dated 20th Junme, Messrs. Gee and Watson, which fixes the

1900, from Political Officer. ~ amount of the blood-money and value of

property carried off to be paid. The examina-

tion of the files to which you refer was conducted I believe by Tej Bhan.

In order to see if this Zam settlement was a slip or in accordance with a

definitely adopted plan for settling all the grave

My letter No. 82 C, dated offences, I requested Mr. Waterfield to report
the 5th June, 1900. how the following cases had been settled:—

(@) The murder of two Zhob Sowars in May, 1898. .

(b) The murder of two Zhob Levies in May, 1899.

(¢) The attack on Mr. Watson and the murder .of his chaprasi in
July, 1899,

(d) The murder of two Border Military Policemen and the wounding
of two others at Zerannioba in January, 1900.

(¢) The attack on the Murtaza rest-house guard in February, 1900.

He reports that in the Zhob cases what appear to be fairly adequate fines
were imposed, but that in the Punjab cases (as
Clause (6) of hisletter,dated 10 the Zam case), only blood-mopey and the
20th June, 1900, value of the stolen property bas been demanded.
) In the Zam case 2 Border Military Policemen,
2 Levies and 1 non-official British subject, 5 men in all, were killed; the
blood-money awarded is only Rs. 1,800, or Rs. 360 per man. The same
rate is awarded in the Zerannioba case, whicli contrasts unfavourably with
the Rs. 1,000 per head in the instances of the Zhob men. In the Zeranni-
% 4 Case a somewhat adequate punishment would have been inflicted if the
5. 3,500 realized by a seizure of Mahsuds and their propgrty had been
retained as well as the Rs. 1,570 awarded in
mggytletter, dated 26th June, March, but Government are aware that the
) 10 your address. Rs. 3,500 were returned to the Mahsuds at the
Tank settlement.

It cannot be that these amazingly lenient settlements were made with

Pa the power held in reserve to go behind the
T861aph T of your letter.  settlements and to punish the individual
offenders; else why was not the same course
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adopted in the Zhob cases? And if it was so intended, some record would
exist of such a stipulation having been made and having been communicated
to and accepted by the Mahsuds when they agreed to pay Rs. 35,000, re-
garding which it is expressly stated that it covered all cases, “ leaving none
pending anywhere against the Mahsuds,” a comprehensive statement which
doubtless covers individual Mahsuds as well as the tribe collectively. What
verbal orders were given in respect of the principle of settlement of these
grave offences I do not know; but it is clear that four of them were settled
on the same lines, and therefore presumably some common mode of settle-
ment must have been prescribed. s

In the case of the firing upon Mr. Watson, the Tori Khel Darwesh
" Khel concernad in the matter will be fined
* My letter of the 12th May, IS, 1,000 by the Political Officer, Tochi, as I
1900, to your address. have reported already.* But beyond the exac-
tion of Rs. 910 (blood-money for the chaprasi
that was killed and value of property carried off), nothing was done to the
Mahsuds in or close to whose limits the offence occurred and who were
active aiders and abettors, if not more. Probably Mr. Watson holds that
the Tori Khel were the men who actually killed the chaprasi and fired on
himself. It may be so, although in such a case it would naturally be the .
object of the Mahsuds to lay all the blame on
t Paragraph 12 of his letter, their Darwesh comrades. But if, as he says,t
dated the 6th May, 1900, Sheikhs of Mullah Powindah were also con-
cerned in the attack on him, the punishment of

the Mahsuds is manifestly inadequate.

12. The item of Rs. 5,000 to be paid out of a Mahsud deposit is ex-
" plained by the Deputy Commissioner of Dera,
His letter, dated 15th June, JIsmail Khan, Clearly the money is, in a way,

1900. Mahsud property, but having lain four years}
1 Proceedings, Foreign— in deposit, its confiscation cannot have much
Frontier A, June, 1896. effect upon the tribe as a whole. Up to date
the proceeds of the tolls have been—

‘ Rs. A. P.

In Dera Ismail Khan ... .. 7730 0

In Bannu .. 24 1 6

In Tochi e .. 4000

803 1 6

I do not know if the Mahsuds will be shrewd enough to slightly raise the
prices of what they have to sell, but if they do this then the consumers,
British subjects, will have to pay so much-of the Mahsud fines as proceeds
from the tolls. An awkward feature about this tolls arrangement is that
the usual, almost the only way of settling cases with Mahsuds, especially
where property must be recovered, is to seize their caravans; the Political
Officer cannot do this now; if he does, the realization of the fine is at once
stopped or impeded. ' -

13. I am afraid the settlement cannot be considered satisfactory which-
ever way it is looked at; and if in future the Mahsuds give trouble, as
indeed they have been steadily doing ever since the day of the settlement,
I and the Political Officer, Wana, must ask the indulgence of Government,
because what was done in March cannot have acted as a deterrent: it cannot
have given camse to the Mahsuds to amend their ways; it may encourage
them to think that the next time they are brought to book they will be
treated with the same extraordinary leniency; and if so, a further and
weighty element of complication will have been added to a situation which
is already full of difficulties. What the Mahsud Maliks themselves think
of it will appear from the extract given below from a letter on the general

- situation which T have received from Mr. Water-
Paragraph 5 of your letter.  field, and which T shall submit separately to
' Government with the review promised next

11256 4]
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month, preparatory to taking up the cases against the Mahsuds in August
or September:~—

ExTract from letter, dated the 1‘;Vzth June, 1900, from Political Officer,
ana. :

“That in making the settlement in March last they were induced
by the “ Master ” (viz., Tej Bhan, late Head Clerk to Commissioner, Derajat)
to agree to the proposals put forward by Mr. Anderson. They declare that
at the time they pointed out to the Commissioner that this settlement would
have no good effect, but would rather incite Mahsud raiders to further

crime.”

Annexure 2.

Letter from W. R, Il. Merk, Lsg.,, C.S.L, Commissioner and Superintendent,
Derajat Division, to the Political Officer, Wana, dated 5th June, 1900.

In continuation of the correspondence ending with my endorsement,
dated the 27th May, 1900, on the general subject of Mahsud misconduct
and the March settlement, I have the honour to forward, for information
and for very early report on the points noted below, a-copy of Punjab
Government letter, dated the 2nd instant.

2. The subjects on which you are requested to report are—

(1) Did the Mahsud Maliks understand that they were agreeing to
pay Rs. 35,000 as a final settlement of certain cases previously
settled and certain other cases actually decided by jirgas at
the time the payment was arranged? Please refer to your
office letters of the 13th ultimo.

(2) What is the precise nature of the C and D cases not inclided in
the settlement, and is there anything on record in your office
to show why they were excluded? .

(3) What is your opinion on the question whether it is expedient to
face the settlement of their inter-tribal cases as well as of
the large number of cases in which the interests of British
subjects are involved?

(4) What is the nature of the cases classed as “ Miscellaneous ”?

(6) Does your office, in the English or Vernacular files, contain any
note or record of the reason of the demand for the Zam case
- being limited to blood-money and restitution of the property
stolen? Ts there any record on the file, English or Vernacular,

of the settlement made with the tribe for this case?

(6) What were the demands made on the tribe and included I under-
stand in this settlement, for the following cases:—
(@) The murder of two Zhob Levy Sowars in May, 1898.
() The murder of two Zhob Levy Footmen in May, 1899.
(¢) The attack on the Political Officer, Wana, and murder of
his chaprasi on 20th July, 1899.
(d) The murder of two Border Military Policemen and wound-
Ing of two others on the 9th January, 1900, at Zerannioba.
(e) Thel a<tttack on the Murtaza rest-house guard,in February
ast.
(7) What are the four Tochi cases left unsettled? Vide paragraph 3
of the Government letter enclosed.

(8) Have the eight Zhob cases, and any others there may be pending,
been disposed of during April by your predecessor and the
Political Agent, Zhob, as was anticipated in paragraph 8 of
this office letter, dated the 30th March, 1900, to Gorrrnment.
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(9) If we forego the demand of 4,303 rupees (paragraph 4 of the
Government letter enclosed), how are the injured persoms to
be compensated? Are they British subjects? .

In your reply please follow the sequence of the above heads in your report.

3. Your letter, dated the 28th instant, with its enclosure, on the sub-
ject of fines on the Levies, has been submitted to Government.

4. Your special attention is invited to paragraph 7 of the enclosed
Government Jetter. T attach a copy of paragraph 7 of my letter, dated the
19th ultimo, to Government; it relates to paragraph 7 of your office letter,
dated the 13th ultimo.

Annexure 3.

Letter from S. S. Waterfield, Esa., Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner
and. Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated 20th June, 1900.

I have the honour to reply to your No. 82 C,, dated 5th June, 1900, to
forward the following answers to your questions contained in paragraph 2
of the above-mentioned letter:—

(1) I have personally enquired from the Chief Mahsud Maliks as to
what cases they understood were settled at the jirga held at Tank by Mr.
Anderson, late Commissioner of the Derajat, in March, 1900. The Maliks
all declare that all cases which were pending against Mahsuds and which
had been committed against British subjects in British territory, in the
Wana jurisdiction, and in the jurisdictions of Tochi, Zhob and Shirani prior

to the date of this settlement were settled; and

* I doubt if any Mahsud they one and all refer me to the petition* put

‘3}'9“’ up or dictated this peti- jn by the Mahsud Maliks dated 22nd March,

" W R H. MERE 1900, in which they show how the sum of
Commissioner. RS. 85,000 can be realized.

(2) “C” and “D” cases not included in the settlement are purely inter-
tribal cases, those committed within protected area being classed as “ C” and
those committed outside “protected area,” yet which the Political Officer
considered should be taken up against Mahsuds, being classed as D. Com-
plainapts in these cases are Suleiman Khels, Dotanis, Darwesh Khels and

Bhittannis, :

There is dbsolutely no record whatever in this office to show why these
offences were excluded from the settlement made in March, 1900. -

(8) 1 am of opinion that Government is bound to enforce the settlement
of these inter-tribal cases, otherwise good cause will be given to the injured
tribe for grave discontent, as the Bhittannis and Darwesh Khels both look
to Government to protect them from injury at the hands of the Mahsuds,
and, moreover, are forbidden to take the law into their own hands within
the protected area, where only it is possible for them to retaliate on the

Mahsuds.

(4) As to the definition of “ Miscellaneous Cases,” I can give no satis-
factory answer. From Mr. Watson’s letter, dated 13th May, 1900, I gather
that they have to do.with claims against Mahsuds brought forward some
time after the commission of an offence which was never originally reported.
There is nothing to show why these cases should not have been classed under
the heading A, B, C, D, to one of which they properly belonged. Apparently
such cases were taken up or nof at the will of the Political Officer.

(5) There is no record on any English or Vernacular file to show the
reason why only blood-money and restitution of stolen property was de-
manded from the Mahsuds for the Zam case. ‘

11266 02
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On the Vernacular file of the Zam case there is an order to the following
effect signed by Messrs. Gee and Watson: “ Finding of jirga agreed to. A
decree of Rs. 2,650 issued against Mahsuds.”

The jirga’s finding was as follows:—

“We have gone through the files of this case; we can find no evidence
against any special individual, but there js no doubt that this offence was
committed by Mahsuds. We therefore propose that the following amounts
be- recovered from the three sections of Mahsuds—

Rs
“For blood-money o .. 1,800
“For stolen rifles ... 600
“ For two stolen muskets ... 100
“For stolen property o 150
+ Total ... .. 2,650

———

Signed by—Mir Ajal, Barahmat, Amin Khan and
Muhammad Azim of Kundi, &c.”

(6) The demands made on the Mahsud tribe for the cases specified a:e—
(«) Fine of Rs. 2,000.

(b) Fine of Rs. 2,000 plus Rs. 560 Kabuli paid for recovery of one
of the stolen rifles; total Rs. 2,280 British.

_ {¢) No fine was imposed for the attack on Mr. Watson, Political
- Officer. The case was filed by an order signed by Mr. Warson.
For the murder of the Political Officer’s chaprasi Rs. 720 blood-
money, Rs. 150 for rifle stolen, and Rs. 40 for other stolen

property was imposed; total Rs. 910.

(@) For the Zerrannioba case the following fine was imposed on the
three sections of the Mahsuds:—For blood-money of 2 Border
Military Police sepoys Rs. 720, for wounding 2 Border Military
Police sepoys Rs. 200, for theft of 4 rifles Rs. 600, for theft
of property Rs. 50; total Rs. 1,570.

(¢) For the attack on the Murtaza rest-house guard the following
fine was imposed:—For theft of 3 Snider rifies Rs. 450, for

theft of 36 cartridges, 2 belts and 2 bayonets Rs. 30; tctal
Rs. 500.

(7) The four Tochi cases referved to in paragraph 3 of Governmeat
letter No. 648, dated‘2nd June, 1900, are:—

(1) Murder of Pir Ahmad and wounding of other herdsmen by a
gang of Jalal Khels, headed by Sahib Khan, on 20th Feb-
ruary, 1899, at Inzarka Hill.

(2) Theft of a mare valued at Rs. 300 Kabuli on 1st June, 1899, at
Lewana Hill. Complainants being Ghaina Din and
Muhammad Afzal, Levy sepoys, and accused being Yargul,
Kangrai and Lawang, Jalal Khels. This case has been settled
by recovery of the mare.

(3) Theft of 23 camels belonging to Commissariat contractors from
Dande plain on 16th October, 1899, by Jalal Khels.

(4) Theft of three smooth-bore muzzle-loading muskets from Levies -

at ljlamani Ghundi tewer on 18th October, 1399, by Jalal
els,

These cases were apparently not included in those compounded by pay-

ment of Rs, 35,000, as my predecessor has ordered enquiries to be instituted
ry the Naib Tahsilday of}'r lIIJandola. q‘
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(8) No meeting took place between my predecessor and the Political
Agent, Zhob, in April last, and none of the eight Zhob cases have yet been .
settled, unless they are to be considered as included in the composition of
Rs. 35,000; nothing in the files, however, show whether they are included
or not. L

(9) If the sum of 4,303 rupees in excess of the Rs. 35,000, for which
cases in Classes A and B against Mahsuds were compounded, is.not to be
realized from the Mahsuds, the complainants who are British subjects can-
not be compensated, unless Government will advance the money required.

I have carefully noted paragraph 7 of the Government letter, dated

2nd June, 1900, and will in future act accordingly.

In reply to your telegram, dated 18th June, in continuation of your
letter, dated 5th June, 1900, now under reply, I have the .honour to inform
you that the Guri Khel Maliks were not present at the Tank jirga held in
March, 1900, but Malik Badshah Khan, Salimi Khel, is said to have always
represented the Guri Khel section, and it was to him that the sum of
Rs. 781-8-0, which was due to the Guri Khels for baramta of their bahirs,
was repaid. I find, however, that this sum of Rs. 781-8-0 was actually paid
to Badshah Khan out of Political funds, owing to the fact that the original
amount of Rs. 781-8-0 realized by baramta of Guri Khel’s bahirs had already
been forwarded to Deputy Commissioner, Bannu, in part settlement for the
raid committed by Guri Khels on Walli Khels in Bannu. Thus this sum’
of Rs. 781-8-0 has been paid out twice over from this office, a$ this amount
was not included in the Rs. 85,000 to be paid by Mahsuds. ‘

In reply to your telegram, dated 18th June, I have the hénotif to state
that no Bannu cases were put before the jirga for settlement at the Tank
Jirga held i March, 1900.

Annexure 4.

Letter jrom A. J. Grant, Esq., C.S., Deputy Commissioner, Bamiu, to. the Com-
mussioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated 20th June, 1900.

In reply to your letter, dated 14th instant, which reached me at
Shekh Budin on J9th, I have the honour to send you a list of offences
outstanding against Mahsuds committed in my district which were probably
not included 1n the settlement of March last (either becanse of not having
been reported to the Political Officer, Wana, before that date or because
of having been committed since that date). The list, I am afraid, may not
be quite complete as there was no definite system of registering such cases
till a few months ago, when I opened a regular register, but my pendivg
files have been thoroughly searched, and I hope all cases have been insluded.




Annexure 5,

Statement sk'awing the Cases Outstanding against thse Mahsuds.

Name of Complainant.

Name of Acoused Parson,

Charge.

Brief Account of the Cnae.

1

Uamages nasessed

Rs, 640.
W. R, H. MERK.

. 2
Ruopees 100.

W, R. H, MERK.

R\ipees 80.
W. B. H. MERK.

o

Rupeen 600,
W. R. II. Menx.

Bande, son of Manak, Wazir Malik-
shahi of Malikshahi.

Naura Din, son of Said Amin, Sardi
Khel Sardi Khel.

fhah Nawaz, son of Hasaan, Narmi
Khel of Narmi Khel.

(1) Abbas, son of Mirdad ; (2) Mir

Alam ; (3) Baist Khan, Powin-.

dahs of Kulachi.

Atal, Umarzsi. of Mnarzai .

Rahman, son of Makin, Shabi Khel

(1) Khoji, sonof unknown ; (2} Purdal,
son of unknown; (3) Wardm, BODL
of Baidal ; (4) Chari, son of Haji
Muhummad Shabi Khels.

(1) Semand Khao ; (2) Tup, Mahsud,
Shabi Khel of Bobar.

(1) Ghanni Khan; (2) Pir Gul, Haibat
Khel Mahsuds,

Gid, Mubrud Kiknrai .. e -

Theft of 160 sheep on
26th August, 1896.

Theft of two camels on
9th April, 1897,

Theft of two bullocks ;
Gth Augast, 1897,

Dacoity ;
1898,

218t  March,

Murder of Khan on
218t

sond September, l RHEN

The complainant's labhourer, named Gud, was grazing his flock in grazing ground
of village Amaldar, Four offenders came there and carried away the flock.
Chigl?d turned out but without success. Gud alleges to recognize one Rahman,
acoused.

The cawels wore found with the acoused, and the complainsnt got chem buck on
payment of ransom Rs, 85, and Rs. 15 were paid to spies.

The complainant’s bullocks were stolen from the Narzm Khel grazing ground.
The complainant made search, and came to know that the bullocks were with
the accused, who were asked to take ransom aud restore the cattle, but they
refnyed to do 8o,

Complainants’ four camels were missed when they were watering them from the
Gambila River. When they searched for their camels they saw 10 armed men
carrying away the camels. Police Sergeant of Chauki Hawed went in pursuit,
but without suceess. A wpy brought the news that the camels were with the
nccused. They asked Rs. 240 as ransom. They were usked to give the numes of
actual culprits, but they declined 6 do s0. One camel was found with Dost
Mubammad, Shabi Khel, at Gandi Khan Khei. One of the complainants
recoguised his camel. Dost Muhammad raid that he had purchased from
Mozaffar, Shabi Khel. The former brought the latter, and they stood their triul
by a Criminal Court. Dost Muhammad waa discharged, and Muzaffar sentenced
to one year's rigorous imprisonment and Rs. [0 fine, and the camel was restored
te the complainant.

The deceased was mardered by the accused for private feud. A spy was ment to
the Mahsud country to trace actual culprit. He, on his return, said that there
was & prevailing rumour that the murder was committed by the acensed.

011



6 i Captain Luck
Rupees 250, ;
W. R. H. MERK.

i

7 | Villagers of Taods

Rupees 1,700,
W. R. H. MERK,

Total Rs, 3,370.

W. R. H. MeRK,

Y

H

H

Daulati ... cen

Shabi Khel and Jalal Khels ...

Theft, Section 380, In-

diann  Pepal Code;

25th

Judidhdon 899,

SEth December, 1
Dacoity, Sectiom 397,

Indian Penal Code;

26th
900,
TR February, 1900,

The asocused is being suspected of stealing seven saddles and harness of a trap
from Captain Luck’s bungalow,

The dacoity was commitied by the Jalal Khels and Shabi Khels, In the course of
%acoity the gang killed one man, wounded two men, and looted property worth
8. 476.

The 20th June, 1900.

C. A. Smita, Lieut.,
for Deputy Commissioner.
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Annexure 6.

Letter from S. 5. Waterfield, Lsq., Political. Ogficery Wana, to the Commissioner
and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated 20th Juse, 1000,

In returning the original correspondence forwarded with your letter,
dated 14th June, 1900, I have the honour to

* No. 7 of list of Bannu state it 1s perfectl{) true that the case m ques-
cases. i tion* was not put before the jirga held at Tank
W R AR er. Dy Mr. Anderson in March, 1900. In fact, no
Bannu cases were produced at the jirga. This,

however, in my opinion, does not alter the fact that the Mahsud Maliks and
jirga were distinetly told that the settlement then arrived at covered all
cases committed against British subjects in British territory prior to the
date of settlement. In my letter of 20th instant, in reply to your letter,
dated 5th June, 1900, T have informed you that the Maliks have declared
that they were informed by Mr. Anderson that cases which had been com-
mitted by Mahsuds against British subjects and in British territory were
settled. In support of this declaration made by the Maliks to me, I would
refer you to paragraph 8 of letter from H. A. Anderson, Esquire, Commis-
sioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, to the Chief Secretary to
Government, Punjab, dated 30th March, in which it is distinctly asserted
that “ under these circumstances the settlement which has been made leaves
no case pending anywhere against the Mahsuds except the inter-tribal cases,

&e”

Even though thi?’ case was not brought up before the jirga, yet we

: i cannot say that the Mahsud Jirga was to blamet

t The jirga were on their for not mentioning the case, as at the time they

defence and could not be'ex- yere merely informed that for old cases out-

g:z;e‘iiftfh;’;‘ff&“’l’;;fg;et{gf standing against the tribe, fines amounting

W.R. H. MERE, roughly to 17,000 rupees were unrealized, and

Commissioner, that for recent cases undisposed of compensation

\ and fines amounting to Rs. 18,000 had been im-

posed, gnaking a total of Rs. 35,000 due from the tribe. Except in the
cases of— :

(a) The murde%, of the Political Officer’s chaprasi,

() The murder|of 2 Border Police and wounding of two other Border
Police Sepoys at Zerannioba,

(¢) The attack on the Murtaza rest-house guard,
(d) The raid on the Zam Post,

1 can find no trace of cases having been put before the jirga at the time of
the settlement. Now with regard to this case if it is taken up against the

%I_ilﬁwd& I venture to point out that the Maliks will accuse us of breach of
aith.

Then the Maliks undoubtedly consider all cases committed in British
territory prior to the date of settlement to have been settled.

From the point of view of the Deputy Commissioner, Bannu, I grant
that he has every right to demand reparation from the Mahsuds for this
offence, but then again are we to 2o behind the settlement already arrived
at! In connection with this question I would refer you to paragraph 7 of
Punjab Government letter, dated 2nd June, 1900, to your address, and also

to paragraph 7 of your letter, dated 19th May, to address of Chief Secretary
to Government, Punjab.

Possibly this is not the only case which may come up for orders, ané
I would therefore ask for definite instructions as to how I am to act with
regard to the settlement of such cases. :
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Annexure 7.

Letter from H. W. Gee, Esq., C.S., Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan, tc
the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated Dera [smail
Khan, 9 June, 1900,

I have the honour to reply to your letter, dated 5th June, 1900. I
speak from memory as the records are in the office of the Political Officer,
Wana.

The estimate made for compensation payable in Dera Ismail Khan and
Shirani cases, which were the only ones in which I had any concern, was, I
believe, about Rs. 9,500. The amount of compensation which Mr. Watson
and myself did award in these two classes of cases was, I think, the minimum
which we could have decreed. It was proposed to meet the excess amount
over the estimate by utilizing that portion of the Rs. 35,000 which was due
to Government itself as compensation in the Zam case and the case of rifle-
stealing at Murtaza.

Annexure 8.

Telegram from Commissioner, Derajat, to Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail
Khan, dated 14tk June, 1900.

Your letter of 9th instant. Telegraph what was the amount of com-
pensation which you and Watson did award.

Annexure 9.

Telegram from Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan, to Commissioner,.
Derajat, dated 15th June, 1900.

Your telegram. Amount of compensation awarded was eleven thou-
sand and one hundred and sixty-two rupees four annas plus a fine of fifty
Tupees to be credited to Goyernment.

Annexure 10.

Telegram from Deputy Commissioner, Dera Ismail Khan, to Commissioner,
Derajat, dated 21st June, 1900.

Your letter. The Mahsud’s grain has been sold to Dera Ismail at
3 rupees 12 annas per maund, hence exact price will be Rs. 3,000.

Annexure 11.

Letter from H. . Gee, Esq., C.S.y Deputy Comn;issiongr, Dera lsmail Khan, to
the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated 15th June,
1900.

In reply to your letter, dated 4th instant, I have the honour to state
that the Rs. 5,000 referred to as in deposit on account of Mahsud lands is
not composed of sums due to individual Maliks, but represents the balance
in hand out of the general Naskot C‘olony mncome at the time of the partition
effected by Mr. Bruce, late Commissioner. Previous to partition amongst

11256 r
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individuals the income from this Colony was paid over to the main divisions
of the tribe, to divide up amongst themselves, while a certain sum was
kept for expenditure on the cultivating arrangements in the Colony.

1 would refer you to. paragraph 3 of Mr. Ogilvie’s letter, dated 21st
January, 1887, to the address of Commissioner, Derajat, and also to para-
graph 5 of Mr. King’s letter, dated 9th March, 1892, to the address of the
Commissioner.

The money, strictl speaking, bf:longs to the Colony, and not to Gov-
ernment; and, if it had not been paid to the credit of these fines, it would
have been spent in developing the colonization scheme and on improvements,
a1l of which the individual Maliks will now eventually have to pay for.

Annexure 12.

Letter from J. 8. Dondald, Esq., C.I.L., Political Oficer, Tochi Valley, to the
Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division, dated 23rd June,
1500.

In compliance with your endorsement, dated 12th June, 1900, I have
the honour to submit a statement showing the reasons why the four cases
mentioned in paragraph 2 of Mr. Watson’s letter, dated 14th May, 1900,
to your address, remained unsettled at the recent meeting held at Bannu in
April last.

Case No. 4 of the statement has since been settled and filed. Thus
there are now three cases pending, and two of these have also been settled
so far as the claim of the Government is concerned.

ExporseMeNnT by the Commissioner and Superintendent, Derajat Division;
dated Déra Ismail Khan, 2nd July, 1900.

_ Copy, with copy of the enclosure, forwarded to J. M. Douie, Esquire,
Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab, for information, in reply to his
letter, dated 2nd Jumne, 1900.
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Annexure 13.

List of Cases altributed to the Mahsuds which remained pending at the close of the Meeting of the Political Officers, Tochi and Wana,
held at Bannu in dpril, 1300,

!
Serial Reference to provious Complainant, Acoused. Natore of offence, Brief account of the case. E Remarks made at the mesting, with explanations,
No. correspondence. i
1 | Statement A—Eneclosare to | Ghulam Muhammad Fat- Jalal Khel Mabsuds | Theft of 23 camels on | From reports received in the Tochi it | File to be made over to the Political Officer, Wana, for
Political Officer Tochi's teh, &c., Sarwans, Com- 16th October, 1899, was found that the raid was com- verification. On tribal responsibility the Tochi tribes
letter No. 1425, dated 21st missariat Departmens. mitted by the Mahsuds and the paid a fine of Rs. 1,500 so the case is setfled as far as
November,1899. Case No. & camels were still with the raiders. the Tochi is concerned. It is for the Political Ofcer,
Wana, to verify now whether the Mahsuds had any
share in this case.

2 Do, Case N0, 7 Empresa ... Do. Rbbbéry of three Levies’ | The Amzoni Maliks, in whose limits | File made over to the Political Officer, Wana, for
muskete on 18th Octo- the robbery was committed, venfication of *bhungsa,” which apparently amounted
ber, 1899, arranged and got back the muskets to Rs. 203 Kabuli, The Tochi tribes have returned

on payment of blackmail, the muskets, but they claim the amount of * bhunga ™
paid by them to the Mahsuds.

3 | Statement B. Cuase Ne. 2 ... | Gul Mir, &c., of Idal Khel, Do. Raid on flock and mur- | A goang composed of Papare, Khilji, | File to be sent to the Political' Officer, W:ma.d for

Daur. der of sbepherd on Balle, &c¢., committed the raid. verification.
20th February, 1899.
4 Do. Case No, 10 ... { Ghania Din, &c. ... Do, Theft of ome mare on | Political Officer, Wana, also wired | Mare has been returned. Owner to be asked by the
1st June, 1899 that the mare was found with the Political Officer, Tochi, if he has received it; if he
Jalal Khels, has, case will be filed,
Nore.—Mare bhas béen returned,® Onse can be filed.
21-5-00. J, 8 DONALD,
Miramshah, J. S. DonaLp,

the 22n0d June, 1300.

Political Officer, Tochi,

eIl



116

Enclosure 11 in No. 2.

m J. M. Douie, Esq., Officiating Chief Secretary to the Gocernment of
Lmﬁt‘h{r;)unjab, to the é’ecret(’zry to the Government of India, Poreign Depart-
ment, dated Simla, the 26h July, 1900.

I am directed to refer to the telegram from this office, dated 26th April
last, and to submit, for the information of the quqmment of India, a copy
of a letter, dated 2nd instant, from the Commlsmc_)ner, De.rajat Division,
and enclosures, containing further_detalls of the raid committed on Miani
Powindas in Spin on the 23rd April

2. The gang that committed this raid was composed of Darwesh Khel
of the Zalli Khel section and Mahsuds. The names of 11 of the former
and 17 of the latter have been ascertained by the local officers. Light of
the Zalli Khel offenders have been arrested, tried by jirga, and sentenced
to imprisonment and fine, but the Mahsud Maliks have neither restored the
stolen property nor surrendered the offenders. The ‘Commissioner has,
therefore, sanctioned the announcement to them of the following terms:—

(1) Return of 117 camels, or compensation at Rs. 50 per camel for
those not returned.

(2) Payment of Rs. 360 as blood-money.

(3) Payment of a fine of Rs. 1,000 if the offenders are not surren-
dered. If no camels are returned, and none of the raiders
is surrendered by the Mahsuds, the sum payable by that tribe
for this offence will be Rs. 7,210.

"The Lieutenant-Governor bas approved of the terms sanctioned by the Com-
missioner.

Annexure 1.

Letter from the Commissioner and Superintendent of the Derajat Division to the
Chief Secretary to the Government of the Punjab, dated the 2nd July, 1900,

In reply to your letter, dated the 30th May, 1900, I have the honour
to submit a copy of the following correspondence regarding the raid on
Miani Powinda camels:—

Report from Political Officer, Wana, dated 5th June, 1900.

Commissioner, Derajat’s letter to the Political Officer, Wana, dated
21st June, 1900.

Political Officer, Wana's letter, dated 23cd June, 1900.

Commissioner, Derajat’s letter, dated 2nd July, 1900, to the Political
Officer, Wana.

Anuexure 2.

teport on the Raid committed by Mahsuds and Zalli Khel Darwesh Khels upon
Miani Powindas in the protected area ™ of the Wana political jurisdiction
on night of 23rd April, 1900.

This case occurred at Chaparra Khulla in Spin, which is recognised as

being “ protected area,” and, therefore, the case is cognisable by the Political
cer, Wana.

The complainants are Miani Powindas, who were travelling up the
omal route on their way to summer quarters in Khorasan. They reported
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that, when their camels werc out grazing, a gang of some 80 men raided
them and carried off 170, and that one Powinda who followed the raiders
was shot. .

Enquiries were at once instituted, and have been going on up to date,
-and the case has been most thoroughly worked out.

It has been ascertained that this raid was the work of a gang composed
-of Mahsuds and Zalli Khel Darwesh Khels. This gang made the original
-attack on the Powindas dnd started a stampede among the camels, and that
whilst the Powindas followed in pursuit, four small gangs of Abdurrahman
Khel Mahsuds drove off a certain number of camels which were left behind.
It has been ascertained that 23 camels fell to the share of the Zalli Khels
and 97 camels have been traced to Mahsuds, this gives a total of 120; it
is more than probable that the complainants did exaggerate their loss, but
‘it is also probable that a certain number of camels were killed when being
driven off, so that if we take 140 as the total number of camels looted, we
shall not be far wrong. This will leave 117 camels to be accounted for by
the Mahsuds. '

From enquiries made the names of 11 Zalli Khels and 17 Mahsuds who
were with the gang who made the original attack and shot the Powinda
have come to light, and the names of the leaders of the Abdurrahman
Khe] parties who also plundered the complainants are known. They are
-as follows:— '

1. Suleman Gul. ) 7. Allahdad. )

2. %lla.nsal. ! 8. Mir Jang. !

3 sl LZalli Khels.| 9. Kakorai  -Zalli Khels.
5 Zar Khan. | 10. Mirzadad.

6. Kanmdad. 11. Babar. J

Of the above, Nos. 1 to 8 have been arrested, tried by jirga under
-section 13, Frontier Crimes Regulation, and sentenced to 2 years’ rigorous
imprisonment and fine of Rs. 100, with exception of Nos. 7 and 8, who
assisted the jirga in coming to a decision. No. 7, Allahdad, was sentenced
to one year’s rigorous imprisonment and Rs. 100 fine, and No. 8, Mir Jang,
‘was sentenced to 6 months’ rigorous imprisonment and Rs. 100 fine.

The fines, if realised, to be paid as compensation to the complainants.

Nos. 9, 10, 11, when arrested, will also be placed before the same jirga
dor trial.

The following are the names of the Mahsuds known to have been with
“the original gang:—

1. Ashik. ‘

2. Zardad. Garerais Alizais.

3. Larrai

Withhothers not known.

4. Mina Khan. - .
5. Ammal Shah. } Kohat Khel Alizal
6. Adamai.

7. Miralam. b Malikdinai Alizai.

9. Sheikhar.

10. Amrai, Giga Khel
11. Gulbaz-Faridai. Hamsayas of Malik Radshah
12. Shekhai. Khan, Alizai,

“13. Brother of “ Khak.”
14, Shamdai, Guri Khel.
15. Son of Juma Khan, Nekzam Khel. Bahlolzai
16. Saiyid Gholam. aliolzal.
17. Abdul Ghafur.
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The following are the names of the chief men with Abdurrahman Khel
gangs:—

1. Sinak. 4. Banotai, brother of Malik
2. Khalo. . Jangin.
3. Drazs, brother of Malik 5. Shahbaz.

Shahzor. 6. Saleh Xhan.

In spite of constant letters being written to the Mahsud Maliks, no-
efforts have been made to recover the stolen camels or to punish the
offenders. It is impossible to allow such a case as this to shide, and T
would, therefore, ask that I may be authorised to announce the following
terms to the Mahsud Maliks for a settlement of this case:—

(1) Restoration of stolen camels, or compensation at Rs. 50 per camel
for those not restored, with offenders to be given up; or

(2) Compensation for 117 camels at Rs. 50 per camel, Rs. 360 as.
bFood-money for murdered Powinda with fine of Rs. 1,000.

S. WATERFIELD,
Political Officer, Wana.
Sarwekai,
The 5th June, 1900.

Annexure 3.

Letter from the Commissioner and Superintendent of the Derajat Division to the
Political Officer, Wana, dated the 21st June, 1900.

With reference to the report on the raid committed by the Mahsuds
and Zalli Khel Darwesh Khels on Miani Powindas in Spin on the night of
the 23rd April, 1900, I have the honour to say that I do not understand the
terms proposed. Does (1) of the terms mean that the camels are proposed
to be restored without any fine at all? As the letter stands, term (1) or
term (2) is given as alternative.

Annexure 4.

Memorandum from the Political Officer, Wana, to the Commissioner and Super-.
intendent of the Derajat Division, dated the 23rd June, 1900.

In reply to his letter, dated 21st June, 1900, has the honour to state
that terms (1) and (2) should read as follows:—

(1) Restoration of stolen camels, or compensation at Rs. 50 per camel
for those not restored and offenders to be given.up for punish-
ment or fine of Rs. 1,000, also Rs. 360 blood-money for mur-
dered Powinda to be paid.

(2) Compensation for 117 camels at Rs. 50 per camel, Rs. 360 as
blood-money for murdered Powinda with fine of Rs. 1,000.

Annexure 5.

Letter from the Commissioner and Superintendent of the Derajat Division to the
Political Officer, Wana, dated the 2nd July, 1900.

) Lhn reply to your letter, dated 23rd June, 1900, I have the honour to
8y that 1 agree to the terms proposed.
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Enclosure 12 in No. 2.

Letter from J. M. Douie, Lisq., Officiating Chief Secretary to Government, Punjab,
to the Secretary to the Government of India, Foreign Department, dated
Simla, 17th August, 1900.

With reference to correspondence regarding the affairs of the Mahsud
tribe ending with your letter, dated 10th August, I am directed to submit
a copy of a letter, dated 24th July, with its enclosures, from the Commis-
sioner of the Derajat, and to communicate the following remarks of the
Lieutenant-Governor. ,

2. In the note appended to his letter Mr. Merk has dealt vigorously
and comprehensively with the Mahsud question, and has made definite pro-
~posals for meeting a situation which has become extremely involved. It
1s fortunate that his predecessor, Mr. H. A. Anderson, before proceeding on
furlough, prepared a full report on Waziristan, of which the first 72 pages,
including the greater part of Section II., which treats of the Mahsuds, are
now available m proof. This portion of the Memorandum is submitted for
reference, and I am to invite special attention to Chapters II., V. and VL.
~of Section II. and to paragraphs 70 to 76 in Chapter IV.

3. Mr. Merk bases his recommendations to a great extent on views of
the history of our dealings with the Mahsud tribe, which are open to dis-
cussion. But Sir Mackworth Young proposes to say but little on contro-
versial topics. When he appointed Mr. Merk to the Commissionership of
the Derajat, he anticipated that his experience of the Pathan tribes would
be most valuable in enabling him to deal with the Mahsuds, and he has no
doubt that this anticipation will be justified. As regards their democratic
character, the Mahsuds and the Northern Pathans are much alike, and, as
recognized by Her Majesty’s Secretary of State in the 15th paragraph of
his despatch, dated 28th January, 1898, the latter differ widely from the
Biloch tribes controlled from Quetta, to which may be added those controlled
by the Commissioner of the Derajat. '

4. As to the broad question of policy raised by Mr. Merk in his second
- paragraph, it is, in His Honour’s opinion, needless to go behind the decision
of the Secretary of State communicatd in the above-mentioned despatch and
explained in the 7th paragraph of Mr. Barnes’ letter, dated 7th August,
1899. Although it is inevitable that our control should be gradually ex-
tended over the whole of Waziristan, the Lieutenant-Governor understands
that it is by no means desired that the collapse of all tribal authority should
be in any way hastened by our attitude towards the Mahsuds. On the
contrary it is intended that internal tribal government should be strength-
-ened with a view to averting the necessity of our occupying the country or
exercising an amount of interference in its affairs which would be hardly
possible without occupation. If this is a correct statement of the position,
the conclusion reached by Mr. Merk in the 12th paragraph of his note,
with which Sir Mackworth Young is completely in accord, is the only one
possible.

5. The question then arises whether Mr. Merk is right in his criticism
of the existing system of management, which he regards as faulty in two
respects, namely,—

(a) that the Maliks throngh whom we work, and who receive allow-

~ ances from Government, have been selected by us, and not

by the tribe, and do not fully represent the latter, hence their
influence over the tribe as a whole is not large,

(b) that the attempt to secure the surrepc}er of individual offenders
instead of enforcing tribal responsibility is carried too far, and
results in much unnecessary delay.

6. With reference to the allowances paid to the Maliks, we peed not
go further back than the agreement cgncluded between them and Sir
Robert Sandeman in January, 1890, which is described in the 128rd and
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124th paragraphs of Mr. Anderson’s Memorandum. h%r. Anderson says
that the detailed distribution of all’f)wances was made “according to the
recognized standard of tribal shares” and the agreement itself records that
it was effected “ by common consent and according to tribal usage” But
the jirga at which the agreement was concluded consisted of only 400 persons
out of a tribe containing 10,000 fighting men, and Mr. Anderson himself
notes (paragraph 71) that the distribution had many flaws in it,” and that
“several important sections and individuals had received no share in the
allowances.” The redistribution of 1895 (paragraph 72) aimed at a con-
centration of power in the hands of a limited number of Maliks, not upon
the basis of tribal representation or a democratic vote so nlugh as by the
support and favour of Government. It is clear from the 23th and 29th
paragraphs of Mr. Bruce's letter, dated 26th May, 1893, a copy of which
was submitted with Mr. Fanshawe’s letter, dated 10th June, 1595, that the
distribution lists were drawn up by our own officers. A subsequent letter
from the Commissioner, dated 12th August, 1895, which was not forwarded
to the Government of India, shows that, before the allowances were an-
nounced to a large jirga of 700 Mahsuds assembled at Shekh Budin, an
attempt was made to obtain suggestions as to the distribution from the
tribesmen. But they failed to agree among themselves, and the distribution
made by the Commissioner was then announced to them.

7. All experience supports Mr. Merk’s conclusions as to the inability
of the Maliks, who are the recipients of allowances, to control the tribe.
Mzr. Bruce, the author of the present system of management, clearly admitted
the fact in the 6th paragraph of his No. 98, dated 28th February, 1894,
suhmitted with Mr. I%‘axcxsh:me’s letter, dated 24th March, 1594, and it i3
put forward as a reason for placing a military garrison in Spin in the
Secretary of State’s despatch, dated 24th August, 1894 The murder in
1894 of three Maliks who had been instrumental in procuring the surrender
of Kelly’s assassins, and the attack on Wana by the Mullah Powindah and
the discontented tribesmen in defiance of the Maliks were patent proofs of
weakness, which the Maliks themselves have never been slow to acknow-
ledge, witness their twice-repeated request for annexatioh at the close of
the expedition of 1894-95 and the petition of 3rd August, 1899, submitted
with Mr. Dane’s letter of 28th September, 1899. Notwithstanding what
Mxr. Anderson has stated in the 10th paragraph of the letter forwarded with
my letter, dated 4th April, Sir Mackworth Young is forced to believe that

the usefulness of the Maliks as a restraining force is getting less rather than
greater.
o

8. Turning to Mr. Merk’s second criticism of past methods of manage-
ment, the Lieutenant-Governor has always held that, unless the individual
offenders are surrendered at once, tribal responsibility should be enforced.
Tl}ls.ls the policy favoured in his telegram of 31st July, 1899, to the Com-
missioner of the Derajat, a copy of which was submitted with Mr. Dane’s

letter, dated 1st August of that year. The enforcement of tribal responsi-
bility was asserted by Sir Robert Egerton twenty vears ago to be the proper
method of dealing w c

ith the Mahsuds, as the extract appended to Mr. Merk’s
letter shows. But the policy then laid down was not persevered in, and the
strongest argument for believing in its soundness is to be derived, not from
our experience with the Mahsuds, but from that gained in dealing with
other Patﬁan tribes of similar character. Mr. Anderson’s final defence of
the Derajat system is contained in the letter mentioned at the close of
paragraph 7, and the petition of the Maliks annexed to that letter contains
a protest against its abandonment. But the arguments which Mr. Ander-

ignuaﬁanced do not seem to Sir Mackworth Young to be convineing. The
s quel to the surrender of Kelly’s murderers, to which reference has already
een made, is one notable ex

pursued in deal : ample of the fact that the method hitherto
and that in :;‘ g with offences 1s totally foreign to the ideas of the tribe,
Youne do«»SL ence on it is in practice extremely difficult. Sir Mackworth
where an «inglt.‘vihh to be understood as maintaining that in the case quoted,
content i ﬁ% 1Eiman wags assassinated in cold blood, we should have been

With anything less than the surrender of his murderers. e merely
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quotes the casc as illustrating the extreme difficulty of insisting on the
surrender of offenders in ordinary cases. ' The tribesmen must have felt
that the circumstances of the case were such that the British Government
was bound to insist on very heavy retribution, but this did not save the
Maliks who helped us in the matter. :

9. These being the faults of the present system, the remedies which

Mzx. Merk proposes briefly are—

(1) to make the allowances, as in the case of the Khaibar, to the
tribe instead of to selected Maliks, and

(2) to deal with the tribe as a Whule, and to enforce tribal instead
of individual responsibility in the case of offences.

This will not preclude a demand for the surrender of an offender by the
tribe in particular cases. And the Mahsuds can always, if they please, free
themselves from responsibility for an outrage by giving up the guilty persons
for trial by jirga or otherwise.

10. The Lieutenant-Governor believes that our future policy with
reference to the Mahsuds should be reconstructed on these lines. He does
not lose sight of the fact that we cannot deal with a.mob of 10,000 fighting
men, thaf there must be headmen to act as representatives and spokesmen
of the tribe, that in recognizing such headmen there is room for the repeti-
tion of such mistakes as have occurred in the past, and, however good the
selection may be, occasions may arise in which the headmen will be power-
less to restrain their recalcitrant tribesmen. But it is essential that we
should get into touch with the real tribal leaders, and, if we have not wholly -
succeeded in doing this in the past, we must be prepared to alter our system.
In doing this we have to aid us the precedent of the Northern Pathan
tribes. The introduction of a new system of tribal responsibility will re-
quire full consideration of details, among which may be mentioned the
. question whether there should be separate dealings with the three main sub-
divisions of the tribe in regard to smallexr matters, or even with more of the
tribal sections or sub-sections. But if we succeed in enlisting the tribe as .
a whole in our interests by a subsidy which is really tribal, we should not
hesitate to exact correlative responsibility from the tribe as a whole when to
do so suits our purpose. .

11. What we require, in fact, is to find out whatever elements of self-
government exist in the tribe, though the Mahsud “republic” is in actual
working at present not far removed from anarchy, and to recogunize these
elements in our dealings with it. The 277 Maliks whom we fee are not the
government of the tribe, though with our help they have been able to pose
as such. We need to find a broader basis for diplomatic relations, and
one which coincides with the tribal government such as it is. In this way
we may hope to strengthen internal self-government, for the present weal-
ness of which our past policy is in part responsible.

12. Meanwhile we have on the one hand our existing engagements
with the Maliks, and on the other a breakdown in our relations with the
tribe. The present situation, though unfortunate in other respects, is fav-
ourable for a revision of our engagements. Mr. Merk’s plan for dealing
with the long reckoning we have against the Mahsuds in such a way as to
force them to recognize the unsuitability of the present compact is set forth
in the 13th and succeeding paragraphs of his note. A month hence our
demand against the tribe is pretty sure to exceed a lakh of rupees, and in
view of the scarcity which has recently prevailed in the hill§ to the west of
the Derajat, Sir Mackworth Young fears Mr. Merk is somewhat sanguine
in thinking it possible to have the account settled in a fortnight. But
whether the settlement is long or short, it is essential that it should he
effected, and that, failing voluntary compliance, the tribe should be coerced
into submission. Mr. Merk’s plan, therefore, has Sir Mackworth Youne’s
entire support. °
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13. The Lieutenant-Governor agrees with the Commissioner in think-
ine that, if coercion is necessary, 1t should take the form of a bh?ckade.
Former blockades of the Mahsuds have not always been very effectual.
The one referred to in the 97th paragraph of Mr. Anderson’s Memorandum
was evidently severely felt, and, atter being continued for nearly seven
months, effected its object. But less than a year afterwards the most daring
outrace which the Mahsuds have ever perpetrated was carried out when
Tank was burnt on the 1st of January, 1879. We have now, however, far
greater facilities than formerly for blockading the tribe. The Mahsuds_ can
now be excluded from the Tochi, and though the back door to Afghanistan
is still open, the approach to it through the Darwesh Khel country is likely
to be closed so long as the Badar land dispute is unsettled. Sir Mackworth
Young has no doubt that the pressure of a blockglde would be very sev_erely
felt by the Mahsuds. It might be necessary to reinforce our posts, but if the
tribe do not satisfy our demands, this and other inconveniences must be
faced, otherwise greater troubles will ensue.

14. The submission of the tribe, however brought about, must be
followed sooner or later by a revision of the arrangements as to allowances.
Sir Mackworth Young understands that in the Khaibar a sum of about
Rs. 80,000 is allotted to six tribes containing some 20,000 fighting men.
A grant of over Rs. 60,000 yearly to the Mahsuds with 10,000 fighting men
falls at a considerably higher rate per head. But the money will be well
- spent if we obtain a proper equivalent in the good behaviour of the Mahsuds,
and it must be remembered that their military service is, and their militia
service will be, much smaller than in the case of the Afridis.

15. The militia scheme may be somewhat interrupted, but the Lieu-
tenant-Governor thinks it probable that the fear of being left out of it
will be a strong lever to induce the tribe to compose their quarrel with us
as soon as possible.

16. As regards the Mullah Powindah it is pretty certain that, if our
new arrangement with the tribe is founded npon the actual facts of tribal
government, he will, as Mr. Merk anticipates, have to be reckoned with.
But the place he will occupy in the system will depend not upon our ideas
‘of his power and influence, but upon the place assigned to him by the
tribe. We shall, generally, in dealing with these uncivilized tribes, have
to accept their own representatives, however much we may disapprove of
them. In connection with the Afvidi rising of 1897-98, a strong attempt
was made by the Military Authorities to induce Government to proclaim
the 